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DEBENHAMS IS A LEADING DEPARTMENT STORE GROUP
WITH A STRONG PRESENCE IN WOMENSWEAR, MENSWEAR,
HOMEWARES, HEALTH AND BEAUTY, ACCESSORIES,

LINGERIE AND CHILDRENSWEAR.

OUR EXCLUSIVE OWN BRANDS, INCLUDING DESIGNERS AT
DEBENHAMS, AND THIRD-PARTY BRANDS DIFFERENTIATE

DEBENHAMS FROM ITS COMPETITORS.

Operational highlights for the financial year ending 1 September 2007

- 12 new department stores opened including nine farmer Roches
stores in the Republic of Irelanc! and one re-sited store.

= Strong pipeline of 29 contracte d new department store openings.
» Five new Desire by Debenhams stores opened.

« Rebuilt and upgraded the anlin2 store, debenhams.com.

« Four new internaticnal stores.

= Store refurbishment programme accelerated,

« IT investment to improve store operational efficiency.

» Continuted growth of Designers 3t Debenhams with a new
childrenswear range Baker by Ted Baker introduced.

Debenhams Annual report and accounts 2007 !

Financial highlights

+5.1%

Gross transaction vaiue.

+713%

Profit before tax and
exceptional items.

6.3p

Full year dividend per share.

£227.4m

Net cash generated from
operating activities.

Section 1 Overview
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DURING THE YEAR WE HAVE INVESTED IN ALL ASPECTS
OF OQUR BUSINESS — PRODUCTS, STORES, MARKETING AND
INFRASTRUCTURE — TO FOCUS ON MEETING THE NEEDS

OF OUR CUSTOMERS.

v SEPTEMBER 2006

The year began with the acquisition of nir & Roches
stores {on 12 September) giving an additinal
575,060 sq f: of retail space and increasing the
number of Debenhams employees by ¢ 1,300, This
grew our presence in the Republic of Irela vd to

12 stares,
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NOVEVMBER 2006 >

The wehsite was re-launched
improving Debenhams” ability
to cope with growing levels of
demand within this environment.
In the last quarter of the year

we achieved a like-for-like sales
increase of 62.8 per cent. This
would not have been passible
without the greater stability

and capacity of the new site.

JANUARY 2007 >

New technology to improve service levels was
trialled in two stores, switching time away from
administrative tasks such as manual preduct pricing
to cusiomer facing interaction.

The new price change management system was
rolled out during the Summer which enabled clear
and accurate pricing, resulting in faster sell through
at first markdown.

< FEBRUARY 2007

The second half of the year saw greater focus on product, Including
the launch of Mantaray acrots menswear and ofder kids, 2 new brand
for Debenhams.

A womens fashion range, Gorgeous, specialising in sizes 16-26, was
introduced.

Other new Designers introduced during the year included Melissa
Qdabash in womens' swimwear and accessories, along with Betyy
Jackson, Julien Macdonald and Jeff Banks in home furnishings. At the
end of the year, Baker by Ted Baker was intraduced to childrenswear,
an exclusive brand to Debenhams,

MARCH 2007 >

In March we opened a new store
in Buchares?, Romania. We also
opened stares in Kuwait, Mecca
and Moscow, bringing the
international franchise portfolio
to 34 stores in 15 countries

at year end.

[

Section 1 Cverview
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The store refit programme was both accelirated and upgraded with a new premium feel, Uxbridge was the
first store to benefit from this new loek. Tt e modernisation particularly focused on redesigned visuals to
enhance Debenharms own brand product. Nine stores were completed with the new feel by the and af the

year and a furthes 12 ara in progress

The Warrington store opened in May 2007 This was the final department slore opeming of the year and

brought the total number of department stores 10 133 at the year endt,

< JUNT 2007

The new press and stare marketing campaign was approved for the
208708 financial year, featuring a“chubs” theme.

The Company continues to strive to reduce the impact of its business
on the environment, In June 2007, we introduced 100 per cent
recycled (post cansumer waste) carrier bags into all stores,

ALGUST 2007 >

Walton-on-Thamaes Desire stora was opened This broughi the total
number of Desire stores opened during the vear 1o five, the others
being Birmingham Fort, Merthyr, Kirkaldy and Altrincham. The total
portiolio of Dasire stores has more than doulled in the year increasing
from four 1 nine stores.

SEPTEMBER 2007 >

Suecess at the Prima High Street
Awards retaining the best
eveningweal category and Retty
Jackson winning best designer.

Subsequently we have won best
department store at the
Company High Street Awards.

Debenhams Annual report and accounts 2007 :5
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DEBENHAMS IS A REALLY STRONG BUSINESS AND WE PRIZE
QUR STATUS AS ONE OF THE WORLD'S MOST ADMIRED
AND SUCCESSFUL DEPARTMENT STORE GROUPS AS WE

CONTINUE TO STYLE THE NATION.

LUFN LOVERING Chairman

Let me tell you how | see the current
and future position of our Company.
The board of directors is very proud
of Debenhams and what has been
achieved in the business over the last
few years. | want to assure you hat
we have the long-term future and
value of our business at the corz of all
our thinking and actions.

Debenhams is a really strong business
and we prize our status as one of the
world's most adrmired and succes:ful
department stare groups as we
continue to style the nation.

The Chief Executive's report spells out
how we performed last year. | war [ to
talk about three very important is;ues;
investment in the store environment,
our product range and our people.

Frorn 2004 to 2006 our capital spe wding
was directed towards acquiring and
re-branding the Allders and Roches
stores. We also accelerated our sto-e
opening programme, launched Desire,
invested in our online offering and
expanded our international operations,
In 2007 we needed to turn our attention
to reinvesting in aur older stores, sama
of which were beginning to ook a little
tired. We are now working our way
through the estate and will spend

a substantial amount of this year's

£150 million capital budget on the
refurbishment of existing stores.

Within the next 18 months we expect
to have refitted mast of the chain so
that we will be able to offer all our
customers a modern, hassle-free

Debenhams Annual repadt and accounts 2067

shopping experience which does justice
t& our designer merchandise,

In seme product categories we faced

a marked pick-up in high street price
deflation last year, brought about

by the rapid growth of discounters.

On occasions we were not offering
customers the value for money for
which our business is known. This was
especially true in menswear. [n addition
our fashion and style leadership in
menswear and some women’s clothing
was challenged by re-awakening
competition. Whilst it was hard for us
to address this in the Spring/Summer
season as the buying process had been

+271.2%

completed, we have since acted. We are
now confident that the Autumn/Winter
ranges are on trend, correctiy priced
and available in depth. As a result we
are now competitive in terms of style,
quality and value. The reinvestment
required to achieve this may have cost
some margin but it is certainly the right
long-term decision,

Finally, the beard must ensure we have
the right team in place to move the
business forward.

We have undertaken a thorough review
af our buying and merchandising
eperations. Several people have left
the business but, more importantly,

we have attracted a raft of talent from
across the high street and promoted
many of our high potential middle

and senior managers. The culture is
re-energised and ready for the future,
In stores, we have appointed three new
regional sales directors alongside 25
new store managers during the year,
Internal promotion combined with
external recruitment has generated an
excellent mix of ambition and experience.

We have had a tough year. It has been
painful but we are stronger after the
sharp message we received from our
customers. We have made operational
changes but we will not be deflected
from our long-term strategic aims.

We should also be proud of what we
achieved. We made an EBITDA margin

.
<4 Section 1 Overview

Growth in sales over the past
three years.



pelow. LWUrra-siiec siore in
Exeter, opened in September
2007, The new stare provides
a dramatically improved
shapping experience for our
customars and increases
trading space by 31,000 sq ft.

of 12.6 per cent after full market rent and
not many rivals can come close to that.
We have grown sales by 21.2 per ¢2nt
over three years and we have secured
new space to increase our footage by
14.2 per cent over the next three y2ars.

Our direction is set. Space expansion
through new departrment stores, the roll
out of our Desire small store format and
our averseas franchise programme
continues, Our multi-channel business,
benefiting from our new website, is
showing strong sales and profit growth.

We have every confidence in our
business and our people. Against that
backdrop the board is recommending
a final dividend of 3.8 pence per share
to make a first full year dividend for the
Company of 6.3 pence per share,

We have started the new financial y=ar
in good shape. Like-for-like sales in the
first seven weeks were up 2.1 per cent
(excluding Roches) despite the disruption
from a high number of stores undergsing

Debenhams Annual report and accounts 2007

refits. Qur gross margin is increasing.
We have some world class competitors
for the custorners’purse in a tough
market. The internet is a real rival to the
high street and as everyone knows the
macro economy will get more difficult.
History says that department stores are
more resifient and less volatile through
the economic cycle. We know that the
best management teams who are
working hardest and listening most to
their customers will win and progress.
It is my job on your behalf to make sure
that this description fits Debenhams,

| would fike to thank all of my colleagues
throughout the business whose efforts
and commitment last year and every
year mean that we have the best chance
of achieving this objective,

John Lovering
Chairman

23 October 2007

N

Above: The new and exctusive
Jeff Banks Jeans colfection for
menswear, launched this
Autumn. Part of @ major initiative
to ensure that our menswear
offer is competitive in terms of
style, quality and value.

+14.2%

Planned increase in footage over
the next three years,

Section 1 Qverview
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ALL AREAS OF THE BUSINESS WERE REVIEWED WITH THE
CLEAR OBJECTIVE OF ENSURING THAT ISSUES RAISED WERE
DEALT WITH FOR THE NEW AUTUMN/WINTER SEASON AND
NEW 2007/08 FINANCIAL YEAR,

ROB TTAPLEVAN Chief Execulive

For the year ending 1 September
2007 Debenhams gross transaction
value grew by £112.7 million tc
£2,305.6 million. The primary driver
of sales growth was a total of 712,000
sq ftin new space being added to the
store portfolio. Nine stores wer:2
acquired from Roches in the Republic
of treland. Eight other stores were
opened including five Desire stores
and one re-site in Wigan.

Merchandise sales growth by product
category was varied with a better
performance achieved in a number

of areas including health & beauty and
accessories. Unfortunately this grcwth
was offset by weaker sales from clothing
ranges, in particular menswear. Th s
resulted in an overall disappointing year
for the Company with a like-for-like sales
decline of 5.0 per cent and profit before
tax and exceptional items of £127.5 rillion
compared to £112.8 million achievad in
the previous year. Although the ovzrall
retail environment became far mote
competitive and challenging
throughout the year, it also became
apparent that some areas of the
Company had to be improved befecre
we could regain sales momentum,
Against this background of increasing
competition, all areas of the business -
the store portfolio, the customer
experience in store, products and the
supply chain and marketing - were
reviewed during the second half of the
year with the clear objective of ensuring
any issues raised were dealt with in time
for the new Autumn/Winter season and
new financial year. This work also se-ved

Debenhams Annuai report and accounts 2007

to reconfirm our principal growth
strategies which can be summarised
under four key headings:

1 Space expansion both in the UK and
internationally

2 improving the store environment and
customer shopping experience

3 Product innovation, design, quality
and value for money

4 Growing our enline business and
other technology investments

155

Current number of department
stores.

Store portfolio

Department stores

Although Debenhams has a heritage

of over 100 years in retailing, with only
135 department stores trading across
the UK and the Republic of Ireland we
remain under-represented in some key
shopping locations. Qur property team
has been very active in securing new
stores for our expansion programme,
During the year we acquired nine
department stores from Roches stores in
the Republic of freland, opened new
department stores in Llandudno

and Warrington and re-sited our Wigan
store, increasing its overall footage by
22,000 sq ft. Since the year end, we have
opened two small new stores in Llanelli
and Welwyn Garden City and re-sited
our Exeter and Derby stores, increasing
their footage by 48,000 sq ft. Today we
have 135 department stores and overall
trading space, including our Desire store
portfolio, of 10.4 million sq ft.

10.4m sq [t

Current overall vading space.

Gl >

() Section 2 Business review
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Above: Designers at Debenhams home, Rocha. Johin Rocha bedding. Right: Living accessories from
a range at Debenharms home.
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Above: Designers at Debenhams
Accessories, Sequin beret from
Star by Julien Macdonald.

Dehenhams Annual report and accounts 2007 8 Section 2 Business review
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new Desire store in Merthyr Tyqdfil,
ane of five new Desire stores that
opiened during the year.

Debenhams Annual report and accounts 2007 9
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Below: One of the slunning images used in the new “club™ marketng
campaign faunched ia September,

Above: Designers such as Julien Macdonald bring
the latest styles and trends to a wider audience.
Idol by Julien Macdenald.

Above: Within clothing ranges we have invested
in better fabrics, improved styling and improved
design content. J Jeans by Jasper Conran.

Debenhams Annual report and accounts 2007 1 O Section 2 Business review



Below: Mantaray, new and
exclusive to Debenhams
menswear.

< OFEN
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Contracted department store openings

Desire store openings

Currently we have a strong pipelinz
of new contracted department stores
which when opened will add an
additional 1.8 million sq ft of prime
retail space to our portfolio.

Desire

In the year we opened five of our
smaller Desire stores in Birmingham
Fort, Kirkcaldy, Merthyr, Altrincham and
Walton-on-Thames bringing the toial
trading to nine.

Contracts have been exchanged on
a further four Desire stores.

international stores

Our succassful international franchise
stores play an important part in
extending the globat reach of our brand
and awareness of our product ranges,
QOver the past 12 months new
international stores have opened in
Bucharest, Moscow, Kuwait and Macca.
At year end we had 34 stores trading
from 15 countries across the world.
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In the new financial year we anticipate
further store openings in India, fordan,
Cyprus, Romania, the Middle East and
the Phifippines.

Store development - improving the
customer experience

The board is committed to investing for
the iong-term growth of the business.
Qver the past three years, our capital
expenditure has been primarily focused
on new stores and infrastructure
improvermnents. This includes our new
distribution facility at Peterborough,
rebuilding our internet site, the
introduction of a radio frequency
platform across our store hase and
numerous IT deveiopments. We believe
that these investments will serve the
cormpany and its shareholders well by
providing a sound foundation for the
development of the business.

We have always acknowledged that
some of our older stares were in need of
refurbishment, particularly those which
have been in the portfolio for many

36

Current number of International
stores

12 Section 2 Businass review



years. Debenhams has for the past few
years been committed to a rolling
refurbishment programme.

We have been pleased with both sales
uplifts and return on investment from
our refurhished stores. The latest
iteration of this modernisation
programme has been based on tne fit-
out contained in our successful Cesire
format. The first of these stores based
in Uxbridge is trading well above our
internal expectations. As a result, the
board has decided to accelerate the
roll-out prograrmme of refits so that
the majority of stores within our ¢ state
will be refurbished within the next
two years.

At the year end our store estate czn be
surmmarised as below:

Core 70
New 20
Refurbished 26
Ex-Roches 9
Desira g
Ex-Allders 8

Over the past year there has been much
commentary about the capital spend
per sq ft that Debenhams deploys on
refurbishments. We firmly believe that
the key measurements of success far a
refurbished store are customer perce ation,
sales uplift and return on investment
rather than cost per sq ft. The board will
deploy whatever capital expenditu-e is
necessary to succeed against these
measures,

Products and supply chain
Debenhams is a multi-category

retailer with a bias ta clothing acrass
womenswear, menswear, childrenswear
and lingerie. We also have a strong
presence in other product categoties
such as health & beauty, accessories
and homewares,

Product innovation, style, quality and
value are critical to the success of any
retailer. Over the last six months ant in-
depth review covering all brands has
been undertaken to ensure every

Debenhams Annual report and accounts 2007

product in every brand delivers an
improved customer offer in each of
these areas, This is being executed
across all merchandise categories
throughout our Autumn/ Winter
collection but is particularly evident
within the clothing ranges.

We have reinvested some of our sourcing
gains into better fabrics, improved
styling and more design content overa
large part of our product portfolio at the
same or lower prices than last year.

Designers at Debenhams is a key
differentiator for cur Company and has
evalved toc become alarge and
important part of our business. Buyers
and design teams work ¢closefy with
some of the country’s leading and
most talented designers such as,

Betty Jackson, Jasper Conran, Julien
Macdonald and John Recha, Our aim

is 10 bring the latest styles and trends
from the catwalk ta a wider audience at
affordable prices working with the very
peaple who create the fashion trends.

Our Designer ranges offer cansumers
even greater value for the Autumn
season. More design features and
quality trimmings have been added to
the garments alongside the use of more
exclusive fabrics. The combination of
better quality merchandise with the
latest catwalk trends exclusively
designed by the country’s leading
fashion experts should enable our
Designers at Debenhams ranges to
make good progress over the next year,

We are particularly pleased with the
recent iaunch ¢f a new and exclusive
range of childrenswear, Baker by Ted
Baker, The intraduction of this ranae
from one of the nation's most iconic
brands was the resuit of great
collaboration and hard work from

Ray Kelvin and his team at Ted Baker
alongside our own childrenswear
buying and design teams. Early
indications from the performance of this
range are very encouraging and we
have been extremely pleased with both
the customer and trade feedback.

1 ‘5 Section 2 Businass review




A RS NE ST L LA B S R WD S AN R PR AR A SR R PR AT =T Y

Our offices in Asia and Turkey are
increasing the level of direct procuct
sourcing and this is allowing us tc re-
invest a proportion of the resulting
afficiency gains. That lnvestrent vakes
place through a combination of further
improvement in the quality of ow
products and directly passing some of
the gains made back to our custorners
in new lower prices. We believe that
the strategy of constantly improving
product quality and value for money
will serve both our customers and our
Company wellin the long term.

Marketing

One of the key strengths of Debenams
is the choice that we offer our customers
and the broad appeal of our range:. Our
customers are very focused on quality,
style and fashion and in particular
Designer brands at affordable prices.

Market research continues to highlight
breadth of range a5 a major influenze in
determining where a consumer shops,

For any marketing campaign to
succeed the products have to be right,
The improvements we have made to
quality, style and value within our
ranges has now been communicated
through the latest interpretation of our
Styling the Nation campaign.

The campaign was launched in
September with our new club style
advertisements which are aimed at
demeonstrating the breadth of choice
that Debenhams has to offer through its
exciting and stylish product portfolic.
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Initial results from this latest campaign
have been encouraging both in terms of
a brand projection but also through the
rate of sale of the lines featured.

Online

During the year we rebuilt and upgraded
the Debenhams website. Our investment
of £5.3 million means that Debenhams
can bring its product ranges to a

larger audience but also allows us to
develop niche micro-sites such as

health & beauty to cater for the ever
growing anline demand.

The proportion of retzil sales achieved
through the internet is forecast to grow
substantially over the next five years.
Broadband avaifakility is expanding
rapidly and the older population is
shopping the internet with greater
frequency. The internet has hecome
an important and integral part of our
business. We believe that in the very
near future www.debenhams.com will
become our largest store.

We have seen substantial sales increases
fram the new website, Qur focus is now
to make significant improvements to
the design and marketing of the online
store 1o further improve sales and extend
the reach of our brand to areas of the
country not covered Dy our store estate,

IT developments

Debenhams has a very strong IT
platform and a significant proportion of
development is focused on projects to
improve customer service. We have
installed a radio frequency infrastructure

s
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Abave: Radio frequency
infrastructure has now been
implemented in all stores. This
significantly improves efficiency,
allowing staff access to a wide
range of information in¢luding
stock availability, pricing and
merchandising standards.

throughout our stores, which enables
us to radically imprave clarity of pricing
in sale or promotional periods as vsell
as having the opportunity to chanje
rapidly the marketing of discontinued
or "markdown” products,

The introduction of the radio frequency
technology is the most radical change
implemented in our stores for many
years, It has reduced the number of
hours taken in managing price changes
and improved the clarity of our pricing
which we believe will lead to a faster sell
through on merchandise and improved
levels of customer service.,

Alongside the price change management
system, in several stares we have alio
installed applications known as “wark
planner” and “management suite” Taese
will enable our store management to
spend more time on the shop floor and
access key data immediately to impiove
service levels.

Looking forward, the radio frequency
infrastructure which we have installed
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into our stores will provide us with a
faundation onto which further
technology may be added.

Current trading

Despite wider concerns about the macro
economic environment and how this will
impact on the retail sector, we are
confident that the changes we are making
throughout Debenhams are benefiting
the business. Qur new Autumn/Winter
ranges are being well received and this,
together with the refitting of stores and
previous investment in a new IT platform
and distribution centre, is improving the
customer experience. Our growth in like-
for-like sales and gross margin have both
been positive in the first seven weeks of
the new financial year even though there
has been some disruption from the
accelerated refurbishrment pragramme,
Woe have also seen growth in market share
over the past 12 weeks according to the
fatest TNS data.

Rob Templeman
Chief Executive
23 October 2007

A

Above: Designers at Debenhams
childrenswear, Butterfly by
Matthew Williamson.

Section 2 Business review
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WITH GOOD PERFORMANCE FROM NEW STORES AND
MODERNISATIONS GROSS TRANSACTION VALUE GREW
BY 5.1% TO £2,505.6 MILLION

CTIRIN WOUDEEGEHSE Finance Director

Sales, margins and costs

During the 52 weeks ended

1 Septemnber 2007 gross transaction
value grew by 5.1 per cent to

£2,305.6 million (2006: £2,192.9 miillion)
and revenue cerrespondingly incieased
by 3.9 per cent, These increases were
driven by good performance froni our
new stores and modernisations. However
like-for-like sales fell by 5.0 per cent.

Although currently a relatively small
portion of cur overalt business, strong
growth was achieved from our website
which was relaunched during
November 2006. Gross transaction value
from the web was up 31.7 per cent on
2006 through a 31.2 per cent increase

in orders taken.

The international business also
continued to grow. We opened four new
franchise stores during the year.

Although our product intake margin
increased by around 0.4 per cent, this
was more than offset by the impact of
lower pricing, product mix and higher
clearance rnarkdown, the latter being
required to maintain our terminal stock
at a similarly low level to fast year, Overall
gross margin declined by 0.9 per cet.

A new saurcing office opened in Turkey.
This has improved efficiency in the
supply chain, in particular shertening
delivery lead times and as a result
improving markdown through more
flexible stock management.
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Focus on cost control continues to be
a ¢ritical issue in the business. Store
operational costs grew due to new
stores opened during the year along
with a significant increase in the unit
cost of energy. Distribution costs fell
year on year, primarily as a result of the
closure of our distribution centres in
both Bedford and Daventry towards
the end of the previous financial year.
Central administrative costs also
reduced stightly.

The above combined to generate

a gross profit before exceptional items
of £279.5 million {2006: £331.4 million}.
Underlying operating profit decreased
to £210.1 million {2006: £267.4 million).
Operating profit for 2007 stood at
£179.8 million, (2006: £223.6 million).

Exceptional items

Total exceptional items for 2007 were
£14.3 million {2006; £50.7 million}.

0On 12 September 2006 the Group
acquired nine stores from Roches Stores
in the Repuhlic of Ireland. Fallowing this
acquisition the Group assigned the
existing Dublin store lease, in Jervis
Street, which will result in the closure

of that store after the year end. The
acquisition of these stores, assignment
of the lease and subsequent closure

of the Jervis Street store has created
exceptional costs of £14.3 miltion.
Exceptional costs comprise: accelerated
depreciation charge £6.3 million,
redundancy costs £4.6 million and other
integration costs £3.4 million.

interest

The net interest cost for the financial
year ended 1 September 2007 was
£66.6 million, this compares {0 a net
interest charge, before exceptional items,
of £125.4 million in 2006. The reduction
of £58.8 million is principally due to the
full year impact of a new lower-cost
finance structure which was put in place
in May 2006 after the Group's admission
to the London Stock Exchange.

+5.1%

Increase ir grass transaction
value.

1 () Section 2 Business review
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central Dublin. Acquired from
Roches at the beginning of the
year, the store is now fully
branded as Debenhams and at
140,000 5q ft is our flagship store
in the Republic of Iraland.

Taxation

The Group’s tax charge of £34.2 m llion
on profit of £113.2 million gives an
effective rate of 30.2 per cent. The
charge includes the impact of
exceptional costs incurred in the
Republic of Ireland and the movement
in deferred tax as a result of the rate
of tax changing from 30 per cent to

28 per cent in April 2008.

Earnings

The basic earnings per share of

9.3 pence (2006: 7.4 pence) and diluted
earnings per share of 9.3 pence {206:
7.4 pence) reflect the weighted average
number of shares in issue during the
course of the financial year and similarly
for the comparative period, As a result
of admissicn to the London Stock
Exchange in May 2006 significant
changes in the Group's capital structure
occurred, An underlying earnings par
share figure has been calculated at

11.9 pence (2006: 16.5 pence)
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Abave: Courier delivery far
dehenhams.com. Service levels
and capacity are enhanced

for the future following our
investment in the home

shopping website.

reflecting the underlying earnings
figure and for both financial periods the
number of shares in issue now being the
same figure as at the re-listing of the
business on the London Stock Exchange.

The adjustments to earnings which have
been made in calculating underlying
earnings per share concern the removal
of non-comparable amounts in order to
arrive at an underlying earnings figure.

Dividends

An interim dividend of 2.5 pence

per share was paid in July 2007,

The directors are proposing 2 final
dividend in respect of the financial year

3.8p

ended 1 September 2007 of 3.8 pence Fina! dividend.
per share. it will be paid on 4 January

2008 to shareholders who are on the

register of members at close of business

on 7 December 2007.
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DURING 2006/07 THE COMPANY HAS PLACED EMPHASIS
ON AMELIORATING THE IMPACT OF ITS BUSINESS ON THE
ENVIRONMENT. THE COMPANY ALSO CONTINUES TO RECOGNISE
THE IMPORTANCE OF RESPONSIBLE SOURCING. 1S COMMUNITY
ACTIVITIES, ITS HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMME AND
RELATIONS WITH EMPLOYEES AND CUSTOMERS.

Corporate responsibility issues

are integral to all aspects of our
operations, During the 2006/07
financial year the Campany has
placed particular focus on
ameliorating the impact of its
business on the environment. The
Company also continues to recognise
the importance of respansible
sourcing, its community activities,

its health and safety programnie

and relations with employees ind
customers. This report gives details
of the Company’s activities an< plans
in all these areas and sets out the
Company’s environmental and
sourcing goals,

Debenhams Annual report and accounts 2007

The Carporate Responsibility
Committee is chaired by Nikki Zamblera,
the HR Director. During the year its
activities have been extended to
encompass all departments, from
product to stores. The Company
appointed a head of corporate
responsibility in Aprit 2007.

100%

Recycled carrier bags used in al!
stores.

Reducing the environmental impact
The Company has implemented a
number of new corporate responsibilicy
programmes in 2006/07.

Left: New stores, such as Exeter,
are committed to using 50% of
energy from wind and hydro-
electric sources.

i 9 Section 2 Business review
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Above: The new "green edition”
giftcard launched in July this year.

In June 2007, 100 per cent recycled
(post-consumer waste) carrier bags
were introduced into all stores.

Tha Company had already been using
100 per cent recycled carrier bags for
the Megaday events,

In Juty 2007 the "Green Edition”
Giftcard, the first on the high street,
was launched by Debenhams
Financial Services. The card is mace
from 100 per cent recycled contert
and is also chlorine free,

Next Spring, to help customers
minimise their impact on the
environment, the Company is
launching a 30 degree wash care
initiative on all appropriate appare!
and textile products.

In February 2007 Debenhams
introduced Fair Trade cotton into

its lingerie ranges. The Company

has also developed more eco-friendly
packaging in lingerie, by intreducir g
20 per cent recycled content to the
<ollar boards of bra packs: this
initiative is being pursued across
other packaging developments.

Debenhams’ 160 restaurants and
cafes now stock Douwe Egberts
Good Origin coffee. Every cup of
Good Origin coffee can be traced
back 1o the farm where it was grown
and has been certified by Utz Kapeh,
a global non-governmental
organisation. This organisation assis's
farmers to protect their workers and
the environment in which they live

Debenhams Annual report and accounts 2007

Right: All 160 Debenhams
foodservice cutlets now serve
Douwe Egberts Goaod Ongins
coffee.

and work, as well as providing
assurance that the coffee beans are
derived from 100 per cent sustainable
sources.

A message from Nigel Palmer, the
Retail Operations Director, was sent
to all store employees in November
2006, headed *Ways to save money
and the environment’, with a target
of reducing the amount of energy
used; on-target performance earns
a top-up to the store’s prize fund.

The Company has appointed a
dedicated energy manager. The
Cempany is outperforming the
targets set in the store energy savings

8,700
fonnes

plan and has saved over 8,700 tonnes
of CO,. Efficiency measures include
reviewing timings for lights, escalators
and air conditioning and reducing
overnight shifts.

The store energy savings plan
has out-performed the target
set for CO, saved.

Al new stores now have at least

50 per cent of their energy from
renewable sources. Compared to old
Debenhams stores, the recently
opened Llandudno store is more
energy efficient by some 25 per cent.
This has mainly been achieved
through the use of diffusion heating
and cooling systems, as opposed to
standard forced air ventilation, and
lower power but higher intensity
lighting units.

Within its distribution operations, the
Brackmills distribution centre has
been re-lamped. This has involved
the replacement of all eight-foat
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fluorescent tubes with low energy
tubes and high intensity reflecio.s.
Each aisle is also equipped with two
PIR sensors, ensuring that the lights
are on only when people are working
in that aisle.

As aresult of the commitment frcm
in-store logistics and head office 1o
reduce energy consumption, the
Company has been accredited by the
Energy Institute under the Energy
Efficiency Accreditation Scheme.

The efficiency of the Company’s

logistics fleet, operated by DHL, has
improved compared to last year by
nearly 9 per cent. This reduced CO,

emissions in the year by 8,800 tonnes,

The Company's print department has
been audited by 5GS and has beer
recommended for accreditation to
use FSC and PEFC paper to produce
certified printed material, One of the
major contributors to increases in
CO, levels in the atmosphere is de-
forestation. FSC and PEFC relate to
the timber content of papers used.

Debenhams Annuai report and accounts 2007

+9%

Improvement in efficiency

of logistics fleet,
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Either logo appearing on printed matter
provides assurance that the timber
content of the paper used is sourced
from a legal and sustainable source,

A head office recycling trial, replicing
most individual bins with recycling
facilities for paper and mixed dry waste
like newspapers, card, plastic bo ties ete,
has been successful and is currently
being rolled out to all head office: floors.
This will allow as much waste as
possible to be diverted from lanclfill.

The Company’s plans for 2008 - 10
continue its work on reducing the
impact of its business on the
environment and tackling the eff 2cts
of climate change - include:

+ Reducing the mix of own-bought
products currently transported by
air by at least 10 per cent.

- Planning to convert transhipment
§rom port of own-bought product
sea freight standard container: from
road 1o rail.

= Reducing the carbon footprint by
30 per cent of each new store, in
addition to each store obtaining
50 per cent of its energy from
“green” sources.

» Targeting head office and
distribution centres to divert 2¢ per
cent and 100 per cent respectivaly
of their waste away from landfill.

+ Doubling the amount of waste
diverted from landfill to 50 per cent
for all our stores and aiming to inake
this 100 per cent wherever possible.

-« Increasing lighting energy efficiancy
in the Lodge Farm distribution
centre following the Brackmills
re-lamping project.

Dehenhams Antual report and accounis 200;°
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Supplier selection and monitoring
Debenhams remains committed 1o

its approach to sourcing through
reputable suppliers who show the same
commitment to ethical trade as the
Company. The Company has completed
its review of suppliers and factories. All
new factories are required to submit a
factory information pack covering both
the social and technical aspects of the
factory. The Company then monitors its
suppliers and the standards in their
factories on an ongoing basis in two
ways, through &n independent audit
programme and through assessments
by Dehenhams’ own employees and
representatives. Debenhams' audit
programme is based on two-day audits
and more focused one-day gap analysis
audits, carried out by independent
auditors.

Debenhams accepts social audit reports
completed for other retailers and in
support of this position the Company
joined the Supplier Ethical Data
Exchange ("SEDEX") at the end of 2006,
The Company also encourages its
suppliers and factories to join so that
the number of duplicate audits can be
reduced and focus placed on delivering

-30%

Planned reduction in carbon

the corrective action plans.
footprint of new storesin 2008,

Debenhams continues to support fully
its commitrments to the Ethical Trade
Initiative ("ETI"). The Company is
involved in the Purchasing Practices
working group where, in collaboration
with another major high street retailer,
the impact of joint purchasing practices
in two Chinese factories is being
evaluated, The Company is also active
in the China Project Group and its sub-
group the Decent Work group. Through
its ETl engagement the Company has
continued the joint remediation
programme in northern China and is at
the forefront of the effective auditing
debate.
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Debenhams’ products

Debenhams operates within a policy
framework in relation to the comrposition
of its products including:

« Animal testing ~ Debenham: does
nat sell any products or product
ingredients that have been tusted
on animals.

» Leathers, hides and furs -
Debenhams doas not allow its
products to use any snake, crocedile,
alligator or endangered species. All
the leather used is a by-produict of
the food industry and the Company
supports the humane treatment
of animals throughout the supply
chain. Debenhams does not allow
the use of real furin any of its
products.

+ Sustainable timber sources - only
timber from sustainable sourcas is
used and the Company requires its
suppliers to keep records so t at this
can be verified.

»  Genetically modified organisms - the
Company requires all its products o
be GMO free.

« Conflict diamonds - rough diamonds
sourced for Debenhams production
must have been procured and
certified in compliance with the
Kimberley Process and finished
diamonds must have been purchased
from legitimate sources, not inm olved
in funding conflict, in complianze
with United Nations resolutions:.

Debenhams Annual report and accounts 2007

+ Safer chemicals - Debenhams has
evaluated the chemicals used in its
products. Certain chemicals have
been banned. A policy has been
established in relation to the use of
other chemicals, covering own-
bought merchandise, packaging and
equipment an which product is
displayed in stores. Following its
chemical evaluation, the Company
also stipulates safer alternative
product constituents to be used
by suppliers. Debenhams has been
participating, with the BRC Product
Stewardship Group and Acona, in
raintaining records and developing
best practice for implementing its
safer chemicals policy.

Environmental and sourcing goals

In relation to those aspects of its
operations which affect the environment,
and its sourcing practices, Debenhams
has estabiished goals as follows:

Climate change

Debenhams believes it should he
carbon neutral and the next step
towards that goal is driving carbon
efficiency, continuing to utilise new
technologies. This is particularly evident
in its new and refurbished stores and
distribution centres.

Waste

Debenhams’ goals are not to send any of
the waste it generates to landfill and to
help its custormners minimise the impact
of its products and packaging on the
environment.

Responsible sourcing

The Company goal is to increase
substantially its Fair Trade and organic
product ranges in the short to medium
term,
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Debenhams in the community
Debenhams has always fostered links
with its local community. A new
initiative for 2006/07 has been the work
with Business in the Community and
Scottish Business in the Community to
offer store management teams the
opportunity te become involved on a
local project. We hope this will b ild
into a long-term partnership. Fo-
exampie, part of the Company's new
store opening programme now i 1cludes
a team building event for the new store
management team that benefits local
people and the local community. The
first BiTC local activity was carried out
by the Aitrincham team (the new Desire
by Debenhams store in Altrincham
opened in May 2007) who spent i day
working alongside community volunteers
clearing woods and a play area in an
area of economic and social depr vation.
Over 50 children also attended. Another
example was the Team Day, organised
by the new Desire Silverburn stor: team,
who in conjunction with the Abeilour
Trust regenerated the front garde s

and car park of the Pollok church
community hall (used by the local
community including the stroke

and pensioners cubs).

Debenhams’ Santa arrival prometion,
with Santa arriving by fire engine in
mast stores, was a great success al
Christmas, raising £55,000 for the lire
Services National Benevolent Funcl,
The campaign for the Christmas ahiead
is a Santa arrival event in conjunct on
with the NSPCC; for every £3 visit to
Santa £1 will be donated to the NSPCC.

The Company's commitment to the
Breast Cancer Campaign continued
with the campaign this year raising
£203,000. Over several years
Debenhams has raised £1.1 million
for the campaign.

Debenhams joined forces with Calvin
Klein to help support Everyman anid the
fight against Testicular Cancer. Betvieen
27 May and 18 June, Debenhams and
Calvin Klein denated 50 pence fram
each sale of Calvin Klein underwear

Debenhams Annual report and accounts 2007

to Everyman. In addition, Gebenhams
worked with Calvin Klein 1o create a
special Everyman trunk, which includes
the charity's colours with a signature
orange waistband. This trunk is avaitable
all year round and 50 pence from every
pair sold is donated to Everyman.

Debenhams’ staff continue to show
their suppaort for charitable giving with
nearly 1,000 staff donating directly to
charity from their salaries through the
Debenhams Give As You Earn scheme.
The Company’s stores have also been
active in raising funds for the Retail
Trust through local store-sponsored
initiatives.

Employees

Debenhams is committed to supporting
all employees in their balance between
work and personal life. Depending on
the area and rofe in which they work,
the Company offers various flexible
contracts to suit their individual needs.

Debenhams recognises that there may
be times when an employee needs to
take time off work or change their
pattern of working due to personal
situations. There are a number of policies
in place to support employees through
such events, including parental, maternity,
paternity and adoption leave, flexible
warking and a career break scheme.

All employees also have free access to
the Retail Trust Helpline. The helpline,
provided by the Retail Trust charity,
provides employees with independent
advice and support on a wide range of
topics, both personat and work related.

The opportunity for all emptoyees to
learn and develop is a crucial factor in
the Company’s future success. The retail
environment is fast moving andit is
impertant that all employees have a
flexible range of skills, both from a
personal perspective and for the future
success of the Company. Through
offering a wide mix of training courses
and programmes, Debenhams
encourages individuals to develop,

to expand their skills and to reach

£203,000

Raised far the Breast Cancer
Campaign in past year.

" .
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Below: The Breast Cancer
Campaign in Octaber 2007 aims
to add a further £250,000 1o the
£1.1 miilion total achieved

1o date.

their full potential. Comprehensive
competency-based training
programmes are offered to provide clear
paths for progression for those wishing
to pursue a career in all fields within the
Company. A dedicated learning and
development team works closely with
stores and head office to ensure that
potential and aspirations are maximised,
In addition, Debenhams has become
more closely involved in skills
development for the retail sector and in
June 2006 Nikki Zamblera, HR Dirzctor,
was appeinted Vice Chairman of
Skillsmart Retail, the government Skills
Sector Council for the industry.

The Company provides equality of
opportunity for all employees. Through
the equal opportunities policy it i
committed to creating an enviren ment
that offers all employees the chanze to
use their skills and talents, This means
a workplace where individuals are
treated fairly, regardless of age, colour,
disability, gender, race, sexuat
orientation, hours of work, marital
status or religious belief and where:
policies such as recruitment, traini1g
and career cpportunities are based
around objective criteria.

Debenhams seeks to recruit the best
people from a wide pool of talent and
attract and retain a diverse workforze
which reflects the communities in-~hich
it trades. tn July 2007 the Company
announced its support of the Local
Employment Partnership initiative, thus
formalising its involvement with Job

Debenhams Annual report and acecaunts 20017

Centre Plus and the Skill Sector Council
on a range of measures designed to
improve the employability skills of
people looking far work. Whilst some
support has been available at a focal
level, for example training on interview
techniques, through this national
initiative Debenhams can maximise the
support and opportunities available.

Disability awareness

At the beginning of the 2006/07
financial year Debenhams completed
the works required in order to make
accessible the mezzanine flgors in all
its stores in this country. The Company
believes that itis at the forefront

of UK retailers in this area.

In addition to this work on physical
accessibility in stores, in 2006/07 the
Company has worked closely with

the Disability Rights Commission.
Disability awareness has become a key
component of the store employee
induction programme, A new Company
induction course and DVD entitled
“First impressions” on customer care for
disabled people, which also highlights
Debenhams’' commitment to welcome
applications for employment from
disabled peaple, has been produced.

A disability awareness week, run in

May 2007, was a success and will now
become an annual eventin the retail
calendar. In addition aver the last few
months the Company has revised its
equal epportunities policies and created
a “disability champion”in the HR team.

[Ae]
“J

Above: Nigel Palmer and
Councillor Roy Davies of Luton
Barough Council re-launch our
partnership on health and safety
policy and procedure.
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The Company continues to develop its
website to improve accessibility and
one of the Debenhams Direct team has
now been given specific responsibility
for this area.

The Company provides information
on accessibility matters on the

“direct enquiries” website
(www.directenquiries.com}, including
details such as:

» Designated parking spaces

- Location of accessible entrances

» Passenger lift facilities

+ Accessible restaurant facilities

= Location of accessible toilet
provision

= Availability and detail of the personal
shopper services

- Collect-by-car arrangements

» Details of accessible customer
collection points

Health and safety

The Executive Health and Safety
Committee meets on a quarterly basis
to review major health and safety
matters. The meetings are chaired by
Nigel Palmer, Retail Operations Di‘ector,
and attended by representatives from
training, food services, store
development, internal audit, insurance,
building services and head office
facilities. The minutes of the meetings
are circulated via the Company intranet
to all areas of the business and

are considered as part of each store’s
own health and safety meetings.
Additional interim meetings, agair
chaired by Nigel Paimer, are held
quarterly to discuss store-specific issues
and are attended by personnel relevant
to the topics under discussion.

The store managers are responsibl:

for health and safety in their stores

On a day-to-day basis this is managed
through the Selling Support Manager
and Technical Services Manager. In head
office responsibility lies with the
Facilities Manager. Certain employe es
receive in-house training on risk
assessment and are encouraged to take
the supervising health and safety

Debenhams Annual report and accounts 2067
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course. Al employees receive basic
health and safety training on induction.

All stores have a nominated health

and safety representative who is a
member of the store health and safety
committee. Revised procedures for the
conduct of and attendance at store
heaith and safety meetings have been
re-issued. The minutes of store meetings
are displayed locally and circulated to
the Environmental Health and Safety
Manager for review.

Debenhams employs an environmental
health and safety manager, a food
quality assurance manager and product
technologists to manage the application
of policies and procedures with regard to
health and safety, food and product
safety and quality. In relevant
circumstances Debenhams appoints
consultants to advise on specific safety-
related areas.

Debenhams has a Lead Authority
Partnership with Luton Borough Council,
which considers and comments

on Debenhams’ policies and procedure
and act as a focal point for contact
from other local authorities on health
and safety matters, Nigel Palmer

and Councillor Roy Davies of Luton
Borough Council met in the Luton
store to re-launch the partnership in
September 2006.

On matters of food safety and trading
standards, Debenhams has a
partnership with Westminster City
Council which, threughout 2006/07,
provided guidance on the development
and implementation of the Safer Food
Safer Business procedures adopted by
Debenhams’ Foodservices division.
During the course of the year 29 stores
have received the highest accolade
available from local autherities in
recognition of the high food quality and
safety standards maintained.

Reviews of store health and safety
performance are undertaken by the risk
management team as part of the
internal audit process. All stores receive

29 stores

Received the highest accotade
available from local authorities in
recognition of high food quality
and safaty standards.
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a review gvery two years with high-risk
stares reviewed on an annual besis. The
outcome and remedial actions required
following a risk management in: pection
are followed up by the Store Manager,
Sales Director and the risk mana yement
team,

During 2006/07, software has been
introduced to improve task manajement
and performance. Further improvements
are expected in the forthcoming year
with the introduction of software to
manage maintenance tasks and the
visibifity of statutory certification.

Debenhams has worked closely vith

its major service providers to improve
health and safety performance,
Particularly work has been done in
2006/07 with DHL, the logistics partner,
and with the contract ¢leanars.

A review of the Debenhams healt1 and
safety policy and procedures manual
was conducted during the year w th the
aim of making documentation mure
accessible and the risk assessmen:
process more relevant to individual
stare arrangements. The acguisition

of the new stores in the Republic of
Ireland also necessitated a review of

policy and procedure o ensure it was
relevant and applicable to that country.

During 2006/07, Debenhams has
concluded a survey of all its retail and
head office premises for asbestos,
implemented an asbestos management
plan and undertaken any necessary
remediation works.

To compliment the existing fire risk
assessrnent procedures, an external
consultant has been appointed to
prepare a hazard ptan and risk
assessment in stores with complex
fire engineering.

Debenhams records and reviews its
performance in relation to the number
and nature of the accidents reportable
10 the enforcing authority. The number
of reportable accidents to staff and
customers are sef out below and,
despite the increasing size of the
Debenhams store base and therefore
the consequential rise in footfall into
our stores, the statistics continue 1o
demonstrate an encouragingly low
level of major accidents and incidents
to both custamers and employees,
with a substantial improvement in

the 2006/07 financial year.

Reportable accidents to staff and customers

Debenhams Annual report and a¢counts 2007
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1. John Lovering

Chairman B {(57)

John Lovering has been Chalrman of the Company
since May 2006, previously acting as Chairman of
Debenhams Limited from December 2003 until the
Group floated in May 2006, He was Chairman of
Birthdays Group Limited from 1996 to 2002, of Fired
Earth Limited from 1998 to 2001, the Peacock Group
from 1997 to 2004, Homebase Graup Limited from
2000 to late 2002 and Fitness Firs: Limited from 2003
to 2005. From 1992 to 1995, Mr Lovering was Chief
Operating Officer of Tarmac Limitad and, from 1988
to 1992, he was Finance Director of Sears Limited.
Mr Lovering is currently a director of Ermes
Department Stores Public Limitec {Debenhams’
franchisee in Cyprus), a director of Myer Pty Limited,
Chairman of Somerfield Limited and was appointed
Vice Chairman of Barclays Capital in July this year.

2. Rob Templeman

Chief Executive (50)

Rob Templeman became Chief Exccutive of the
Company in May 2006 and was Ctief Executive of
Debenhams Limited from December 2003 until the
Group floated in May 2006. Mr Templeman was Chief
Executive and subsequently Chairman of Halfords
Group ple from 2003 to 2006, was Chief Executive
Officer of Homebase Group plc from 2001 to 2003
and from 1990 to 2000 he was Chiaf Executive Officer
of Harveys Furnishing plc.
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3. Chris Woodhouse

Finance Director (46}

Chris Woodhouse became Finance Director of the
Company in May 2006 and was Finance Director of
Debenhams Limited from December 2003 until the
Group floated in May 2006. He was Deputy Chairman
of Halfords Group plc from 2003 to 2005, and from
2001 to 2003 he was Commercial Director and
Deputy Chief Executive Officer of Homebase Limited.
Previously, Mr Woedhouse was Finance Director

of various companies including Birthdays Group
Limited and Superdrug Stores plc. In April 2007

Mr Woodhouse was appointed Group Non-Executive
Chairman of Gondola Group Limited. Mr Woodhouse
is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and an Associate of the
Association of Corporate Treasurers.

4. Michael Sharp

Chief Operating Officer (50)

From 1997 to 2004, Michael Sharp was Trading
Director of Debenhams Limited. He was appoeinted
its Chief Operating Officer in January 2004 and then
Chief Operating Officer of the Company in May 2006.
He previously worked from 1985 to 1997 in various
capacities within the Burton Group, including as
Managing Director of Principles and Racing Green and
Buying and Merchandising Director of Top Shop and
Top Man. Prior to joining The Burton Group Mr Sharp
worked for Littlewoods and Sears.

5. Philippe Costeletos

Non-Executive Director (42)

Philippe Costeletos became a director of Baroness
Haoldings UK Limited in September 2003 and a director
of the Company in May 2005. He is a partner of Texas
Pacific Group Limited, which he joined in 2003.

From 1995 to 2002, Mr Costeletos was a member of
the Management Committee at Investcorp Limited.
Prior to jaining Investcorp, he worked at JPMargan
Capital. Mr Costeletos is also currently Chairman

of TIM Hellas SA, Vice Chairman of Q Telecom SA

and a director of Sparkle Fashion Limited and

Myer Pty Limited.
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6. Adam Crozier

Independent Non-Executive Director @ {43)

Adam Crozier became a director of the Company

in April 2006. Mr Crozier has bee 1 Chief Executive of
the Royal Mail since 2003. From 000 to 2003 he was
Chief Executive of the Football Association Limited.
He joined Saatchi & Saatchi UK Limited in 1988 and his
roles there included Media Direcor, Vice Chairman
and, from 1995 to 1999, Joint Chief Exacutive,

7. Jonathan Feuer

Non-Executive Director (45}

Jonathan Feuer became a directcr of Baroness
Holdings UK Limited in September 2003 and a
director of the Company in May 2005. He is a
managing partner of CVC Capital Partners, He joined
CVCin 1988, having previously worked in the
Corporate Finance Department o° Baring Brothers

& Co Ltd and for Ernst & Winney.

8. Richard Gillingwater

Senior Independent Non-Executive Director ¢Hl® {(51)
Richard Gillingwater became a ditector of the
Company in April 2006 and is Chzirman of the
Remuneration Committee, In April this year, Mr
Gillingwater became the new Dezn of Cass Business
School of The City University. Mr Gillingwater is
currently a director of Tomkins pl and Scottish and
Southern Energy plc. He was prev ously Deputy Head
and then Chairman of European lnvestment Banking,
at CSFB between 1998 and 2003 and from 1995 to 1997
he was Joint Head of Global Corparate Finance at BZW.
Between 2003 and 2007 he was Chief Executive of the
UK Government’s Shareholder Executive.
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9. Peter Long

Independent Non-Executive Director ¢® (55)

Peter Long became a director of the Company in April
2006. Mr Long is Chief Executive of TUI Travel Plc
having been Chief Executive of First Choice Holidays
plc since 1999 with which TUl AG merged withiin
September 2007 forming TUl Travel Plc. He established
Sunwaorld Holidays Limited in 1991, (he was Chief
Executive from 1991 to 1996) and was a director of
RAC plc from February 2001 to June 2005. He is
currently a non-executive director of Rentokil Initial ple.

10, Dennis Millard

Independent Non-Executive Director ¢l® (58)
Dennis Millard became a director of the Company in
April 2006 and is Chairman of the Audit Committee.
He was Group Finance Director of Cookson Group plc
from 1996 until 2005 and was Finance Director of
Medeva plc from 1994 to 1996, He was a
non-executive director and chairman of the audit
committee of both Exel ple (2003-2005) and

Arc International (2000-2003) and is currently a
non-executive director of Xchanging UK Limited,
Prernier Farnell pic, EAG Ltd and Smiths News pic.
(where he is Deputy Chairman and the Senior
Independent Director). Mr Millard is a member of the
South African fnstitute of Chartered Accountants.

11. Paul Pindar

Independent Non-Executive Director H@® (48)

Paul Pindar became a director of the Company in April
2006 and is Chairman of the Nomination Committee.
He has been Chief Executive of The Capita Group plc
since 1999 having joined Capita in 1987, From 1985 to
1987, he was an Investment Controller of 3i plc. He is
currently Chairman of the Corporate Development
Board of the NSPCC.

& Member of the Audit Committee

W Member of the Nomination Committee
® Member of the Remuneration Committee
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Principal activities
Debenhams is the second large st department store group in the UK, with a unique mix of own brands (including

Designers at Debenhams), interational brands and concessions. It has 135 stores in the UK and the Republic
of Ireland and nine smaller Desire by Debenhams stores. In addition to its directly owned stores, Debernhams
has a further 36 international franchise stores in 16 countries. It also sells its products through its internet site

www.debenhams.com.

Business review
The results for the financial year are set out in the accounts and notes to the accounts on pages 50 to 99. The

business review, the Chairman's statement on pages 4 10 5, the Chief Executive's review on pages & 10 15 and the
Finance Director’s review on pages 16 to 18, analyse the development and performance of the business during
the financial year to 1 September 2007, its position at the end of the year and give an indication of likely future
developments, The contents of the Chairman's statement, the Chief Executive’s review and the Finance Director’s
review which can be found on pages 4 to 18 form part of this directors' report and are incorperated in this report
by reference. Any liability is restricted to the extent prescribed by the Companies Act 2006.

This review provides an initial analysis, and then fuller explanation, of the business against certain key
performance indicators, as set out below:

Total sales (1) Like-for-like sales (2}

Profit before tax and exceptional items Net cash generated from operating activities

Trading space Labour turnover

1} Gross transaction value
2) Like-for-like growth in gress transaction value represents the current period’s gross transaction value {including VAT) for the internet and

stores that have traded for the last 12 m 3nths less the prior period's gross transaction value far the same grouping.
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Sales (gross transaction value) excluding VAT for the financial year to 1 September 2007 were £2,305.6 million. Space
expansion was the major facto. behind the growth in total sales. During the year the Company opened two new
department stores, Llandudno and Warrington, re-sited our Wigan store and opened five Desire by Debenhams

stores, in Kirkcaldy, Merthyr, Waltan-on-Thames, Altrincham and Birmingham Fort. In addition, on 12 September 2006,
Debenhams completed the acquisition of nine Roches stores in the Republic of treland which have subsequently all been
re-branded as Debenhams stores. The chart below shows the new stores opened during the year and projected openings:

Current and new store pipelir.e

The new store pipeline will help underpin future growth and profits, The directors believe that Debenhams has
the potential to increase its presence in the UK and the Republic of freland to 240 department stores and 100

Desire by Debenhams stores.

At the beginning of the year Debznhams had 80 core steres, being stores which had neither opened nor been
refurbished in the last four years. Nine of these stores were madernised during the year, with an enhanced
level of investment. Refurbished :tores are able to display a greater ievel of product in a way that is easier for
customers 1o shop, Brands are clearly delineated and displayed in a more premium way, The refurbished stores
are being used as a model to enforce visual merchandising techniques, such as the space that must be created
araund fixtures and the number ¢f options contained on each arm. A further 12 refurbishments are currently
taking place, with almost all of the remaining core estate scheduled to be refurbished over the next two years.

Modernised stores as a percentige of estate

During the year £5.7 million was in sested in implementing radio frequency technology in all stores. This enables
better planning and quicker execution of store tasks. In particular price changes can be made more rapidly,
clearly and accurately. The resulting reduction in employee hours dedicated to price changes permits employees
more time to serve customers, this being an important element of Debenhams’ plans to maximise selling
opportunities over the coming year.
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Sales in the international franch se operation made up 2.2 per cent of total Company sales. The international store
portfolio increased by four steres during the year. Since then we have opened three new stores and have plans to
open a further six franchise store s in 2007/08. Direct sales through the Cornpany’s internet site made up 1.1 per cent
of Company sales. The investment made last year to enhance the stability of the site and the shopping experience
for customers now allows the Company to actively drive sales through a broad marketing programme.

2006/07 2005/06

The margin rate for the year wa: 42.2 per cent of sales, 0.9 per cent below last year. This reduction in margin as
a percentage of sales was the result of a higher percentage of concession to own-bought sales and the impact
of the Roches acquisition in its first year. The percentage margin also reduced because of higher markdowns as
the Company focused on a strict “clear as you go” markdown policy througheut the year ensuring control of
terminal stocks {terminal stock levels at the end of the year were 3.3 per cent, in line with last year).

After deduciing depreciation and interest, profit before tax and exceptional items for the year was £127.5 million
{2006: £112.8 million). A large proportion of the exceptional items relates to non-cash write-offs associated with
the closure of Debenhams'’ store in Jervis Street. Following the Roches acquisition Debenhams is consolidating
its operations into one store in Cublin. Terms were agreed in June 2007 to assign the lease on Jervis Street to
Arnotts; Debenhams will continue to trade in Bublin city centre from its 140,000 sq ft store in Henry Street.

The profit after tax for the financial year ending 1 September 2007 was £79.0 million (2006: £43.7 million).
The directors recommend the pzyment of a final dividend of 3.8 pence per ordinary share, to be paid on

4 January 2008 to members on t1e register at the close of business on 7 December 2007. This together with
the interim dividend of 2.5 pence paid in July gives a full year dividend of 6.3 pence.

Since the business was taken private in December 2003 there has been a strong focus on cash generation, The
cash generated by the business i; derived from its profit (after adding back depreciation) and working capital
{where the movement was cash positive compared to last year) less capital expenditure {which totalied £96.5, the
majority of which was on new stores and refurbishment). Net debt at the end of the year was £1,016.5 million.

The Company seeks to foster a rewarding and satisfying working envirgnment through its reward and benefit
structures, through consideratior of and flexibility to meet employea requirements (of which further details are
given in the corporate responsibility report on pages 24 to 25}, and through communication with employees
and providing opportunities for f2edback, The key performance indicator is the rate of labour turnover.

In addition to incentives (the shaie schemes and the bonus programmes foster an interest in the Company's
financial performance), it is important that the Company involves empleyees in business issues and recognises
and addresses concerns or difficulties in their roles. For example, one of the benefits of the introduction of radio
frequency technology is that it streamlines the previously cumbersome and unsatisfying process of manually
effecting price reductions in steres.

At the beginning of the financial vear the Company consulted with its employees about future pension
arrangements (the 60 day consullation period came to an end on 15 September 2046). In the light of that
consultation certain changes were made to the Company's proposals, such as increasing the life assurance cover
and continuing to permit contributions to the additional voluntary contribution schemes.

The Company further promoted ¢ pportunities for regular feedback during the year through:
+ The Employee Consultation Forum, Elected employee representatives are an important part of the
communication framework. Their role is not only to gather information and views from the employees

they represent but they are als> consulted on a wide range of business initiatives.

+ The executive directors also held regular sessions with a cross section of volunteers from around the business
(the Feedback Forum), to gather informal feedback on new ideas and existing practices.
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+ A new initiative was “ask the board”. This gives any employee the opportunity to ask a question of the board
or to raise an idea for considaration.

+ In addition to the quarterly magazine Business News, periadic meetings were held with head office employees
and conference calls with stcre employees to provide updates on business performance and key initiatives.

This business review does not include details of Debenhams' corporate responsibility programme; a separate
report is set out on pages 15 to 27.

Principal business risks and uncertainties

Debenhams is a large and complicated business. There are a number of risks and uncertainties, both from
external factors such as the economic environment and internal factors such as the retention of key
management that could substantially impact its performance.

Statements made in the annual -eport that look forward in time or express management's beliefs, expectations
or estimates regarding future oczurrences and prospects are “forward-looking statements” within the meaning
of the United States federal securities laws. These forward-looking statements reflect Debenhams’ current

expectations concerning future events and actual results may differ materially from current expectations or
historical results. Any such forward-looking statements are subject to various risks and uncertainties,

It is not possible to schedule all risks and uncertainties but major risk factors include:
i) Debenhams’ ability to predict or fulfil customer demands or preferences;

ii) competitive pressures in the highly competitive retail sector. Debenhams’ competitors include not just
other general retailers but sp ecialist retailers, supermarkets and other low-price high-volume retailers,
and internet operators;

fiiy new store and modernisation performance;

iv} factors outside Debenhams’ control such as adverse economic conditions, a downturn in the retail industry,
changes in the financial or equity markets, industrial unrest, adverse weather. natural disaster, war or terrorist
activity; these could particularly have a major impact during peak selling periods;

v) events that negatively impact the Debenhams brand, for example in areas such as product quality, supply
chain practices and health ard safety;

vi) the departure of key personnel;
vii) work stoppages, slowdowns or strikes or operational disruption;

viii) personal injuries or property Jamage relating to a major Debenhams or supplier location through fire or
other risk;

ix} the effectiveness of Debenha ns'brand awareness and marketing programmes;
%) disruptions or other adverse events affecting Debenhams' relationship with or the performance of its

major suppliers, store card provider, designers or concessionaires; for example certain designers are very
important to its business, a la ‘ge quantity of Debenhams’' merchandise is manufactured by a small number

of suppliers etc;

xi) risks associated with Debenhams’ properties, all of which are now held through leasehold interests or former
properties for which Debrenhi: ms may have potential liabilities in the event of default of the current tenant;

xii} loss of business or additional 2xpenditure from regulation; and

xiii) currency and hedging risks (a substantial proportion of Debenhams’imports are paid for in US dallars),
interest rate risks, credit risks and financial covenant risks under the credit facilities.

The Company’s internal control process is set out on pages 39 to 40.

The corporate responsibility report. on pages 15 to 27, details the key environmental performance indicators
and risks,
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Events since the year end

Since the year end the Company has opened two new department stores, in Welwyn Garden City (on 10 October
2007) and Lanelli (on 25 Septerber 2007) which together with the newly re-sited department stores in Exeter
{(which opened on 20 September) and Derby (on 9 October) bring the total number of stores in the UK and the

Republic of ireland to 144,

Share capital
The authorised and issued shase capital of the Company are shown in note 28 to the financial statements on

page BO. No shares were allotted during the period.

Major shareholders
As at 23 October 2007, the following notifications have been received from holders of material interests in

3 per cent or more of the Company’s issued share capital;

Percentage
Number of of issued
shares share capitat

Unity Investments ehf, Unity One ehf and Baugur Group hf

(holdings through a total return swap with an ¢ption for

physical settlement) 116,000,000 135
TPG Sharehotder Group 113,135,197 13.2
CVC Shareholder Group 79,498,424 93
Merrill Lynch Shareholder Group 53,443,493 6.2
48,513,840 5.6

Bestinver Gestion SGIIC, 5.A,

BlackRock Inc 41,320,750 4.8
Lazard Asset Management LLC Group 34,448,811 4.0
Wellington Management Company, LLP 34,721,468 4.0
Newton Investment Management Limited 33,920,576 3.9
AXASA. 31,505,666 37
UBS AG 32,019753 37
Mellon Financial Corporation 30,579,196 36
Credit Suisse Securities {(Europe) Limited 25,833,875 3.0

The takeovers directive

The Company has one class of share capital, ordinary shares. All the shares rank pari passu. The TPG, CVC and
Merrill Lynch shareholders entered into an orderly market agreement amongst themselves, as part of the
flotation which may Iimit the nuraber of shares which each of thern may sell within specified periods of time.
This agreement expires on 31 Jaruary 2008. There are no special controi rights in relation to the Company's
shares. The Debenhams Retail Err ployee Trust 2004 owns 103,602 shares in the Company (0.01 per cent); any
voting or other similar decisions 1elating to those shares would be taken by the trustees, who may take account
of any recommendation of the Company. The rules governing the appesintment and replacement of board
members and changes to the Articles of Assaciation accord with usual English company law provisions, The
board has power to purchase its vwn shares and is seeking renewal of that power at the forthcoming AGM
within the limits set out in the no:ice of that meeting. There are no significant agreements to which the
Company s a party which take ef‘ect, alter or terminate in the event of change of control of the Company except
that the supplier agreements with all major cosmetic suppliers contain termination provisions on change of
control. There are no agreements providing for compensation for directors or employees on change of control.

Directors and directors’ interests
The directors of the Company during the year are set out in the corporate governance report on page 37.

The interests of the directors in the shares of the Company are contained in the directors’ remuneration report
on pages 41 to 47,

No director had, during or at the end of the year, any material interest in any contract of significance in relation
to the Group's business, except that until 9 May 2007 the directors were subject to the constraints on the sale
of their shares in the Underwriting Agreement entered into between the Company and others on 3 May 2006

in advance of the IPO.

In addition to the indemnity provisions in their Articles of Association, the Company and other Group companies
have entered into a direct indemnity agreement with each of the directors and certain other officers or employees
of the Group. In addition the Company has purchased directors and officers insurance. Copies of the indemnity
agreements are available for inspection at the Company’s registered office.
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Employees

Debenhams is committed to promoting policies 1o ensure that employees or applicants for employment are
treated equally, regardless of gender, marital status, race, colour, natignality, ethnic or national arigin, religion,
disability, sexual orientation or age, and are not disadvantaged by conditions or requirements which cannot be
shown to be justified. It applies employment policies that are fair and equitable and which ensure that eatry into
and progression within the Company are determined sofely by job criteria, personal ability and competence.
The Company's policy is 1o appty best practice in the employment and training of disabled persons. Full and fair
consideration is given to every : pplication for employment from disabled persons whose aptitude and skills can
be utifised in the business and to their training and career development, including, wherever practicable, the
retraining and retention of staff who become disabled during their employment. A new Company induction
course and DVD, on both employment and custamer care issues for disabled people, were produced during the
year, a Disability Awareness week was run in May 2007 and the Company has revised its equal opportunities
policies and created a “disability champion®in the HR team.

Further information on employe 2 and disability programmes are given in the corporate responsibility report
on pages 24 to 26.

Payment of suppliers
It is the Company’s policy to pay suppliers in accordance with the agreed payment terms provided that

the invoice is properly presented and not subject to dispute.

The ratio, expressed in days, between the amounts owed by the Company to trade creditors at the end of the year
and the amounts invoiced by sup aliers in the financial year ended 1 September 2007 was 57 days (2006: 53 days}.

Financial instruments
Debenhams does not enter into {inancial instruments for speculative trade. Details of financial instruments

entered into for underlying risks ire set out in note 23 on pages 73 to 75.

Political donations
Itis the Group's policy not to make donations to political parties. There were no disclosable expenses made

during the financial year which fall within the definition of a political donation under the Political Parties,
Elections and Referendums Act 2000.

Charitable giving
Details of the Cormpany's charitable activities are given in the corporate responsibility report on pages 19 to 27.

The Group made direct donations for charitable purposes in the financial year of £96,000 to the Breast Cancer
Campaign (2006: £150,000). Other donations amounting to £60,000 were made in the financial year ended

1 September 2007,

Going concern
After making enquiries, the directors consider that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operation

for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they have adopted the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements,

Disclosure of information to auditors
Each of the directors of the Company at the time when the directors’ report was approved confirms that:

a) so far as the director is aware, there is no information needed by the Company’s auditors in connection with
preparing their report of which the Company’s auditors are unaware; and

b} he has taken all the steps that ke ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself aware of any
information needed by the Company’s auditors in connection with preparing their report and to establish
that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

Independent auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have indicated their willingness to continue in office and a resolution dealing with

their reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting (AGM! will be held at 1 Welbeck Street, London W1G 0AA on Tuesday 4 December

2007 at 3.30pm. ltems 1 to 11 will ke proposed as ordinary resolutions, More than 50 per cent of shareholders’
votes must be in favour for these resolutions to be passed. Items 12 and 13 will be proposed as special
resolutions. At least 75 per cent of shareholders’ votes must be in favour for these resolutions to be passed,
The board recommend that shareholders vote in favour of all the resolutions.
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Ordinary business
The crdinary business at that mzeting will be the laying befare the Company of the report and accounts, the

approval of the remuneration re port (which is on pages 41 ta 47), the approval of the final dividend {which if
approved will be paid on 4 January 2008 to shareholders on the register of members on 7 December 2007},
the re-election of directors, the -e-efection of auditors and the setting of their fees.

In accordance with the provision of the Combined Code of Corporate Governance issued by the UK tisting
Authority, four directors, Richard Gillingwater, Peter Long, Dennis Millard and Rob Templeman are seeking
re-election by sharehclidars at the Company's AGM, The directors have all confirmed that they will stand for
reappointment. Biographical infarmation on each of the directors is contained on pages 28 to 29 and detalls of
their skills and experience are set out in the report of the Nomination Committee and the remuneration report.
Messis Gillingwater, Long and Willard are independent non-executive directors, forming part of the balance
between independent non-executive and other representation on the board, Rob Templeman has been Chief
Executive of the Group since Dezember 2003, The Chairman has confirmed, following performance evaluation,
that the performance of all directors including the non-executive directors is effective and demonstrates
commitment to the role, Although their appointments may be terminated on one maonths’ notice, the board
appoints the non-executive dire:tors for an initial three-year term subject to re-election and the provisions

of the Companies Acts and the Articles of Association of the Company.

Auditors must be appointed al every general meeting at which accounts are presented to shareholders.
Itis normal practice for the Audit Committee of the Company to be authorised to determine the auditors'fees.

Resolutions 8 and 9 ¢over these matters,

Special business
Resolution 10 seeks authority to communicate with shareholders electronically. The Company intends, subject

to shareholder approval, to make documents and information available to shareholders by publication on its
website. A letter has therefore been sent to all shareholders with this annual report seeking agreement to

the use of electronic means in this way for conveying information. If you do not respond to that letter by

12 December 2007 you will be d-2emed to have consented to receive documents in this way. The Company will
write to notify shareholders every time information is published on the website and will continue to send hard
copies when requested by a shaieholder.

Resolution 11 altows the directors to issue, in addition to the Company’s obligations under its ernployee share
schemes, up to 286,320,000 shar 25, which is equal to 33.3 per cent of the Company’s issued share capital as at

4 November 2007, being the latest practicable date before the publication of this notice, This is in line with the
guidelines produced by the mair: investor pratection and pension fund committees. The directors have no
specific intention at the moment of exercising this authority. Subject to this autharity being passed, resolution
12 allows the directors ta issue, in addition to the Company's obligations under its employee share schemes,

up to 42,948,717 shares in exchange for cash without first having to offer the shares to existing shareholders.
This is 5 per cent of the Company's issued share capital as at 4 November 2007, the latest practicable date before
the publication of this notice. The Company will not issue more than 7.5 per cent of its share capital for cash on
a non-pre-emptive basis in a rolling three-year period without seeking further authority.

Resolution 13 renews the authority to purchase shares. The resolution sets out the maximum number of shares
which the Company can buy, the highest and lowest price at which they can be bought and when this authority
expires, This resolution follows the rules set down by the Companies Act 1985, the UK Listing Authority and is in
line with the guidelines produced by the main investor protection and pension fund committees.

The directors are committed to managing the Company's capita! effectively and keep under review the
possibility of the Company buying back its own shares either for canceliation or for helding in treasury (it is
currently the directors’ intention, were shares to be bought back, for them to be cancelled unless bought for the
purposes of employee share schemes when they may be retained in treasury). The Company will only buy back
shares if the directors believe tha: it is in shareholders’ best interests and will increase earnings per share, No
shares were bought during the 2006/2007 financial year.

By order of the board

r_.____h__\) .
Paul Eardley \ I \ - \
Company Secretary Lo L.r "s-" < \.:
23 October 2007
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The Combined Code

The Company has, since 17 Apiil 2007, been fully compliant with the provisions of the Combined Code (2003)
on Corporate Governance issued by the Financial Reporting Council. The only provision with which it did not
comply before that date was the requirement, in Code Provision A.3.2, that at least half the board, excluding the
Chairman, should be independznt non-executive directors, On 17 April 2007 Guido Padovano resigned as a
non-executive director to devo:e more time to his other business interests as a managing director of the Merrill
Lynch Global Private Equity Division. Excluding the Chairman there are now five independent non-executive and

five other directors on the board.

As required under the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, the following section sets out how the
Company has applied the princ ples of Section 1 of the Combined Code (2003) on Corporate Governance.

The board

The board is chaired by John Lovering, who has been Chairman of the Group since December 2003, There

are two other non-executive dirzctors who do not fall within the definition of independence set out in the
Combined Code because of the shareholdings that they represent, namely Philippe Costeletos {who is a partner
of Texas Pacific Group Limited) e nd Jonathan Feuer {who is a managing partner of CVC Capital Partners).

The executive directors are Rob Templeman (Chief Executive}, Chris Woodhause {Finance Director) and Michael
Sharp (Chief Operating Officer). Fhere are five independent non-executive directors: Richard Gillingwater, Senior
Independent Director (who chairs the Remuneration Committee), Adam Crozier, Peter Long, Dennis Millard
{who chairs the Audit Committe2) and Paul Pindar (who chairs the Nomination Committee).

None of the independent non-e <ecutive directors have any relationship or involvement with the Company
which could or could appear to affect their independence of judgement. They are not also directors of the same
company as any other directors, were not previously employed by the Company and do not participate in any
Company bonus, share option ar pension scheme.

Board meetings are attended, in 1ddition to the directors, by Nigel Paimer (Retail Operations Director), Nikki
Zamblera {Human Resources Director} and by the Company Secretary, The board considers at each of its meetings
reports which are circulated in advance of the meeting from the executive directors on major operational matters.
Reports are also made by specialists on general and Company business areas to update and refresh the skills and
knowledge of the board. It also schedules reports from other executives and external advisers on key business
areas; in 2006/07 matters covered by such reports included marketing and PR, the supply chain and distribution,
information systems, succession planning and the advertising programme. In addition the board holds a separate
strategy meeting each year; in 206/07 this was held over a full day and took place at the Debenhams store in
Reading. The board also consider: and approves, where appropriate, major Company decisions, as set out in the
formal schedule of matters reserved to it, such as approval of the operating plan and any material changes,
approval of the annual and interiin reports of the Company and all preliminary announcements of results,
approval of the dividend policy, determination of the interim dividend and the recommendation (subject to the
approval of sharehalders in general meeting) of the final dividend and approval of any new stores, Operational
decisions are delegated to the Company's management,

There were seven meetings of the board, including the full day strategy meeting, during the year. All directors
attended all meetings except tha: Philippe Costeletos, Jonathan Feuer, Guido Padovane, Richard Gillingwater
and Peter Long did not attend on2 meeting and Paul Pindar two meetings due to other commitments.

The division of responsibilities between John Lovering and Rob Templeman, the Chairman and Chief Executive
respectively, is clearly established based on the principle of the Chairman's responsibility for the effective
running of the board and the Chief Executive’s responsibility for the operation of the business. Their division
of respensibilities is set out in writing and has been agreed by the board.

During the year an evaluation was carried out of the board, Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees
and the individual directors. At the same time the Company also took the opportunity to evaluate the external
and internal auditors, Debenhams implemented its evaluation process through the circulation of a number

of questionnaires, which were prepared 50 as to encompass the key responsibilities and attributes required

of the evaluated group or individual, taking into account inter alia the guidance in the Combined Code (2003)
on Corpoarate Governance. The directors and others completed the questionnaires and the results of the
evaluations were analysed in detail and considered by the Chairman, senior independent non-executive director,
HR Director and then by all the non-executive directors at a meeting in early September 2007, The independent
non-executive directors alsa met vithout the Chairman present during the year.

The results of the evaluation process have been communicated to the board, Including the chairmen of the
various committees. Actions have heen taken in the light of matters identified. For example, the board and the
Audit Committee both now give on a more regular basis consideration to werking practices in the supply chain;
the Audit Committee agenda includes business continuity issues and it has also considered the means by which
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the Company publicises, enforces and monitors its codes of conduct, and a greater focus at board meetings

is given to competitive analysis of pricing/product strategies. In terms of the composition of board committees,
it was considered important that the Chairman of the Nomination Committee should also be a member of the
Remuneration Committee and so Paul Pindar has joined the Remuneration Committee and relinquished his
membership of the Audit Committee on 18 October 2007,

Nomination Committee

Paul Pindar chairs the Nomin.ation Committee. The other members are Richard Gillingwater, John Lovering and
Pennis Millard. Its main obligation is to lead the process for board appointments and make recommendations
to the board. As part of this role the Commitiee considers on a regular basis the balance of skills, knowledge and
experience on the board, The terms of reference of the Committee are published on the Company's website at
www.debenhamsplc.com/dels/gov/nomination.pdf.

Prior to the admissien of the Company to listing in May 2006 an external search consuitancy carried out a
recruitment process, which resulted in the appointment of five new independent non-executive directors. The
brief for that consultancy required that it consider the balance of skills and experience required for the board.
That assessment has also been carried out, internally, in 2007 through a board and board committee evaluation
process (referred to above in the report on the board) which amongst other things considered whether the
composition of the board was appropriate, the performance of the board, the issues on which it focuses, and
whether the roles and responiibilities of board members were clearly defined. The Committee is satisfied that
it has the appropriate balance on the board; their skills and experience are broad and diverse, encompassing
substantial retail expertise amongst the Chairman and executive team, and diverse skills in running other
successful companies amongs1 the non-executive directors.

The Committee has met on th-ee occasions, on 24 August 2006, 8 June 2007 and 6 September 2007. In addition
1o the matters set out above, tubjects covered at those meetings included considering the quality of senior
management and succession planning, reviewing its terms of reference and recommending directors’ re-election.
All members of the Committee attended all the meetings.

Guido Padovano resigned from the board on 17 April 2007. The Committee gave consideration to whether

Mr Padovano should be replaced as a director and concluded, as the board still includes two directors, Philippe
Costeletos and Jonathan Feuel, who represent major shareholders and who give continuity with the private
ownership period, that he should not be replaced.

The Committee has agreed that Richard Gillingwater, Peter Long, Dennis Millard and Rob Templeman should
retire by rotation at this years AGM and are properly qualified for re-appointment by virtue of their skills and
experience and their contribution to the board and the Company.

Relations with shareholders

The board is responsible for ensuring that the Company maintains a satisfactory dialogue with sharehalders,
Two of the largest shareholder:, TPG and CVC, are represented on the board, by Philippe Costeletas and
Jonathan Feuer, The Chairman and the Senior Independent Director are always available to major shareholders.
Indeed Richard Gillingwater met with a number of shareholders in March and April of this year 1o discuss incentive
matters, Formal trading updates were given to the market on six occasions in 2006/07, following the preliminary
announcement of the full year results {in October 2006) and the interim results {in April 2007}, at the AGM in
December 2006, in January 2067 by a Christmas trading announcement, and at trading updates given shortly
after the end of the full year or 1alf year (in September 2006 and March 2007 respectively). Following each of
these announcements a conference call took place with shareholders and analysts and after the full year and
interim results a presentation was made to the retail sector analysts. Analysts or brokers’ briefings are circulated
to the board. A programme of rieetings and conference calls are also organised at appropriate times during the
year at which the Chief Executivz and Finance Director comment on Company performance and respond to any
issues raised by investors, This programme included, after the full year and interim results announcements,
meetings with investors in Lonc on, Boston and New York. in addition Debenhams hosted a meeting for retail
analysts, including a visit to Staines, a non-modernised store, and the refurbished store at Uxbridge, on 30 May
2007. At the AGM in December the chairman made a presentation on the Company’s financia! performance and
major initiatives such as new stores, international expansion, the Roches Stores acquisition and the growth of the

internet business.

In recognition of the importance of its dialogue with shareholders the Company appointed Lisa Williams as
Head of investor Relations in Aujust 2007, She previously held simifar positions at Rentokil Initial Plc and the
Cookson Group.
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Audit Committee
Dennis Millard chairs the Audit Ccmmittee, Its other members are Adam Crozier, Richard Gillingwater and

Peter Long. Ali members of the Cemmittee have business and financial expertise. The Chairman is a chartered
accountant with recent and relev: nt financial experience. The Committee has written terms of reference. which
have been published on www.debenhamsplc.com/deb/gov/audit.pdf, The Committee met on three occasions
during the year; all the members of the Committee attended all meetings excep? that Peter Long could not
attend one meeting and Paul Pindar, who relinquished his membership of the Committee on 18 October 2007,
was unable to attend two meetings due to other commitments, Audit Committee meetings are also attended

by the Finance Director, the Company Secretary, the Head of Risk Management, the external auditors, and the
Treasurer for the prasentation of his report. The Committee met without the presence of management with both
the external and internal auditors Juring the year.

After each meeting the Chairman ieports to the board on the matters discussed and raises with the appropriate
executive directer any issue of concern. The minutes of the meetings are circulated to all directors.

There is a detailed agenda for eact meeting. The broad structure of the Audit Committee’s agenda last year was
as follows:

+ in October 2006 1the Committee considered the external auditors' performance and independence and
their re-appointment, reviewed the annual financial statements, key accounting policies, areas of judgement
and quality of earnings, the auditors’report on the year end audit and management's responses to the

issues raised.

« In April 2007 the Committee reviewed the interim financial statements, accounting policies, judgements,
quality of earnings and the interim audit report and responses.

= InJuly 2007 the internal audit programme for the following year was agreed, based on the risk assessment
process detailed below. In addition the external audit strategy and scope for the forthcoming audit was

approved.

At each meeting a report was also riade to the Committee by the internal auditors, based on the audit plan
agreed in the previous July, on control issues and significant findings. Reports on treasury, litigation and health
and safety were also made to each ineeting,

Internal control
The board considers it important that there should be a regular and systematic assessment of the risks facing

the business. The board is responsible for the Company's system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide rea: onable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
This report sets out how the Company maintains a framewark of internal controls and how the Audit Committee
reviewed during the year the effectiveness of that framework. In reviewing its risk management and internal
control procedures, the Company hes considered the revised guidante on internal control issued by the
Financial Reporting Council in Octok er 2005.

A control environment review was carried out across the business in April 2007, in which function heads set

out their business objectives, risks to their achievement and controls to mitigate those risks. Each department
received a copy of its control review. Risks were ranked according to a matrix of severity and likelihood of
occurrence. A new electronic proces: facilitated both the completion of the control environment review and

its collation into a ranking of risk, set out in risk maps and the risk register. The findings from the control
environment review were presented to the Audit Committee in July of this year and the internal audit plan was
derived from this ranking in conjunciion with cyclical requirements for head office (where all areas are audited
at least once every three years) and stores {at least every two years). After risks have been identified and assessed
a written report on the specific area is sent to each function head and their executive director. Following
communication in this way the next ttage of the risk process is control and risk management activities, including
if possible risk transfer (through a thild party contract), financing the risk through insurance, or consideration
by the function head of re-engineering the process. Finally the risks that have been identified are monitored,
through the audit programme (incluc ing computer assisted auditing techniques designed to highlight irregular
patterns and trends), through internal procedures such as stock takes and stock file counts, through prevention
tools such as CCTV and a point-of-sal2 fraud prevention system, and through management cantrols. Training
and support is provided by the risk management team, and the risk management website provides best
practice guidelines and business policies for risk management.

The internal audit team created in the year a high and serious risk monitor so that such risks and their controls
are reviewed on the most frequent basis,
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Internal audit forms part of the risk management department, which also comprises the anti-fraud department,
insurance and profit protection. In this way the Company maintains a cohesive approach to all aspects of risk
management and an operational focus to internal audit. The risk management team was strengthened during
the year through the recruitment of two additional internal auditors and an additional profit protection manager,

In addition te the audit programrne there are 2 number of processes to test the Company’s financial information
and controls. An operating plan it prepared in August of each year and a revised forecast is then prepared each
month, which analyses actual performance and highlights variances against the plan. In particular, performance
is monitored through a series of key ratios. Daily sales, weekly sales and margin and monthly management
accounts are also prepared, ail of which report on perfarmance against plan, fast year and forecast.

A treasury report is made to each meeting of the board, covering matters such as senior operating restrictions
and covenant reporting and foracasting (under the banking facilities), expasure to foreign exchange and
hedging arrangements, net debt and interest rate hedging, cash flow and cash flaw forecasting and amounts
deposited with counterparties.

Whistle blowing
All employees are required to adhzre to the Code of Business Conduct (senior employees confirm compliance

in writing). This sets out the ethicz| standards expected by the Company and includes details of how matters
can be raised in strict confidence. There are two main routes avaitable to encourage employees at all levels
within the organisation to raise concerns over malpractices. The first, employee guidelines to problem solving,
encourages employees to talk to their line manager, their manager’s line manager or if still concerned to call HR
Connect (the central human resources team} directly. Alternatively there is a confidential reporting line, where
employees can speak to the Debenhams anti-fraud team. If an employee feels that the matter is 5o serious that
it cannot be discussed in any of thase ways, he/she should contact the Company Secretary or the Head of Risk
Management directly. Contact details are given for all these routes. The Company'’s policy on whistle blowing
and these methods of raising issues of concern were specifically communicated to all empioyees in May 2007
and are published on the intranet.

Auditor independence
in order to ensure that an appropriate relationship is maintained with the external auditors, a policy on auditor

independence has been established. This covers matters such as that auditors and their staff have no family,
financial, employment, investment or business relationship with the Company, the employment by the Company
of former audit employees, the rotation of audit partners and the provision of non-audit services. The objective
of the Audit Committee’s policy in relation to the provision of nen-audit services by the auditor is to ensure

that the provision of such services Joes not impair the external auditors’ independence or objectivity. An
independent report was produced by the central costs team each quarter during the year detailing all non

audit work, its cost, when it was cairied out and who instructed it, This information was reported to the Audit
Committee at each meeting. The Audit Committee also obtained at the meeting in July 2007 information from
the auditors about its policies and processes for maintaining independence and monitoring compliance with

relevant rotation requirements,

£26,900 was paid by the Company 10 PricewaterhouseCoopers for non-audit services which related to a review
of inter-company loans and distribi table reserves. The audit fees paid by the pension schemes were £24,000.
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Approval of the report
This repart for the year ended 1 September 2007 has been prepared in accordance with the requirements

of the Listing Rules of the UK Listing Autherity, the Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 and the
provisions of the Combined Code (2003). The sections on directors’ emolumants, the Debenhams Performance Share
and Executive Share Option Plans and pension have been subject to external audit by PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP. Shareholders will be asked 1o approve the report at the AGM on 4 December 2007,

The Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Richard Gillingwater and its other members throughout the year are
Adam Crozier, Peter Long, Dennis tiilard and Paul Pindar. All the members of the Committee are independent
non-executive directors and have no personal financial interest, other than as shareholders, in the matters to be
decided. The Committee met once during the 2006/07 financial year {all members were present at the meeting),
once informally and matters were 1eviewed by the Committee through written or telephone consultation on two
further occasions. The Company Secretary is secretary 1o the Committee.

The Committee’s duties include deiermining all elements of the remuneration of the executive directors and the
Company Secretary, considering succession planning for senior management, reviewing the remuneration policy
and overseeing the operation of th2 Company's share schemes. The Committee’s terms of reference are
published at www.debenhamsplc.com/deb/gov/remuneration.pdf

The Committee has appointed KPMG LLP to provide it with independent advice on directors’ remuneration
and share plans. KPMG also provides industry and comparative employee remuneration data to Debenhams'
management. The Committee has also consulted with the Company's Chairman, Chief Executive, Finance
Director and Human Resources Director but not on matters relating to their own compensation or contracts.

The Remuneration Committee cons.ders data from KPMG about total remuneration in other comparable
companies, and the elements of that total remuneration, in order to inform its consideration of the remuneration
of Company executives.

Remuneration paolicy
Itis the Company’s policy to provide levels of remuneration which will attract and retain high quality employees

in a competitive retail market and, where possible, 1o structure its remuneration in the most cost effective way
for the business. In addition to basic ;alary and pension provision the Company seeks to incentivise its employees
through an annual bonus scheme ard through its share schemes, It is the intention of the Committee to weight
executive directors’ remuneration towards performance-linked pay and to strike a balance between short and
long-term incentives that gives greater participation to the longer term for superior levels of performarice.

The Committee considers executive ralary increases in the light of comparative data from companies similar in
size and sector and in the context of salary increases across the Group's wider employee population. The salaries
of the executive directors increased in 2006/07 by 2.5 per cent; this was in line with the rate of payroll inflation
across the employee population as a whole.

The annual bonus focuses on the achievement of specific sales, profit and other business targets for the financial
year. For example, for store managers it is based on the sales and cash profit performance of their store, for buyers
it fs based on the sales and margin of the preduct area for which they are responsible, for certain other head
office areas it is based on sales and profit performance of the Company as a whole. Far executive directors

in 2006/07 it was made up of a numbar of factors, some Company-wide (such as profit and net deht), some mare
specific (such as the performance of the stores acquired from Allders and Roches), In normal circumstances
executive directors could potentially earn an annual bonus of up to 100 per cent of salary subject to the
achievement of these targets. For 2005/07 the executive directors’ bonus targets comprise profit, net debt and

like-for-like sales hurdles.

Incentives are also provided through the Performance Share Plan {in which the executive directors participate)
ar the Executive Share Option Plan, encouraging @ long-term commitment to the Company's share price and
earnings per share performance.

It is the Company’s policy that the notice periods of executive directors should not exceed one year. The
Remuneration Committee has conside ed the financial conseguences of early termination of directors service
contracts; in order to limit liability and provide certainty in the event of termination of a contract without cause,
their contracts contain liquidated damages clauses. if the Company terminates the employment without due
notice, other than in circumstances such as gross misconduct or other immediate justifiable cause, the Company
is required to make a payment equal tc the aggregate of the executive director’s basic salary and the value of his
contractual benefits for the notice perind and an amount equal to the average of the annual bonus paid to the
executive director in the two bonus years prior to the termination of his employment.
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The cost of operating defined ber.efit pension schemes has, over recent years, become higher and more
unpredictable and potentially, if not addressed, could increase the risk for accrued benefits (including pensioners
and deferred members). Following consultation over 60 days with employees, the Company ceased accrual of
pensicnable service under the ek enhams Executive Pension Plan and the Debenhams Retirement Scheme with
effect from 1 November 2006, with benefits accrued to 31 October 2006, including the benefits of deferred and
pensioner members, being retained in the schemes. In addition, the Debenhams Retirement Scheme was closed
to new members with effect from the same date (the Debenhams Executive Pension Plan was closed to new
entraniis in 2002}, Pension arrange nents are now provided through a Defined Contribution Stakeholder Plan.

in the Republic of Ireland, pension arrangements are made by way of a Defined Contribution Scheme. The
pension benefits of the executive directors are now therefore provided through a defined contribution of 15 per
cent of salary (20 per cent for Michael Sharp); only Michael Sharp was a member of the old defined benefit plan
and details of his accrued benefits in the scheme are set out in the section headed pension in this report.

Letters of appointment and service contracts

The Chairman and the non-executive directors have letters of appointment from the Company covering matters
such as duties, time commitment, f=es and other business interests. The appeintments may be terminated by
either party giving one month’s notice.

The remuneration of non-executive directors is determined by the board and is made up of an annual fee

for acting as a non-executive direct ar of the Company and fees for chairing and for membership of a board
cammittee. The non-executive directors do not take part in discussions on their own rermuneration. The fees are
set to reflect the time which they are required to comnmit to their duties, their experience and the amounts paid
10 non-executive directors in comparable companies. There has been no increase in non-executive directors feas
in the year.

Details of the letters of appointmen: of the non-executive directors are set out below and the terms are available
for inspection at the Company's registered office during normal business hours and at the AGM.

Date of Date af
joining letter of
Name Position Annual fes the Group 4Appointment
John Lovering Chairman £250,000 8 September 2003 19 April 2006
Philippe Costeletos Non-executive director £40,000 8 September 2003 24 Aprit 2006
Adam Crozier Independent;
non-executive director £45,000 9 May 2006 18 April 2006
Jonathan Feuer Non-executive director £40,000 8 September 2003 24 April 2006
Richard Gillingwater  Senior indepzndent
non-executive director £62,500 9 May 2006 20 April 2006
Peter Long independent
non-executive director £45,000 9 May 2006 24 April 2006
Dennis Millard independent
non-executive director £55,000 9 May 2006 10 April 2006
Paul Pindar Independent
non- executive director £50,000 § May 2006 19 April 2006

The executive directors Rob Templeman, Chris Woodhouse and Michael Sharp entered into service agfeements
with the Company on 3 May 2006. Each agreement is terminable by either party giving not less than 12 months’
written notice, save that Michael Shar is required to give the Company six months’ notice,

Executive directors are entitled, in adcition to salary, to other benefits or equivalent cash allowances, the value
of which is set out in the table of directors’emaluments, including company car and fuel, life, medicat and
personal accident insurance,

Rob Templeman and Chris Woodhouse are permitted to hold up to twe non-executive directorships in non-
competing companies. The executive directors retain payments received in respect of their other directorships.
On 22 December 2006 Chris Woodhouse was appointed non-executive Chairman of Gondola (which owns
restaurant groups including Pizza Exprass), for which his fees in 2006/07 were £104,032.
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Directors’emoluments
Audited information on the remur eration of each director for the full year is set out in the following table:

Annual

Allowance
in hey ot Totar Tola¥
Salary/fees Benefits Bonus pension 2007 2006
Pirector i £ £ £ £ [
John Lovering 250,000 173 - - 250,173 190,498
Rob Templeman 656,650 34,558 - 98,498 789,706 1,076,673
Chris Woodhouse 446,515 24,759 - 66,977 538,251 740422
Michael Sharp 415,000 36,818 - 83,000 534818 980442
Philippe Costleletos 40,000 - - - 40,000 12,615
Adam Crozier 45,000 - - - 45000 14,192
Jonathan Feuer 40,000 - - - 40,000 12,615
Richard Gillingwater 62,500 - - - 62,500 -
Peter Long 45,000 - - - 45,000 14,192
Dennis Millard 55,000 - - - 55,000 17,346
Guido Padovano 35,897 - - - 35,897 12,615
Paul Pindar 50,000 - - - 50,000 15,769
Total 2,141,562 96,308 - 248,475 2,486,345 3,087,379
* Waived

The fees of Philippe Costeletos, Jonathan Feuer and Guido Padovano are paid to TPG, CVC and Merrill Lynch
respectively rather than being paid :0 the individual non-executive director.

On 17 April 2007, Guido Padovano rasigned as 2 non-executive director, Na compensation was paid on his
resignation.

Share schemes

Baroness Employee Limited Partne ship ("BELP")

In June 2004, certain senior manage-s were invited to invest in the Group through the purchase of units in
BELP (corresponding to shares in the Company). In the 2005/06 financial year 30 per cent of those shares were
distributed and the balance of 70 pe- cent (totalling 12,891,480 shares) were distributed on 9 May 2007 to

37 employees {inctuding 5,250,000 shares distributed to Michael Sharp, an executive director, which have not
subsequently been sold by him). In addition BELP transferred 335,505 shares on 9 May 2007 to the Debenhams
Employee Retail Trust 2004. There will be no further share transfers or distributions by BELP, which no longer
halds any shares in the Company.

The Debenhams Employee Option Flan

When the Group was privately owned, an executive option plan was put in place. On exercise, participants
acquired shares in the Company at a ;pecified option price per share, The balance of 50 per cent of the options
became exercisable on 9 May 2007, 355 days after admission of the Company's shares to listing on the London
Stock Exchange. Participants were, in all except three instances, required to pay the employer’s national
insurance contributions arising on the exercise of their options. in recognition of this cost, participants were
awarded a bonus in the form of shares on the exercise of their option. The bonus shares had a market value
which on a post tax basis was equal to the cost to the participant of meeting the empioyer’s national Insurance
contributions on the relevant exercise,

The Debenhams Retail Employee Trus; 2004 (the "Trust”) held shares to satisfy the exercise of options granted
under the Debenhams Employee Option Plan. On 2 September 2006 the Trust held 3,290,535 shares. It
purchased a further 70,000 shares on .3 Novernber 2006 (at 190.14 pence per share) and 335,505 shares were
transferred to it by BELP on 9 May 2007. A total of 3,592,438 shares were transferred from the Trust to satisfy the
exercise of options and the award of bonus shares. The Trust currently holds 103,602 shares in the Company,

No further awards will be made and 1t ere are no outstanding shares to be transferred or exercised under this
share option scheme.

Michael Sharp was the only director w10 held options under the Debenhams Employse Option Plan and details
are set out below (Michael Sharp has r:tained the shares obtained on the exercise of this option):

Qptions Market
held a1 Share price Cptions at Value
Date Expiry Exircise  2September Granted Exercised at time of Lapsed 1 Septermber on date
of grant date price 2006 in year in year exercise in year 2007 of exercise
Michael
Sharp 31/01/05 30/01/15 0.2p 60,758 - 60,758 147.75p - Nil  147.75
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The Debenhams Performance Share Plan (the “PSP*)

Under the PSP, executives may recuive shares (the number of which is determined by the extent to which a
performance condition is achieved on vesting) provided that they remain employed in the Group. Awards under
the PSP comprise an option to receive free shares or a nil cost option.

On 24 November 2006 awards over 2,408,253 shares were made under the PSP 1o 102 employees, including
to the executive directors as set cu: below, and on 29 May 2007 awards were made over 3,274,793 shares to

57 employees.

Balance Markel Numbeaf Balarce

held at price of shares held at

2 September Date at date granted Exercised Lapsed 1 September

MName 260 of gramt of award in year in year in year 2007
Rob Templeman 468,750 24/11/06 196p 165,611 - - 634,361
Chris Woodhouse 318,750 24/11/06 196p 112,614 - - 431,364
Michaet Sharp 296,250 24/11/06 196p 104,665 - - 400915

No awards may be granted to an inclividual in any financial year over a maximum number of shares whose
market value is greater than 200 pes cent of that individual’s gross annual rate of salary at the date of grant,
although the Remuneration Committee has a discretion, in exceptional circumstances {which include
recruitment), to grant awards over shares with a market value of up to 250 per cent of gross annual salary at
the date of grant. In the 2006/07 financial year the award to the executive directors was at the tevel of 50 per

cent of base salary,

Awards under the PSP will normally only vest on the third anniversary of the date of grant {and must be
exercised within six months of vesting} subject to performance conditions set by the Remuneration Committee
at the time awards are granted and il the Remuneration Committee is satisfied that the underlying financial
performance of the Company over tt e performance period is sufficient to justify the vesting of the award.

Half the PSP awards made in 2006/07 are subject to a performance target based on the Adjusted Earnings Per
Share {“EPS") growth of the Company above the percentage increase in the Retail Price Index ("RPI") over a
three-year perfarmance period starting at the end of the 2005/06 financial year. The EPS targets for the
November 2006 award are compound annual EPS growth of RPI + 7 per cent (at which 30 per cent of this
element of the award would vest) to Pt + 14 per ¢ent (100 per cant of this element of the award would then
vest), with a straight-line basis for calculating the percentage that would vest between 30 per cent and 100 par
cent. In relation to the award in May 2007, the same structure for calculating the percentage of the award that
vests apply, with the EPS targets being 30 per cent at EPS growth of RPI + 3 per cent per annum to 100 per cent
at EPS growth of RP1 + 7 per cent per annum. In determining the EPS targets for 2006/07, the Committee took
into consideration the current businers plan, prevailing economic conditions and shareholder expectations,

1t took advice from KPMG LLF, including their analysis of brokers' consensus forecasts. EPS was chosen as the
Remuneration Committee considers it to be a key underlying value driver of the business that will focus
management’s attention on continued growth and profitability.

The remaining half of the 2006/07 PSP awards are based on the Company’s Total Shareholder Return {"TSR")
against the weighted TSR of the FTSE 350 General Retailers index over a three-year performance period starting
at the end of the 2005/06 financial year. The TSR performance conditions have not changed, continuing to
trigger at 30 per cent vesting of this elerment of the award for Debenhams TSR equal to the weighted TSR of the
FTSE 350 General Retailers Index, to 100 per cent vesting of this element for Debenhams TSR equal to or more
than 12 per cent per annum above the weighted TSR of the FTSE 350 General Retailers Index, with a straight-line
level of vesting between these two points. The weighted TSR is the aggregate of the TSR of each company in the
FTSE 350 General Retailers Index weigh ted by their respective market capitalisations at the start of the relevant
three-year performance period. A three -month average TSR at the start and end of the performance period will
be used to mitigate the effect of any short-term share price volatility. The Committee considers TSR to be an
approximate proxy for shareholder valt e and it chose this comparator group as Debenhams and its main listed
general retail competitors are a constituent of the index. The Committee determined that a weighted index is a
fairer and more reasonable method of determining relative performance (as opposed to a conventional TSR
ranking) as it factors in the size of each comparator company and therefore the absolute levels of value that each
company generates relative to its size. When determining the maximum TSR target, the Committee took into
consideration the historical TSR performance of the comparator companies over the last ten years. The current
maximum target of 12 per cent per ann sm abaove the index broadly equates to upper quartile TSR performance.
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If one or both of the performance conditions are not met at the end of the performance pericd, 50 per cent
or 130 per cent (as appropriate) of the awards will lapse immediately without any opportunity to re-test the
relevant performance condition.

The Remuneration Committee may set different performance conditions for future awards and may decide
that different conditions should be applicable to different executives’ awards depending on their job function.

No PSP awards vested during the y2ar.

The Debenhams 2006 Executive Share Option Plan (the "ESOP")
The ESOP allows the Company to grant options to acquire shares to eligible employees. Options granted under
the ESOP may either be Her Majesty’s Revenue & Customs approved options (up to the prescribed limit} or

unapproved options,

Share options were granted over 1,677,153 shares on 24 November 2006 to 196 senior managers at an option
price of 198.25 pence (being the middie-market price at the close on the day before grant date). A grant was also
made on 29 May 2007 to 64 employees, over 450,341 shares, at an option price of 137.5 pence {the closing price
on the trading day before grant). Tha2se options will normally become exarcisable three years after grant and
expire ten years after the date of grent.

The exercise of options is subject to the satisfaction of a performance condition, which will be stated at the date
of grant. There will be no re-testing of the performance condition. For the November 2006 grant of options the
performance condition will require the Adjusted EPS growth to be at least equal to the percentage increase in
RPI + 7 per cent per annum over a p2riod of three years commencing with the 2005/06 financial year. For the
May 2007 award the required growtl in Adjusted EPS is RP] + 3 per cent per annum. in determining the EPS
targets the Committee took advice from KPMG LLP and sought to establish targets which, although stretching,
were capable of being achieved and would provide a real incentive for store managers, senior buying and
merchandising executives and other participants in the scheme.

No options under the ESOP were exercised during the year,

The maximum market value of shares over which options may be granted to an employee under the
unapproved part of the ESOP in any iinancial year (as measured at the date of grant) may not be greater than
100 per cent of the employee’s annual basic salary a1 the date of grant. However, the Remuneration Committee
has a discretion, in exceptional circurastances {which include recruitment) to grant awards over shares with a

market value in excess of this amoun-,

No options under the ESOP were granted to executive directors during the year.

EPS
Under the rules of both plans, to ensyre comparability of financial years of the Company within the EPS

performance period and for the base year, the Remuneration Committee may (following consultation with its
independent advisers and the Company's external auditors) adjust the reported figure for earnings per share as
calculated in accordance with the relevant accounting standard {including adjustments to achieve consistent
measurements of performance durinc the transition to international accounting standards) to arrive at a figure
that is a fair and reasonable reflection of the underlying business performance of the Group. Such adjustments
shall include, but are not limited to, acjusting the issued shate capital to a comparable basis, excluding
extraordinary or exceptional items, adjusting for the effect of a 53rd week, adjusting for the effect of incremental
costs or charges, adjusting for property profits no longer accruing, and adjusting for the effect of interest on pre-

admission levels of borrowing.

Debenhams 2006 Sharesave Scheme {the “Sharesave Scheme”}

Under the Sharesave Scheme, employees may be granted an option to acquire shares at 2 fixed exercise price.
At the end of the savings period the emnployee may either exercise the option within six months of the end of
the savings period using the savings contributions and bonus which he has accumulated, or have the savings
and borus repaid to him. No options have been granted under this scheme.

The Debenhams Deferred Bonus Matching Plan (the “DBMP")

Under the DBMP, participants will be able to invest up to the full amount of their annual bonus {on an after-tax
basis) in shares. If the participant remains in service for three years he/she will, subject to the satisfaction of a
performance target, be eligible to receive a matching share award {based on the pre-tax amount of the bonus
that has been invested). The Remuneration Committee has not determined what performance conditions will
apply to awards under the DBMP although it is intended that they be appropriately demanding and linked to
the Company’s perfarmance. If the perlormance target is not met at the end of the performance period, the
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awards will lapse immediately and “here will no opportunity 1o re-test the performance condition. No awards

have yet been made under the DBNP,

Pension

The directors are not members of a Company pension plan, except for Michael Sharp who is a deferred member
of the Debenhams Executive Pensicn Plzn. He ceased to accrue benefits in that plan on 31 March 2006

The table below shows the pension accrued at the year end;

Transter Transter
value al value al
? Seprember 1 September
Increasein  Agcumulated 2006 007
Increase in accrued toral of accrued of accrued Increase in
accrued pension accrued pension pension transfer
pension during the pension at as at as at value
during the year ([net | September 2 September ) Seplernber during
year of inflanon) 2006 006 007 the year
Cirector £ £ £ i
Michael Sharp 5,795 15 166,350 1,905,117 2,126,606 221,489

Performance graph

The performance graph below show ; the Company’s total shareholder return against the FTSE 350 General
Reiailers Index over the period since a market first existed for the shares to 1 September 2007. This index was
chosen as Debenhams is a constituent and as it is made up of a broad spectrum of retail compatitors in the
major product areas in which the Coimpany trades and includes its major general retail listed competitors.

Total shareholder return since IPO (3 May 2006}

120
I"’.-" o - \\".
100 B Lintuindel . T
80
&
3 May 2006 2 September 2000 1 Seplember 2007
= Cebenhamg ISR —===s FIZE 350 Ge e 31 Retai'ers sy | SA
The share plans - total shares/options outstanding
In total the shares and options outstanding under all the share plans are:
Options outstanding
i
Debenhams Executive Share Option Scheme S ,,Z:E: » 0“5’357')
09.05.06 205 2,498.2%
06.06.06 185 58870
24.11.06 198.25 1,579,029
29.5.07 137.5 443,432
Debenhams Performance Share Plan
09.05.06 r/a 3,188,861
06.06.06 n/a 3113
24.11.06 nfa 2,306,283
29.5.07 nfa 3,097.869

All options were granted at the markel price with the exception of awards granted under the Performance Share

Plan which consist of the right to acquire shares at nil cost.
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The closing mid-market price of the Company's shares on 31 August 2007 was 120.5 pence and ranged from

118.75 pence 10 203.75 pence durir g the period from 2 September 2006 to 1 September 2007.

Directors’ shareholdings

The interests, all of which are beneficial, of the directors (and their immediate families) in the share capital
{excluding options and other share aians) of the Company are as follows:

Al At Al
3 September ¥ September 23 Ociober
Director 2006 2007 2007
John Lovering 6,002,780 6,402,780 6,402,780
Rob Templeman 12,591,638 12,941,638 12,941,638
Chris Woodhouse 11,498,795 11,598,795 11,598,795
Michaet Sharp™ 5,358,791 5,419,549 5,419,549
Adam Crozier 25,641 25,641 25,641
Jonathan Feuer® 127,060 127,060 127,060
Richard Gillingwater 5,128 5,128 5128
Peter Long 51,282 51,282 51,282
Dennis Millard 51,282 51,282 51,282
Paul Pindar 153,846 228,846 228,846
Notes;

1} Includes 5,250,000 shares held by Baroness Employ ee Limited Partnership

21 Jonathan Feuer is the beneficial awner of 127,060 shares in the Company held in the name of Capital Investors 2002 Limited.

On behalf of the board

Richard Gillingwater
Chairman of the Remuneration Comniittee

23 October 2007
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Company law requires the directors 1o prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at the end of the financial year and of the profits

or loss of the Group for that pericd.

The directors are required to prepar: the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue in business.

The directors confirm that the consclidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
tnternational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted for use in the EU, They alse confirm the Company
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards.

The directors confirm that suitable accounting policies have been used and applied consistently except where
required to comply with the new accounting policies. They also confirm that reasenable and prudent
judgements and estimates have been made in preparing the financial statements for the year ended

1 September 2007 and that applicable accounting standards have been followed.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy

at any time the financial position of the Company and the Group and enable thern to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Compan-es Act 1985 and applicable accounting standards, They are also responsible
for the system of internal control, for ;afeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for
taking reasanable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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OF DEBENHAMS PLC

We have audited the Group financial statements of Debenhams plc for the year ended 1 September 2007 which
comprise the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of recognised income and expenses,
consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated cash flow statement and the retated notes. These Group financial
statements have been prepared uncer the accounting poficies set out therein,

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Debenhams plc for the year ended
1 September 2007 and on the information in the directors’' remuneration report that is described as having
been audited.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the annual report and the Group financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union
are set out in the statement of directors' responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the Group financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). This report, incfuding the opinion,
has been prepared for and only for the Company's members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of

the Companies Act 1985 and for no ¢ther purpoese. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or ta any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands
it may come save where expressly ag-eed by our prior consent in writing.

We repott 10 you our opinion as to whether the Group financial statements give a true and fair view and whether
the Group financial statements have heen properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. We alsa repart to you whether in our opinion the information given in the
directors’report is consistent with the Group financial statements,

{in addition we report to you if, in our pinion, we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions
is not disclosed.

We review whether the corporate govarnance statement reftects the Company’s compliance with the nine

provisions of the Combined Code (2003) specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services

Authority, and we report if it does not. We are not required to consider whether the board’s statements on ‘
internal control cover all risks and con:rols, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's corporate

governance pracedures or its risk and control procedures. |

We read other information contained in the annual report and consider whether it is consistent with the audited
Group financial statements. The other information comprises only the Chairman's statement, the Chief Executive's
review, Finance Director’s review, the ditectors' report, the corporate responsibility statement, corporate governance
statement, and the directors’ responsitilities statement. We consider the implications for our report if we become
aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the Group financial statements. Our
responsibilities do not extend to any o:her infarmation.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures in the Group financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the Group financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit 53 as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the Group financial
statements are free from material misst atement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In
forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the Group
financial statements.

Opinion

In aur cpinion:

« the Group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 1 September 2007 and of its profit and cash flows
for the year then ended;

« the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation; and

s the informarfon given in the directors’ report 9 consistent with the Group financial statements.

:;\_{.‘ A N AL AP -'-v\-.ltw. [\_.—\
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP .

Chartered Accountants and Registered fuditors
Leeds

23 October 2007
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For the financial year ended 1 September 2007

For the flnancial year ended:

15eptembar

2 Septerber

2007 2006
Neote Em im
Revenhue s 1,774.4 11,7077
Cost of sales {1,508.4} (1,376.3)
Analysed as:
Cost of sales before exceptional iterr s {1,494.9) (1,376.3)
Exceptional cost of sales 8 (13.5) -
Gross profit 266.0 3314
Distribution costs {47.0) {53.0)
Analysed as;
Distribution costs before exceptional itermns (46.2) {53.0}
Exceptional distribution costs a (0.8} - |
Administrative expenses {39.2) {54.8)
Analysed as:
Administrative expenses before exceptional items (39.2) (40.2)
Exceptional administrative expenses 5 - {14.6)
Operating profit 7 179.8 2236
Analysed as:
Operating profit before exceptional itams 194.1 2382
Exceptional operating items ] {14.3) {14.6}
interest receivable and similar income i 4.2 73
Interest payable and similar charges " {70.8)  (168.8)
Analysed as:
Interest payable and similar charges before exceptional items " (zo.8) (327
Exceptional interest payable and similar charges BN - {36.1}
Profit before taxation 113.2 62.1
Taxation 12 (34.2) {18.4)
Analysed as;
Taxation before exceptional items (36.9) (32.7)
Taxation credit on exceptional items 12 2.7 143
Profit for the financial year attributable to equity shareholders 29 79.0 437
Earnings per share attributable to the equity shareholders {expressed in pence per share}
Pance Pence
pershars per share
Basic ie 9.3 7.4
Diluted 14 9.3 7.4
Underlying earnings per share {non-G/AAP measures) 14 11.9 16.5
Dividends per share {(expressed in pence per share)
Pence Pance
per shars per share
13 38 24

Proposed final dividend per share
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AND EXPENSES

For the financial year ended 1 September 2007
For the financial year ended:
1 Ssptember 2 September
007 2006

Note £m Em
profit for the financial year 79.0 437
Actuarial gain/(loss} recognised in the pension scheme 2 60.7 (3.00
Currency translation 2 0.4 -
Change in the valuation of the available for sate investments 17 121 -
Movement on deferred tax relating 1o the pension scheme 2 (16.5) 0.9
Cash flow hedges
29 17.5 15.8

- net fair value gains (net of tax)
- recycled and adjusted against the initial measurement

of the acquisition cost of inventoy 29 {3.6) (0.2)

- reclassified and reported in net profit 29 - 08
Netincome recognised directly in equity 70.6 14.3
149.6 8.0

Total recognised income attributalile to the equity of the Group
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As at 1 September 2007

1September I 3eptember
2006

2007

Note £m im
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 13 8429 8361
Property, plant and equipment 16 667.7 639.5
Financial assets
- Available for sale investments 17 20.3 8.2
- Derivative financial instruments n 19.7 7.8
Retirement benefit assets b7 87.3 138

15 523 51.1

Deferred tax assets

1,690.2 15565

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Derivative financial instruments
Cash and cash equivalents

244.6 207.8
65.6 63.9
3.0 -
80.4 340

393.6 305.7

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities

- Bank overdraft and borrowings
- Derivative financial instruments
Trade and other payables

Current tax liabilities

Provisions

22
2]
21

r

{104.8) (33.1}
(2.2) {5.3)
(468.6)  (400.4)
(31.6) (18.8)
(2.2 (4.7}

(609.4)  {462.3)

Net current liabilities

{215.8) (1566)

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities

- Bank overdraft and borrowings
- Derivative financial instruments
Deferred tax liabilities

Other non-current liabilities

22
23
25
16

{992.1) (1,097.0

- {2.3)
(111.6) {84.8)
(207.1)  (161.0)

Provisions 27 (0.6) (1.5
(1.311.4) (1,346.6)
Net assets 163.0 533
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital m 0.1 0.1
» 682.9 682.9

Share premium
Merger reserve
Reverse acquisition reserve

1,2009  1,200.9
(1,199.9) (1,199.9}

Hedging reserve b1 15.4 15
Other reserves 2 131 1.0
Retained earnings » (5495} (633.2)

163.0 533

Total equity

The financial statements on pages 50 t3 8% were approved by the board on 23 October 2007 and were signed

on its behalf by:

€ KWoodhouse
Director
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For the financial year ended 1 September 2007

e

el

For the financial year ended:

1 Septembar 2 September
2007 2006

Note £m £m

Cash flows from operating activitizs

Cash generated from operations n 311.2 317.0
Interest received 4.3 7.8
Interest paid (70.5) (147.4)
Tax {paid)/received {17.6) 129
Net cash generated from operating activities 2274 190.3
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equioment (85.2) (88.6)
Purchase of intangible assets {11.5} -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment kS 0.2 0.1

Net cash used in investing activities {96.5) (88.3)
Cash flows from financing activities

Drawdown of term loan facility 21 - 1,0500
Repayment of senior term loan - {1,82756)
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares - 7000
Dividends paid {42.0) -
Share issue costs from 2006 listing - {12.6}
Appropriation - settlement of “B" loan notes - (50.1)
Appropriation - settlement of "C*loan notes (0.2} (22.1}
Receipt of monies for share options 0.2 -

Purchase of shares by Debenhams Retail Employee Trust 2004 ("DRET"} {6.1) 2.0)
Capital element of finance leases (0.4) -
Appropriation by DRET {9.4) (1.1}
Net cash used in financing activitie: (59.9)  (165.5}
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 79.0 (63.7)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year 0.3 64.0

20 79.3 0.3

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year
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For the financial year ended 1 September 2007

I BASIS OF PREPARATION AND GENERAL INFORMATION

Introduction
Debenhams ple {"the Company®) is ¢ public limited company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the
Companies Act 1985 ([Company Mo. 5448421). The address of the registered office is Debenhams ple, 1 Welbeck

Street, London, W1G QAA,

The principal activity of the Company and its subsidiaries {together the “Group” or the “Debenhams Greup”) is
the sale of fashion clothing and accessories, cosmetics and products for use in the home. The Group trades from
department stores and small stare formats in the UK and the Republic of Ireland, on the internet and has
international franchise stores.

The Group prepares its financial state ments for the financial year ending on the nearest Saturday to 31 August
of a given calendar year.

The principal companies within the Group during the financial year ended 1 Septernber 2007 are disclosed
in note 33,

The Company gained admission to the London Stock Exchange on 9 May 2006.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financlal statement: have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {(*IFR5s") {including International Accounting Standards (*IAS™Y) and International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee {*IFRIC”) interpretations and with thase parts of the Companies Act 1985 applicable
to companies reporting under accounting standards as adopted for use in the EU. The consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ended 1 September 2007 and 2 September 2006 have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale investments, derivatives,
share-based payments and pensions.

The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with IFRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions
that affect the reporting amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amount of revenue and expenses during the reporting period, Although these results are based on rmanagement’s
best knowledge of the amounts, events or actions, actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates.

The directors believe that the underlying operating profit before exceptional items and underlying earnings per
share measures provide additional useful information for shareholders on the underlying performance of the
business, and are consistent with how susiness performance is measured internally. it is not a recognised profit
measure under IFR5 and may not be directly comparable with underlying profit measures used by other

companies.
1September 2 September
2007 005

Non-GAAP measure ) im
Underlying operating profits 1941 2382
Leases with fixed annual increments in rent {(note 7} 14.3 149

19 143

Share based payments (note 28)

Underlying operating profit 2109 2674

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Group’s principal accounting policies are described below.

Consolidation
The financial statements comprise a corsolidation of the accounts of Debenhams plc and all its subsidiaries,

Subsidiaries include all entities (including special purpose entities) aver which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated fram “he date an which the Groun has the power to control, They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

On consolidation, inter-company transac tions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the Company and its subsidiaries have been changed
whaere necessary ta ensure consistency viith the policies adopted by the Group.
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2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts
receivable for goods and services previded in the normal course of business, net of staff discounts and the cost
of loyalty scheme points, and is stated net of value added tax and other sales-related taxes.

Revenue on department store sales ¢ f goods and commission on concession sales are recognised when goods
are sold to the customer. Retait sales are usuatly in cash or by credit or debit card. Depantiment customer special
orders and internet sales are recogni: ed when the goods are delivered to the customer. Revenue from gift
vouchers and gift cards sold by the Group are recognised on the redemption of the gift voucher or gift card.

It is the Group's policy to sell its products to the end customer with a right of return. Accumulated experience
is used to estimate and provide for such returns at the time of sale,

Interest recognition
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the interest rate

applicable.

Dividend distribution
A final dividend distribution to the Graup shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group's financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Group shareholders. Interim dividends

are recognised when paid.

Retirement benefit costs

The liability recognised in respect of ¢efined benefit schemes is the present value of the defined obligation
at the balance sheet date less the fair value of the plans assets. The defined benefit abligation is calculated
annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined
benefit obligations is determined by ciscounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of
high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in sterling, and that have terms to maturity which
approximate to the terms of the related pension liabilities.

Actuarial gains and losses are recogniced in full in the perlod in which they occur. They are recognised outside
the income statement and presented in the staternent of recognised income and expenses,

Past service costs are recognised immediately in the income statement, untess the changes in pension plans are
conditional on the employees remaining in service for a specified period of time (the vesting period). In this case,
the past service costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.

The Group's contributions to stakehalcer pension schemes are charged to the income statement as they fall due.
Differences between contributions payable in the pericd and contributions actually paid are shown as either
accruals or prepayments in the balance sheet.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-hased payments to certain employees. A fair value for the equity settled
share awards is measured at the date cf grant. The Group measures the fair value using the valuation technigue
most appropriate to value each class of award, either a Black-Scholes, Monte Carlo or Binomial pricing model.

The fair value determined at the grant Jate is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting peried, based on
the Group's estimate of the shares that will eventually vest and adjust for the effect of nen-market-based vesting

conditions.

Exceptional items
Exceptional items are events or transactions which, by virtue of their size or nature, have been disclosed in order

to improve areader's understanding of the financial statemenis.

Foreign exchange

a) Functional and presentational currency

ttemns included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency

of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates {“the functional currency”). The consclidated
financial statements are presented in st2rling, which is the Group’s functicnal and presentational currency.

Section 4 Financial statements and notes
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For the financial year ended 1 Septemser 2007

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

b) Group companies
The results and financial position of 11 Group entities that have a functional currency different from the

presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:
« assets and liabilities are translatec at the closing rate at the date of the balance sheet;

« income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rate {unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative offect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the transaction); and

« all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

¢} Transactions and balances

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currency at average
monthly rates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterding at
the rates ruling at the balance sheet dlate. Differences on exchange are taken to the income statement.

Taxation
Taxation expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on taxable profits for the financial period using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income
statement because it excludes items of income or expenses that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductibte,

Deferred tax is provided in full, using ~he liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and thei- carrying amounts for financial reportisg purposes. If deferred tax arises
from initial recognition of an asset or "iability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred tax s
determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related dzferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probabile that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on tempeorary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the
timing of the reversals of the temporary differences is controlfed by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Leased assets

a) Finance leases
Leases of assets which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as

finance leases. Finance |eases are class fied as a financial liability and measured at amortised cost. Finance leases
are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased property, plant and
equipment or the present value of the minimum lease payments and depreciated over the period of the lease.
The resulting lease obligations are included in liabilities.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve
a constant rate of interest on the rema ning balance of the liability.

b) Operating leases
All other leases are classified as operating leases. Rentals payable under operating leases, net of lease incentives,

are charged to the income statement ¢n a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Where property lease contracts contain guaranteed fixed minimum incrementat rental payments, the totat
committed cost is determined and is calculated and amortised on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease.
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2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Intangible assets

a) Goodwill
Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of

the Group’s share of the net identifiakle assets of the acquired subsidiary. Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries
is included in intangible assets, Gooduill is not amortised, but tested for impairment annually, or when trigger
events occur, and carried at cost less : ccumulated impairment losses.

b) Other intangible assets
Acquired licences and trademarks are capitalised at cost and are amortised on a straight-line basis over their

useful life, not to exceed ten years.

Internally generated software costs, where it is clear that the software developed is technically feasible and will
be completed and that the software generated will generate economic benefit, are capitalised as an intangible
asset. The software is amortised on a straight-line basis over its usefut ecanomic life, being three to eight years.

Property, plant and equipment
It is the Group's policy to hold propert.es at cost, subject to the requirement to test assets for impairment.

Depreciation is provided at the following rates per annum to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment,
less residual value, on a straight-line basis from the date on which they are brought into use:

Freehoid land Not depreciated

Freehold buildings 1 per cent

Long leaseholds including landlords' fictures and fittings 1 per cent or life of lease if shorter
Short leaseholds including landlords’ fixtures and fittings Life of lease

Retail fixtures and fittings 5 - 20 percent

Office equipment 10 per cent

Computer equipment 164 - 334 per cent

Vehicles 25 per cent or life of lease

The assets’ useful economic lives and rasidual values are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each financial
year end.

Gains and losses on disposal are deterrnined by comparing proceeds with carrying ameunt. These are included
in the income statement.

Included within property, plant and eqJipment are assets in the course of construction. These assets comprise
stores, which are under construction, including costs directly attributable to bring the asset into use, Transfers to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment are made when the store opens. No depreciation is
provided on stores or other assets under construction.

Impairment testing
Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment and whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying anount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped by store, which is the loviest level for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash

generating units).

Available-for-sale investments
The Group classifies its investments as available-for-sale financial assets in accordance with 1AS 39 “Financial

Instruments: Recognition and Measurernent”.

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative assets. They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date, Investments are
recognised at fair value plus any transaction costs. If a fair value for an investment cannot be reliably measured,
due to the variability in the range of reasc nable fair value estimates being significant, or the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range not being able to be reasonably assessed, that investment will be carried at cost.

An impairment test is performed annually on the carrying value of each investment, An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the assets carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount.
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2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value using the retail method and represent goods

for resale. Concession stocks are nat included within stocks held by the Group.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables, defined as [oan: and receivables in accordance with IAS 39, are recorded initially at fair value

and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methed for any doubtful amounts.

A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. The amount of the provision
s the difference between the assets carrying amount and the present value of future cash flaws discounted at
the effective interest rate. The movement in the provision is recognised in the income statement,

Any other trade receivabiles are rec ognised at their original amount Jess an allowance for any doubtful amouants.
An allowance is made when collection of the full amount is no longer considered probable,

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include; cash in hand, deposits held at the bank and other short-term liquid
investments with original maturities of approximately three months or less. Bank overdrafts are shown within

borrowings in current liabilities.

Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently

stated at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest

method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are facility costs are recognised initially at fair value, and are amortised over the term

of the facilities at a constant rate on the committed amount of the facility.

Trade payabies
Trade payables, defined as financial liabilities in accordance with IAS 39, are recognised initially at fair value and

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Any other trade payables are statec at cost.
All of the trade payables are non-in-erest bearing.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Groug has a present legal or canstructive ahligation as a result of past

events and where it is maore likely th an not an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and
the amount can be refiably estimated. Provisions are measured at management's best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incrementat costs directly attributakle to the issue of new shares in equity are shown as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Derivatives
The derivative instruments used by the Group to manage its interest rate and currency risk are interest rate

swaps, interest rate caps and forward currency contracts.

Derivatives are initially recognised a- fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at fair value. The method of recagnising the resulting gain or loss depends on
whether the derivative is designatec as an effective hedging instrument and the nature of the iterm being
hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of highly probable forecast transactions (¢cash flow

hedges).
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2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
Derivatives are recognised using trade date accounting.

At the inception of the transaction the Group documents the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
iterns as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The
Group also documents its assessment, both a1 the inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives
that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash {lows of hedged items.

i} Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the changes in fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges are recognised in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately
in the refevant line of the income statement which will be affected by the underlying hedged itern.

Amounts accumulated in equity ate recycled and adjusted against the initial measurement of the underlying
hedged item when the underlying hedged item is recognised on the balance sheet or in the income statement.

When a hedged instrument expires, is sold or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time is immediately recognised in the relevant line of the
income statement which will be af‘ected by the original underlying hedged item. When a forecasted transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or [oss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred
to the relevant line of the income staternent which would have been affected by the forecasted transaction.

it} Derivatives that do not qualify “or hedge accounting
Certain derivatives do not qualify for hedge accounting. Changes in fair value of any derivative instruments that
do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immaediately in the income statement.

i) Embedded derivatives
Where the risks and characteristics of derivatives embedded in other contracts are not closely related to those

of the contracts, and the whele contract is not carried at fair value with gains or fosses reported in the income
statement, the derivative is separatec! from that host contract and measured at fair value, with fair value movements
reflected in the account in the income statement which will be affected by the underlying host contract.

New standards and interpretations

During the year, the international Azcounting Standards Board (“IASB") and International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee {"IFRIC"} issued the following standards and interpretations which are effective for
annual accounting periods beginning on or after the stated effective date. These standards and interpretations
are not effective for and have not been applied in the preparation of this financial information:

Effective date

International Accounting Standards (IFRS/IAS)
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
IFRS 8 Operating Segments

1 January 2007
1 January 2009

IFRIC Interpretations

IFRIC 10 Interim financial reporting and impairment
tFRIC1T  IFRS 2 - Group and treasury share transactions
IFRIC12  Service concession arranijements

t November 2006
1 March 2007
1 January 2008

IFRIC 13 Customer loyalty prograrime 1 July 2008
IFRIC 14 |AS 19 -~ The limit on Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding requirzment and their Interaction 1 January 2008

Othar than in ralation to IFRIC 14, which the Group is currently considering the implications of, the adoption
of these standards and interpretations is not expected to have a material impact on the Group operations.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

a) Financial risks and treasury m anagement
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

+ funding and liquidity risk;
« creditrisk;
« foreign exchange risk; and

+ cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group's averall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. The Group uses derivative financial

instruments to hedge certain risk e xposures,

The board has established an overall treasury paticy and has approved procedures and authority levels within
which the treasury function {"Group Treasury”) must operate. The Finance Director conducts a treasury review
at least menthly and the Treasury Committee meets and performs their review on a quarterly basis. The board
receives regular reports covering tieasury activities. Treasury policy is to manage risks within an agreed
framework whilst not taking specu ative positions,

The policies and strategies for managing these risks are summarised as follows:

i} Funding and liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding |
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to |
the dynamic nature of the underlying business, Group Treasury aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping |

committed credit lines available,

The Group finances its operations by a combination of retained profits, debt finance and |eases. The objective
Is to ensure that there is sufficient cash or working capital facilities to meet the cash flow reguiremnents of the

Group for its current business plan,

ii) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. Sales to retail customers are made in cash, cheque
or by credit and debit cards, wholesale sales of products to franchisees are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history. Derivativ.2 counterparties and cash transactions are limited to high credit-quality
financial institutions. The Group has paolicies that limit the amount of credit exposure to any one financial
institution. Cash surpluses are placed on deposit for no longer than three months and only with financial
counterparties with a short-term cre dit rating of A1, P1 or better.

iii} Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s functional currency is sterling. The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the euro and the US dollar.
Foreign exchange risk arises from fu:ure commarcial transactions relating to imports and trading in the Republic

of Ireland.

To manage the foreign exchange transaction risk, entities in the Group use forward currency contracts
transacted by Group Treasury. Foreic n exchange risk arises when commercial transactions are denominated

in a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency. Group Treasury is responsible for managing the
exposure in each foreign cusrency by using extemal forward currency contracts with a setlement of 18 months
or less, up to 100 per cent of the first three months forecasted purchases, up to 80 per cent of the next

12 months are hedged. The Group does not hedge either economic exposure or the transiation exposure
arising from the profits, assets and linbilities of non-sterling business,
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

iv) Cash flow interest rate risk
The Group's interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. The Group's current borrowing facilities are

issued at variable rates that expo: e the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

The interest exposure of the Group is managed within the constraints of the Group's business plan and the
financial covenants under its facilities. The Group's exposure to floating-rate interest is within financial covenants
and planned expectation. The aim is to reduce exposure to the effect of interest rate movements and to take
advaniage of low interest rates by hedging an appropriate amount of interest rate exposure whilst maintaining
the flexibility ta minimise early termination costs. The Group's interest rate hedging strategy is to achieve

a target fixed percentage of 75 per cent, with a 15 per cent tolerance (60 - 90 per cent).

The impact of movements in interast rates is managed through the use of floating rate debt and interest rate
swaps and caps. These are usually matched with specific loans for a period of time up to their maturity or call date.
The Group's main interest rate expoasure is from the financing rate loans under the credit facility.

b} Fair value estimates
The fair value of interest rate swags is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The fair
value of forward currency contrac's has been determined based on market forward currency exchange rates at

the balance sheet date.

The fair values of short-term deposits, loans and overdrafts with a maturity of less than one year are assumed to
approximate to their book values, In the case of the Group's loans due in more than one year, the fair value of
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rates avail: ble to the Group.

Where market values are not avaitable, fair values of financial assets and liabilities have been calculated by
discounting expected future cash tlows at prevailing interest rates and by applying year-end exchance rates.

4 SEGMENTAL REPORTING

Based on an analysis of risks and returns, the directors consider that the Group has only one identifiable business
segment, retailing.

All material operations of the Grou? are carried out in the UK and therefore no geographical segmentation is
disclosed. The group operates bott an internet and international division, both of which remaln immaterial for

the purposes of segmental reporting.

Consequently. the Group has considered business segmentation as the primary segmentation, with
a single separately repartable segment, retailing.
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For the financial year ended 1 Septamber 2007
5 GROSS TRANSACTION VALUE

Revenue from concessions is required to be shown on a net basis, being the commission received rather than
the gross value achieved by the concessionaire on the sale. Management believe that gross transaction value,
which presents revenue an a gross basis before adjusting for concessions, staff discounts and the cost of loyalty
scheme points, represents a good guide to the value of the overall activity of the Group.

1 Septermnber 7 September
2007 2006

£m im

2,305.6 21929

Gross transaction value

6 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will,

by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumi;tances. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carryiag amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial period are

discussed below.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests whether goodwill has suffered any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 2, The recoverable amount of cash-generating units is determined based on a value-in-use calculation.
The method requires an estimate of future cash flows and the selection of a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the net present value of the cash flows, Actual outcomes could vary.

Taxation
The Group is subject to income taxes in the UK and the Republic of Ireland. At each financial period end,

judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes. The Group recagnises liabilities for
anticipated tax issues based on the best estimates at the balance sheet date. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from th2 amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
corperation tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity settled shaie-based payments to certain employees, The fair value determined at the
grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. The fair value is calculated using the
appropriate fair value model with the estimated level of vesting being reviewed annually by management,

The key assumptions of this model : re set out in note 28.

Pension liability

The Group’s defined benefit schemes’ pension liability, which is assessed each peried by actuaries, is based
on key assumptions including returr on plan assets, discount rates, martality rates, inflation, futuce salary
and pension costs. These assumptions, individually or collectively, may be different to actual outcomes.

Other key assumptions for pension cbligations are based in part on current market conditions; additionai
information relating to this is discfosad in note 24.

Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment
The Group estimates the useful life of property, plant and equipment and reviews this estimate at each financial

period end. The Group also tests for impairment whenever a trigger event occurs,
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7 ANALYSIS OF COSTS BY NATURE

| Septembar 2 September
2006

2007
Em im

The following items have been included in arriving at operating profit:
The amounts of inventory writter down during the financial year 14.8 11.0
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 870.4 818.4
Employment costs (note 9) 293.2 276.2
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {note 16}
- owned assets 84.4 85.3
- assets held under finance leases 13 0.7
Accelerated depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 16);
- owned assets 7.7 -
- assets held under finance lease s 0.5 -
Amortisation of intangible assets {note 15) 7.0 5.1
Loss/(profit} on disposal of:

0.6 {on

- property, plant and equipment
Operating lease rentals:

- property 13348 130.2

- other 1.4 1.6

Fareign exchange gains (5.9) (2.6

Repairs and maintenance expendilure on property, plant and equipment 12.1 124
0.3 1.1

Auditors’ remuneration

Operating lease costs and incentives

The amount charged to the income statement in respect of operating lease casts and incentives for the Group
has changed significantly under IFR!S, The adverse impact on reported profit relating to the treatment of leases
with annual fixed increments in rer t and the accounting for both rent free periods and developers’ contributions

is as follows:
1 September 7 September
2007 2006

£m im
Leases with fixed annual increments in rent 14.1 14.9
Rent free periods 1.3 1.6
Developers' contributions 7.4 6.1
Reduction in operating profit resulting from accounting in accordance with
JAS 17 “Leases” and SIC 15 "Operating leases - incentives” 22,8 22.6

Services provided by the Group's auditor and network firms
During the year the Group obtained the following services from the Group's auditor as detailed below:

1S5sptember 2 September
100 2006
im £m

Audit services

Fees payable to Company auditors for the audit of parent company
and consolidated accounts

Non-audit services

Fees payable to Company auditors ad its associates for other services
- The audit of Company’s subsidiar.es pursuant to legislation 0.1 0.1
-~ Other assurance services 0.1 13

0.1 0.1

Included within other assurance services is £24,000 (2006: £22,000) relating to the defined benefit pension
scheme audits.

Other assurance services comprise a -eview of inter-company loans and distributable reserves {2006: advisary
work relating to the Initial Public Offering in 2006 of which £0.4 million has been reflected in capitalised share
premium cost). It is cost effective for vhe Group that such services are provided by its auditors in view of their
knowledge of the Group's affairs going back a number of years.
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For the financial year ended 1 Septzmber 2007

8 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Exceptional items are events or transactions that fafl within the activities of the Group and which by virtue of
their size or incidence have been disclosed in order to improve a reader's understanding of the financial
statements,

T September 2 September
2007 2006

m im
Operating exceptional items
Admission to the London Stock Exchange - 46
Other exceptional item - 100
Acquisition and reorganisation of iteres in the Republic of Ireland 14.3 -
Total operating exceptional itemts 14,3 14.6
Non-operating exceptional items
Write off of capitalised debt costs on refinancing - 335
Interest on refinancing (note 11) - 26
Total non-operating exceptional items - 36.1
14.3 50.7

Total exceptional items before tex

Financia! year ended 1 Septembur 2007

Acquisition and reorganisation of stores in the Repubtic of Ireland

On 12 September 2006 the Group acquired the business and assets of nine stores from Roches Stores, the total
consideration on acquisition of the stores was £30.0 million, Following the acquisition, the Group assigned the
existing Dublin store lease {Jervis Street} which will result in the closure of the store after the year end.

The acquisition of the stores, assignment of the lease and subsequent closure of the Jervis Street store has
created an accelerated depreciation charge of £6.3 million and redundancy costs of £4.6 million. Marketing,
travel, legal and integration costs a nounted to £3.4 million. Integrated costs include £0.8 million of costs which
related to the distribution centre and have been charged 1o distribution costs, all other costs relate to the stores

and have been charged 10 cost of sales.

Financial year ended 2 September 2006

Admission to the London Stock Exchange
Costs relating to the Company's adinission to the Londen Stock Exchange on 9 May 2006 include taxation and

restructuring advice, legal and professional fees, bonuses and other advisory services, relating to printing costs,
marketing and public relations, all ¢ f which related to the admission.

QOther exceptional item
Foliowing admission to the London Stock Exchange the restricted cash held by DRET was distributed to the

beneficiaries of the trust in accordance with the trust rules,

Interest on refinancing
On 30 May 2006 the Group refinancad its debt, which resulted in the repayment of the senior credit facilities.

As a result of this repayment the Group wrote-off all unamaortised debt issue costs associated with the senior
credit facility.

Additional interest relating to the early repayment of the senior ¢redit facitity was paid on refinancing together
with the cost associated with the restructuring of the interest rate swaps.
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9 EMPLOYEES

t Septamnbar
puldg

2 September
2006

Em £Em
Wages and salaries 265.1 2340
Social security costs 21.2 18.5
Pension costs 1.4 6.2
Share-based payments (note 28) 1.9 14.3
Short-term empioyee benefits 3.6 31
Total employment costs 293.2 276.2
Number Number

Average number of employees:
Full time 8,936 8,358
Part time 17,554 16,358
Total 26,490 24,716

Included in pension above is £0.4 million (2006: £0.3 million) of contributions payable to key management’s

personal pension plans.

Information concerning directors temuneration, interest in shares and share options are included in the
remuneration report on pages 41 to 47, which forms part of these financial statements.

Key management compensation

1 Septemnber
2007

2 September
2006

im m

Salaries and short-term benefits 24 33
Post-employment benefits 0.4 0.2
Share-based payments 0.3 3.2
3.1 6.7

Members of the operational board are deemed to be key management. It is the operational board who have
responsibility for planning and controlling activities of the Group. The operational board consists of six members

{2006: six members).

10 INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND SIMILAR INCOME

1September
2007

2 September
2006

£m im
Interest on bank deposits 4.2 7.3
11 INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR CHARGES
1 Septamber 2 Sentember
2007 2006
im £m
Interest payable and similar chargjes
Bank loans and overdrafts 65.1 1247
Amortisation of issue costs on loans (note 22) 3.9 5.1
Interest payable on finance leases 1.8 35
Interest payable before exceptional items 70.8 1327
Exceptional items - interest payabie and similar charges
Unamortised issue costs written off on repayment of the senier term loan (note 8) - 335
Premium on early settlernent of the senior term loan (note 8) - 2.1
Cast of restructuring the interest swagp portfolia (note 8) - 0.5
Exceptional items - interest payable and similar charges - 36.1
Interest payable and similar charges after exceptional items 70.8 168.8
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12 TAXATION

Analysis of tax charge in the financial year
1September 2 Seplember
2007

2006
Em im

Current tax:
UK carporation tax charge on profit for the year 333 9.1
Adjustments in respect of prior periods (2.4) (3.6)
Current tax expense 30.9 55
Deferred taxation:
Origination and reversal of timing differences (4.6} 0.9
Pension cost relief in excess of pension cost credit/charge 6.1 80
Adjustments in respect of prior pe -iods -~ pensicn ¢osts 21 -
Adjustments in respect of prior pe -iods (0.3} 40
Deferred tax expense (note 25) 33 129

342 184

Tax charge in the financial year

FA 2007 announced a reduction to the standard rate of corporation tax to 28 per cent with effect from April 2008
as this was enacted prior to the ba ance sheet date. The closing deferred tax for assets and liabilities has been
calculated at the reduced rate with the movement being charged or credited to the income statemant except
where the original asset or liability was created in equity.

The tax for the year is higher (2006 lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK (30 per cent).

The differences are explained below:
I September 2 September
2006

2007
£im £m

Profit on ordinary activities befoie tax 113.2 62.1
Profit on ordinary activities at stanclard rate of corporation tax
in the UK of 30 per cent 34.0 18.6
Effects of:
Income not subject to tax (0.1} (1.0)
Expenses not deductible for tax puiposes 0.1 1.5
Overseas items 2.4 {1.1}
Adjustments in relation to prior periods {0.6) 0.4
Non qualifying depreciation 1.3 -

0.2 -

Losses carried back to prior years
Effect on deferred taxation of the change in corporation tax (2.2} -
Contribution to employee share opiions .1 -
Fixed asset disposals 0.2 -
34.2 18.4

Tax charge for the financial year

Tax relating to exceptional items as detailed in note 8 and included in the above tax charge amounted to:

1September 7 Sepiember
2007

1006
im £m

Tax credit relating to:
Operating exceptional items 2.7 35
Interest exceptional items - 108
2.7 14.3

13 DIVIDENDS

The directors are proposing a final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 1 September 2007 of 3.8 pence
per share (2006: 2.4 pence per shate!, which will absorh an estimated £32.6 million (2006: £20.6 million) of
shareholders' funds. It will be paid on 4 January 2008 to shareholders who are on the register of members at

close of business on 7 December 2007.

An interim dividend of 2.5 pence per share was paid on 4 july 2007 {2006 nil) which absorbed £21.5 million
{(2006: £nil) of shareholders’ funds.
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14 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculatad by dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the
weighted average number of ordir ary shares outstanding during the year.

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to assume
conversion of all ditutive potential ordinary shares. The Group has one class of dilutive potential ordinary shares,
those share options granted to emoloyees where the exercise price is ess than the market price of the
Company's ordinary shares during the year.

Basic and diluted earnings per share

1 September 2 Seplember
2007 2006

Basle Diluted Basic Diluted
Em £m £m Im
Profit for the financial year after taxation 79.0 79.0 43.7 437
Number Number Number Number
m m m m
Weighted average number of shares 859.0 859.0 614.4 614.4
Shares held by ESOP {weighted) {11.3) {11.3) (25.6) {25.6)
Shares issuable {weighted) - 2.4 - 5.6
Adjusted weighted average number of shares 847.7 850.1 588.8 5944
Pence Pence Pence Pence
per share pershars per share per share
Earnings per share 9.3 9.3 7.4 7.4

Underlying earnings per share
The underlying earnings per share reflects the underlying performance of the business compared with the prior

year and is calculated by dividing underlying earnings by the number of shares in issue at the year end.

1 Saptember 2 September
2007

2006

£m im

Profit for the financial year 79.0 43.7
Exceptional items 14.3 50.7
Leases with fixed annual increment: in rent 14.1 14.9
Share-based payments 1.9 14.3
Interest adjustments - 58.3
Adjustrment to tax charge to reflect the above items 16.9) {40.5)
Underlying profit for the year 102.4 141.4
Number Number

m m

Issued share capital at 1 Septembaor 2007 and 2 September 2006 859.0 859.0
Penca Pence

per share pet share

11.9 16.5

Underlying earnings per share

Underlying profit is used by management as a measure of profitability within the Group. It Is defined as
operating profit before exceptional items, the impact of leases with fixed annual increments in rent and charges

relating to share-based payments.

In 2006, the Group underwent signif cant re-financing and therefore the statutory interest and related financing
costs are not comparable year-on-year. The above adjustment for interest assumes that the 2006 re-financing,
which took place at the date of admission, was effective at the beginning of the year ended 2 September 2006
and that the proceeds of shares issued on admission (£700 million) were available at that date,

The comparison of performance year-on-year has also been made cornplex by costs incurred as a result of the
Company's admission to the London Stack Exchange on 9 May 2006, which increased the number of shares
issued by the Company. The underlying earnings per share uses the capital structure as at 1 September 2007
to eliminate the effect of these changes.
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15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Licences and
Goodwll trademarks Software Total
Em £m fm im

Cost
At 4 September 2005 811.7 0.3 27.0 83%9.0
Additions - - 11.3 113
At 2 September 2006 811.7 0.3 38.3 8503
Additions 5.7 2.8 53 138
Disposals - (0.2) - 0.2)
At 1 September 2007 817.4 29 43.6 863.9
Accumulated amortisation
At 4 September 2005 - 0.1 9.0 9.1
Charge for the year - Q.1 5.0 5.1
At 2 September 2006 - 0.2 14.0 14.2
Charge for the year - 0.1 6.9 70
Disposals - (0.2} - {0.2)
At 1 September 2007 - 0.1 209 21.0
Net book amount
At 1 September 2007 817.4 2.8 22.7 842.9
At 2 September 2006 g7 0.1 243 836.1
At 3 September 2005 811.7 0.2 18.0 8299
Goodwill
On 12 September 2006 the Group acquired the business and assets of nine stores based in the Republic of Irefand
from Roches Stores, an unlimited company incorporated and registered in Ireland. The consideration for this
acquisition was £30.0 million, wih £20.5 million payable on completion, £3.4 million payable on the first

anniversary and £6.1 million on the secand anniversary of completion.

All tangible assets acquired have been recognised at their respective fair values. The fair values of tangible fixed
assets, stock and receivables acquired were £13.4 million, £10.3 million and £0.6 million respectively.

The residual excess over the net assets acquired has been recognised as goodwill and amounts to £5.7 mitlion.
The goodwill represents the intrinsic value to the Greup of being able 1o trade the Debenhams brand in these

stores.
1

Licences and trademarks
The Group acquired the "5t George by Duffer” trademark during the year, The total consideration for the

trademark was £2.8 million,

Software development costs
The computer software capitalisad of £5.3 million (2006: £11.3 million) principaily relates to internally developed

application software, Externally Jeveloped application software at 1 September 2007 amounted to £1.0 million
{2006: £1.2 million).

Amortisation on the Group's intangible assets has been charged to the income statement as follows for the

financial years ended:
1 September 2 September
2007 2006

£m £m

Included within:
- cost of sales 4.6 3.5
- distribution costs 0.3 0.2
- administrative expenses 2.1 1.4
7.0 5.1

Impairment test for goodwill
The goedwill arising on the acquisition of Debenhams Group Holdings Limited by Baroness Group Holdings

Limited on 4 Decemnber 2003, is not being amortised but reviewed on an annual basis or more frequently if there
are indications that goodwill may be impaired. Goodwill for Debenhams Group Holdings Limited represents the
goodwill for a portfolio of sites, ~hich has been allocated to groups of Cash-Generating Units (“CGUs") on a
regional basis within the UK according to the level at which management monitors that goodwill.
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For the purposes of this impairment review, the recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These ci sh flow projections are based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated based an the assumption of
no growth after year five. The grawth rates do not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the retail sector
in which the CGUs operate. The pre-tax discount rate used to calculate the value in use was 2.5 per cent (2006:
8.5 per cent} and reflects the spec fic risks in the retail business.

Management determined the grous margin for each CGU based on performance and its expectations for the
market development. The weighted average growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts included in
indusiry reports. The discount rates used are pre-tax and risk-free rates.

As at 1 Septernber 2007, no impaitment of goodwill has been required (2006: £nil).

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT i

Land and buildings

Short

leasehold Vehicles,

Lon fixtures  fintures and
Cost Freehg:g leasehg:: and m"r.;_?r: equipmirr: Tc;::‘l
At 4 September 2005 S54.4 9.6 264.9 336.0 664.9
Additions - - 131 62.4 755
Disposals and write-offs - - (0.1} {19.0) {19.1)
At 2 September 2006 54.4 9.6 2779 3794 7213
Additions - - 19.6 103.2 122.8
Disposals and write-offs - - - (49.3) (49.3}
At 1 September 2007 54.4 9.6 297.5 4333 794.8
Accumulated depreciation
At 4 September 2005 0.1 0.1 31 11.6 14.9
Charge for the year 04 0.3 11.6 73.7 86.0
Disposals and write-offs - - {(0.1) (19.0) (19.1)
At 2 September 2006 0.s 04 146 66.3 81.8
Charge for the year 04 0.2 121 73.0 857
Accelerated depreciation 20 - 56 0.6 8.2
Disposals and write-offs - - - (48.6) {48.6)
At 1 September 2007 29 0.6 323 91.3 127.1
Net book value
At 1 September 2007 51.5 9.0 265.2 342.0 667.7
At 2 September 2006 539 9.2 263.3 3131 639.5
At 3 September 2005 543 9.5 261.8 3244 650.0

The accelerated depreciation arises as a result of the closure of Jervis Street, as stated in note 8, and as a result
of a number of store re-sites which will occur after the year end.

Assets in the course of construction ir cluded in property, plant and equipment at the financial year end are as follows:

15sptember 2 September
1007 2006

Em im
Assets in the course of construction 63.3 205
Property, plant and equipment inclu des the following assets held under finance leases:

Vehicles, Freehold and
fixtures ang long leasehold
eqinpraent tand and buildings

1Saptamiber 2 Septemnber 1 Saptember 2 September

2007 2006 2007 2006

Em £m im Em

Cost 4.8 2.7 59.2 59.2
Aggregate depreciation based on ccst (2.1) (1.1) (3.2) (2.4
Net book value 2.7 1.6 56.0 56.8

The buildings held under finance lease obligations are secured by a fixed charge over the corresponding Group
properties.
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17 FINANCIAL ASSETS - AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENTS

£m
At 2 September 2006 8.2
Market value uplift 121
At 1 September 2007 203

In 2004 the Group acquired 10 per cent of the issued shares of Ermes Department Stores Limited (“Ermes”}.
Ermes gained admission to the Cyprus Stock Exchange during 2007 and at 1 September 2007 the Group
continues to hold 10 per cent of tt e issued share capital, being 17,500,000 shares. The market value of the shares
at 1 September 2007 was £16.2 million. As ai 3 September 2006 Ermes was a private company, the fair value of
the shares was deemed not to be significantly different to the historic cost and the investment was therefore
carried at a cost of £4.2 million. Errnes is a company which is registered and trades in Cyprus.

The Group holds 100 per cent of the (2006: £4.0 million) “A” ordinary shares in BF Properties (No.4) Limited, which
cost £3.0 million and have a fair value of £4.1 million (2006: £4.0 million). These shares carry no voting rights. The
directors consider that the ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party of BF Properties (No.4) Limited is
The British Land Company plc.

BF Properties {No.4) Limited was incorporated in Great Britain. The address of its principal place of business
is 10 Cornwall Terrace, Regent’s Park, London.

BF Properties (No.4) Limited year end is 31 March and it continues to report in accordance with UK GAAP.
The aggregate amaunt of the capital and reserves of BF Properties (No.4) Limited at 31 March 2006 was
£141,016,943. The profit of BF Properties (No.4) Limited for the year ended 31 March 2006 was £616,920.
This is the most recent set of published results for the company.

The investment in BF Properties {N2.4} Limited has been calculated by discounting the future expected proceeds
from the investment at the prevailing interest rate of 5.9 per cent.

There were no disposals or impairment provisions on available for sale financial assets during the years shown.

18 INVENTORIES

1 Septamber  ? September
1007 2006
£m im

Items held for resale 244.86 207.8

Write downs of inventories are disclosed in note 7.

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

1 Septambar 2 September
2007 2006

£m im

Trade receivables 26.8 215
Other receivables 1.3 05
Prepayments and accrued income 37.5 41.9
65.6 63.9

Debenhams Annual report and accounts 2007 70 Section 4 Financial statements and notes



20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

1 September 2 September

1007 2006

£m tm

Cash at bank and in hand 22,2 17.2
Short-term bank depaosits 58.2 16.8
80.4 34.0

1 September
007

2 September
2006

Effective interest rate on short-terr bank deposits (per cent)
Average maturity rate (days)

5.9
53

46
359

Included within short-term bank d2posits at 1 September 2007 is £1.1 miilion (2006: £10.3 million) of restricted

cash which is held by the DRET.

Cash and bank overdrafts include the following for the purpeoses of the cash flow statement:

1 Seprember 2 Septemnber

2007 2006

£m fm

Cash and cash equivalents 80.4 34.0
Bank overdrafts and revolving cred t facility (note 22} (1.1} (33.7)
79.3 0.3

21 TRADE AND OTHER FAYABLES

1Septembaer

2 Septernber
2006

Current “S.‘.' im
Trade payables 251.4 198.9
Other payables 78.1 748
Other taxation and soclal security 27.9 29.1
Accruals 109.7 96.1
Deferred income 1.5 1.5

468.6 400.4

22 BANK OVERDRAFT AND BORROWINGS

1 Septamber
2007

2 September
2006

£m im

Bank loans and overdrafts (note 20) 1.1 1.7
Term loan facility 1,050.2 10504
Revolving credit facility ("RCF") (note 20} - 320
Lease obligations 57.8 62.2
1,109.1 1.146.3
Less: unamortised issue ¢osts {12.2) (16.2)
1,096.9 1,130.1
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22 BANK OVERDRAFT AND BORROWINGS CONTINUED

1 Septembar 2 September

Maturity of debt s e

Amounts falling due:

Irn one year or less or on demand 104.8 331

In more than one year but not mote than two years 99.8 98.8

In more than two years but not mcre than five years 854.5 952.2
37.8 46.0

In more than five years

1,096.9 1,130
(104.8) (33.1})

992.1 1.097.0

Amounts falling due within one year

Amounts falling due after one year

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet dates were as follows:
1September 2 Septemnber
0 2006

2007
LY %
Bank loans and overdrafts 6.75 8.75
Term loan facility 6.44 6.09
RCF N/A 6.03
6.20 5.1

Lease obligations

The Group credit facility includes a term loan of £1.05 billion and an RCF of £0.25 billion. The term loan facility
is repayable in instalments with the loan being repaid in full by 2011. Interest rates are based on LIBOR and
denominated in sterling. The RCF is multicurrency with interest rates based on the relevant inter-bank market rate.

Issue costs of £17.1 millien, which mainly relate to facility costs, were incurred primarily on utilisation of the
credit facilities during 2006 and are being amortised over the term of the facilities at a constant rate based on
the committed amount of the term loan. The amartisation charge relating to the issue costs of the credit facilities
for the year ended 1 September 2807 was £3.9 million (2006: £1.0 million). The amortisation of issue costs during
the period to May 2006 relating to the previous senior credit facility was £4,1 million.

i) Finance lease obligations

In 1988 a number of properties with: a market value of £42.7 million were sold to certain banks on 125 year
leases at peppercorn rentals. The Group subsequently entered into full tenant and landlord repairing sub-leases
for 125 years. At the year end the following amounts remained outstanding under the |gases:

1September 2 September
2067 2006

£m £m

Principal 42.7 427
Accrued interest 12.6 15.8
55,3 58.5

Outstanding liability

The rentals payable are structured so as o give the lessors a financing return linked to LIBOR in the first 25 years
and, in the following 10 years, a LIBCR linked return together with the repayment of capital. Thereafter, market
rentals are payable subject to revisicn every 5 years. In the early years, the amounts payable are below LIBOR
and in the later years are in excess o LIBOR. The financing costs are, however, allocated over the 25-year period
50 as to achieve an annual funding cast which is consistent with LIBOR. The Group has limited rights up to the
25th year of the leases to vary the te'ms of the leases to buy out the rental obligations based on the properties
original sales proceeds. The leases arz reflected in fixed assets at their cost to the Group. These property lease
obligations are secured by a fixed charge over the corresponding Group properties,

’

Other lease obligations relate mainly to computer software and vehicles leased under hire purchase contracts,
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22 BANK OVERDRAFT AND BORROWINGS CONTINUED

i} Maturity of finance leases

The minimum lease payments under finance leases fail due as follows:

} Saptember 2007

2 September 2006

Property Other Prapernty Other
leases leases leases leases
im £m £m £m

Not later than one year 10.5 1.4 5.9 1.7
Later than one year but not more than five years 36.2 1.5 337 24
More than five years 37.7 0.1 53.6 0.2

33.4 3.0 93.2 43
Future charges on finance leases (29.1) {0.5} (34.7) {0.6)

553 2.5 58.5 37

23 FINANCIAL INSTRUVENTS

Net fair values of derivative financial instruments

1 Septembar 2007

2 September 2006

Astals Liabilicles Assels Liabilities
Em £m im £m
Current

Forward foreign currency contract: - cash flow hedges 0.1 (1.3) - (3.3}
Forward foreign currency contract: - held for trading - (0.9) ~ {2.0)
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges 2.9 - ~ -
3.0 {2.2) - {5.3)

Non-current
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedjes 19.7 - 7.8 (2.3}
Total 22.7 {2.2) 78 (7.6}

The financial risks and treasury mar agement information has been disclosed in note 3.

The notional principal amounts and fair values of financial instruments used in interest risk management were

as follows:
1 Septembaer 2007 2 September 2006
Nations! Notianal
principal Book Fair principal Baok Fair
amaount value value amaunt value value
£ £m £m Em £m im
Primary financial instruments
Borrowings:
- due within one year (108.4) (108.6) (108.6) (36.7) {37.0) (37.00
- due after one year but no more than two years {103.3) {103.3}) (103.3} (102.6} (102.6) (102.6)
~ due after more than two years bit no more
than five years (859.4} (859.4) (859.4) (960.7) {960.7) {960.7}
- due after more than five years (37.8) {37.8) (37.8) {46.0) (46.0) {46.0)
Cash and cash equivalents - 80.4 80.4 - 34.0 34.0
Derivative financial instruments held to manage
interest rate and currency risk
Interest rate swaps 777.5 22.6 22.6 957.1 55 55
Forward foreign currency contracts 98.7 (2.1) {2.1} 1205 (5.3) (5.3}
Net financial liabilities (1,008.2) {1,008.2) (1,112.1) (1,112.1)
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

The net fair value {osses at 1 September 2007 on open forward foreign exchange contracts that hedge the
foreign currency risk of anticipated future inventory purchases are £1.2 million (2006: £3.3 millien). This will be
recycled and adjusted against the initial measurement of the acquisition cost of inventory over the next 12

months.

Forward exchange contracts desi¢cnated as cash flow hedges are reclassified to "assets held for trading” when the
underlying forecast transaction is zrystaflised on the balance sheet as inventory. During the year there were no
contracts reclassified to “assets held for trading” due to cash flow hedges being ineffective.

Interest rate swaps
The national principal amount of interest rate swaps outstanding at 1 September 2007 was £777.5 million
(2006: £957.1 million). The Group’s interest rate swaps switch interest from floating rates to fixed rates.

The fair value of interest rate swaps has been calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows.

The Group’s interest rate swaps m: ture as follows:

National Rate
£m % Matunty
Interest rate swap 7775 4477 - 6.040 31 May 2008 to 30 November 2011

The net gains and losses on these wwaps deferred in equity will reverse through interest in the incorne statement
over the life of the swaps.

Fair value of non-derivative financial assets and liabilities
Where market vaiues are not available, the fair value of financial assets and financiat liabilities have been
calculated by discounting future e» pected cash flows at prevailing interest rates and by applying year-end

exchange rates, The carrying amounts of borrowings is approximate to fair value.

Maturity and interest rate profiles of financial assets and liabilities
The maturity and interest rate profiles of financial assets and liabilities after taking account of interest rate swaps,

swapped from floating to fixed rates, used to manage interest were as follows:

1 Septambar 2007
Non-interest
Fixed Floating bearing Total
£m £m im £m
Sterling financial liabilities:
- due within one year {75.8) {32.8) - {108.6)
- due after one year but no more :han two years (73.6) (29.7} - (103.3)
- due after more than two years but no more than five years {613.6) (245.8) - {859.4}
- due after more than five years {(17.1) (20.7) - (37.8)
Financial liabilities {780.1) (329.0) - {1,109.1)
Sterling:
- Cashatbankandin hand 52.7 13.7 2.2 68.6
- Restricted cash 1.1 - - 1.1
Euro:
- Cash at bank and in hand 3.7 5.7 0.4 9.8
US Dollar:
- Cashatbank and in hand 0.7 0.2 - 0.9
Financial assets 58.2 19.6 2.6 80.4
Debt issue costs of £12.2 million are excluded from the financial liabilities above.,
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The weighted average interest rate on the fixed rate borrowings as at 1 September 2007 was 6.4 per cent (2006
5.9 per cent)}, with the weighted average time for which rates are fixed being 2.4 years (2006: 2.6 years). Floating
rate borrowings are interest bearir g at interest rates based on LIBOR. Cash depaosits are interesi bearing at rates
based on base rates. Non-interest earing cash refers to cash in stores.

Floating rate borrowings have been classified as fixed if there were derivative financial instruments hedging the

ﬂoating rate interest for more than one vear.
1 Septernber 2006

MNen-interest

Fixed fipating bearing Total
im im £m im

Sterling financial liabilities:
- due within one year (30.0) {(7.00 - (37.0)
- due after one year but no more than two years (87.8) {(14.8) - {1026)
- due after more than two years but no more than five years {823.4) (137.3) - (960.7)
- due after more than five years {19.8) (26.2) - (46.0)
Financial liabilities {961.0) (185.3) - (1,146.3)
Sterling:
- Cashatbankand in hand 6.8 126 2.0 21.4
- Restricted cash 10.0 03 - 103
Euro:
- Cash at bank and in hand - 20 0.1 21
US Dollar:
- Cashat bank and in hand - 0.2 - 0.2
Financial assets 16.8 151 2.1 34.0

Debt issue costs of £16.2 million at 2 September 2006 are excluded from the financial liabilities above,

Borrowing facilities as at 1 Septeinber 2007
As at 1 September 2007 the term loan facility was fully drawn and the revolving credit facility of £250 million

remains fully available (2006: £218 million). These facilities expire on 19 April 2011.
Both of these facilities incur commiiment fees at market rate.

Market price risk
The Group monitors interest rate ris < and foreign exchange risk by determining the effect on profit of a range

of possible changas in interest rates and foreign exchange rates. The range of changes chosen reflects the
Group's view of changes that are possible over the financial year.

Assuming no changes in the borrowings and interest rate swaps described above, it is estimated that a rise of
1 per cent in interest rates would ha e reduced pre-tax profits for the financial year ended 1 September 2007
by £2.5 million (2006: £2.2 million). ¢imilarly, assuming no changes in the valumes of imports described above,
it is estimated that a § per cent decrzase in the value of sterling against relevant foreign currencies would have
reduced profits for the year by £1.8 nillion (2006: £1.1 million) before accounting for any offset from
renegotiated supplier contracts and alternative sourcing locations.
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24 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION

The Group operates defined beneiit type pension schemes, being the Debenhams Executive Pension Plan and
the Debenhams Retirement Scheme, the assets of which are held in separate trustee administered funds.

Both pension schemes were closed for future service accrual from 31 Octaber 2006. The closure to future accrual
will not affect the pensions of thate who have retired or the defined benefits of those who have left service or
opted out before 31 October 2006 Future pension arrangements are provided through 2 money purchase
stakeholder plan or a defined contribution scheme for the employees in the Republic of Irefand.

The Group have agreed to contribute £5.3 million per annum, increasing by RPI from the first of April each year,
to fund accrued benefits. The Group will also fund all administrative expenses incurred by the two pension
schemes from 1 Novemnber 2006 tc the next triannual valuation at 31 March 2008,

Actuarial valuations of the Group’s pension schemes using the projected unit basis were carried out at 31 March
2005, and updated as at each relevant year-end for the purposes of 1A5 19 "Employee Benefits’, by Watson Wyatt
Limited, a qualified independent actuary. The major assumptions used by the actuaries were:

1 September 7 September 3 Seplember
2007 2006 2005

per anpum % perannum % perannum %

Inflation assumption 310 2.90 2,60
General salary and wage increase 3.90 3.90 3.60
Rate of increase in pension paymer ts and deferred payments 3.10 2.90 2.60
Pension increase rate 3.10 250 2.60

5.95 510 5.00

Discount rate

The expected return on scheme assats is based on market expectations at the beginning of the year for return
over the entire life of the defined benefit obligation.

1 September 2007 1 September 2006 3 September 2005
Leng-term Long-term Leng-term
ratw of return rate of feturn rate of return
expacted expected expected
Per annum Value per annum Value per annum Value
£ % £m % im
Assets
Equities 8.30 315.0 8.30 325.6 8.00 287.0
Bonds 5.95 197.3 4.40 159.9 4.30 149.3
Property 7.10 8.2 - - - -
Cash and other assets 5.00 31.8 4,40 416 3.60 17.3
Total market vaiue of assets 7.25 552.3 6.80 527.1 6.60 453.6
Present value of scheme liabilities {465.0} (513.3) {463.0)
Surplus/{deficit) in scheme 87.3 13.8 (9.4)

Assumptions regarding future mortzlity experiences are based on the mortality tables shown below. Allowance
is made for future improvements to the assumed current rates of mortality which have a financial effect
equivalent to a 0.25 per cent per anr umn reduction in the discount rate used to value liabilities.

1 September 1 September
2007 i
Male & femnale Male & female
Debenhams Retirement Scheme PMA92C06+2 PMA92C06+2
Debenhams Executive Pension Plan PMA92C06+1 PMA92C06+1
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24 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION CONTINUED

The actual return on plan assets vsas as follows:

1 Septemnber 2 September
1007 2006
im em
Return on plan assets 33.2 52.8
The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows:
1 Septemnber 2 September
2007 1006
im im
Current service cost 2.9 16.3
Past service cost 0.4 -
Curtailment credit - (4.4}
Interest on pension schemne habilities , 25.8 22.7
Expected return on pension scheme assets {34.5) (29.2)
Total included within staff costs (note 9} (5.4) 54
The total {credits)/charges included are as follows:
15eptember 2 Seplember
2007 2006
£m Em
Cost of sales {4.5) 31
Distribution costs (0.1) 0.1
Administrative expenses {0.8) 2.2
{5.4) 5.4

Total (credit)/charge

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as follows:

1Septambar

2 September
2006

2007

£m Em

Fresent value of obligation at start of year 513.3 463.0
Interest on pension scheme liabilities 258 227
Current service cost 2.9 16.3
Actual member contributions 0.5 2.8
Actual benefit payments by the fund (14.8) {13.7)
Past service cost 0.4 -
Curtailment credit - (4.4
(Gains}/losses on change of assumptions (67.2) 229
Experience losses 41 37
Present value of abligation at end of year 465.0 513.3

Changes in the fair value of pension scheme assets are as follows:

1 Saptember 2 September

0407 2006

€m im

Fair value in pension scheme assets at start of year 5271 453.6
Benefits paid {14.8) (13.7)
Company <ontributions 74 316
Member contributions 0.5 28
Expected return on pension scheme assets 34.5 29.2
Actuarial {losses)/gains {2.4) 236
552.3 527.1

Fair value of plan assets at end of year
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24 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION CONTINUED

Movement in surplus/{deficit) during the year:
1 September  Z September
2006

2007

£m im

Surplus/(deficit) in the schemes a1 start of year 13.8 {9.4)
Movement in year:

Pension credit/(charge) 5.4 {(5.4)

Company contributions 7.4 316

Net actuarial gains/{losses) 60.7 (3.0)

87.3 13.8

Surplus in the schemes at end of year

Cumulative actuarial gains and losses recognised in equity:

1 September  Z September
2007 2006

Em Em
At start of the year 23.6 26.6
Net actuarial gains/{losses) recogn sed in the year 60.7 (3.0
Net actuarial gains recognised at end of year 84.3 236

History of experience gains and losses:

1September 2 September 3 September 29 August 30 August
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Difference between the expected and actual return

on scheme assets £1.3m £236m £46.0m £3.1m  £{1.6m
Percentage of scheme assets 0.2% 4.5% 10.1% 0.9% {0.5)%
Experience losses on scheme liabilizies £4m  £3.7m  £(28)m  £01.9m  £(44m
Percentage of the present value of icheme liabilities (0.9%  (0.7)% {0.6)% (0.5)% (1.2)%
Total actuarial gain/(loss) recognised in statement of

recognised income and expenses £60,7m  £(3.0)m  £85m £11.2m  £{20.0lm
Percentage of the present value of scheme liabilities 13.1% (0.6)% 1.8% 27% (5.3)%

The contributions expected to be piid during the year ended 31 August 2008 amount to £7.9 million.

Debenhams stakeholder pension schemes
The Group contributions to the schemes during the year were £6.6 million (2006: £0.5 million).
25 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 28 per cent
(2006: 30 per cent).

1 September 2 September
2007 2006

im im
Deferred tax assets 52.3 511
Deferred tax liabilities {111.6) {84.8)

{59.3) (33.7)

Deferred tax assets have been recogaised in respect of temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets
because it is probable that these assets will be recovered.
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25 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CONTINUED

The movement on the deferred tax account is as shown below:

Developers Shaze-

cantnbution Fair value Retrement Cther based
received gains benefit pravisions payrnents Total
Assets tm £m £m £m £m £m
At 4 September 2005 336 6.7 9.5 8.5 6.0 64.3
Credited/(charged) to the income statement 15 a6 (8.1 5.0 0.9) (1.9

(Charged)/credited to the statement of recagnised

income and expenses (“SORIE") - (7.1} 0.9 - - (6.2)
Charged to equity - - - - (5.1) (5.1)
At 2 September 2006 351 0.2 23 13.5 - 511
Credited/(charged) to the income itatement 1.8 {0.2) {2.3) 5.7 - 5.0
Restatement to the standard rate of
corporation tax charged to the incame statement 2.9 - - (1.3) - (3.8}
At 1 September 2007 34.4 - - 17.9 - 523
Accelerated tax Fair value Relil:eme?[ -
iati i i a
Liabilities i s "tm T
At 4 September 2005 (73.8) - - (73.8)
Charged to the income statement (11.0) - - (110}
At 2 September 2006 {84.8) - - {84.8)
Charged to the income statement (40) .. {04) (5.8) (10,2}
Restatement to the standard rate of corporation tax
credited/(charged} to the income statement 59 0.7} (0.1) 57
Charged to the SORIE - - (18.2) (18.2)
Restatement to the standard rate o' corporation tax
through the SORIE - - 1.7 1.7
Charged to equity - (6.2) - {6.2)
Restatement to the standard rate of corporation tax
through equity - 04 - o4
At 1 September 2007 (82.9) (6.3} (22.4} {(111.8)

The deferred tax charged to equity during the year was as follows:
1September 2 September
007

2006
&m £Em

Fair value reserves in shareholders equity:
Adoption of IAS 32 and LAS 39 - 54
Hedging reserve {(5.8) (7.1)
Deferred tax on pension schemes (16.5) 0.9
Deferred tax on share based payments - {5.1)
{22.3) (5.9)

26 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

1 Septenber 2 Seprember
2007 2006

im im

Other liabilities 207.1 161.0

Included within other liabilities are lease incentives received from landlords either through initial contributions
or rent-free periods. These incentives are being credited to the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Additinally the creditor relates to the smoothing of the charges relating to leases
with fixed annual increments in rent.
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27 PROVISIONS FOR LLABILITIES AND CHARGES

Vacant Closure Other

properties provisions provisions Total

{m im im Em

At 4 September 2005 1.2 49 31 9.2
Utilised during the financial year (0.3} (1.3) (1.4) {3.0)
At 2 September 2006 0.9 3.6 1.7 6.2
Credited to the income statement - (0.8 - (0.8)
Utilised during the financial year {0.4) (1.1} {1.1) (2.6)
At 1 September 2007 a.s 1.7 Q.6 2.8

Provisions have been analysed between current and non-current as follows:
7 Septemnber 2 Septemnber

2007 2006

Em £m

Current 2.2 4.7
Non-current 0.6 1.5
2.8 6.2

Vacant properties

Provision for vacant properties represents the residual lease commitments, after taking into account existing
sub-lease arrangements, in respect of two properties and will be utilised over the remaining term of the leases
which expire in August 2009 and Suptember 2009 respectively.

Closure provision

The termination of a number of oparations resulted in ¢losure costs predominantly refated to the closure of all
remaining own-bought media outlets, the closure of distribution outlets, the ¢losure of a store in the Republic of
Ireland and vacated buildings. Thes2 provisions are short-term in nature and are expected to be utilised within

the next 12 months.

Other provisions

The majority of the Group’s other provisions relate to dilapidations on properties based upon the directors best
estimate of the Group’s future liability. The remainder of the other provisions, none of which are individually
significant, represent the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle present obligations in respect of
other liabilities. These provisions are short-term in nature and are expected to be utilised within the next

12 months.

28 SHARE CAPITAL

At 1 September 2007 and 2 Septeinber 2006

£ Number
Authorised
QOrdinary shares of £0.0001 each 128,846 1,288,461,539
E Number
Issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £0.0001 each 85,897 858,974,359
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28 SHARE CAPITAL CONTINUED

Employee Share Trust - interest in share capital
The number of ordinary shares in the Company held by the Debenhams Retail Employee Trust 2004 (“DRET"} and
the Baroness Employee Limited Pzrtnership (“BELP"), in connection with the Group’s employee ownership pfan

described below, were as follows:

1 September 2 September

2007 2006

ordinary ordinary

shares shares

Number Number

Debenhams Retail Employee Trust 2004 103,602 3,290,535
- 13,226,985

Bargness Employee Limited Partnership

103,602 16,517,520

The market value of the shares on 1 September 2007 were £0.1 million for DRET and £nil mittion for BELP
(2006: £6.2 million and £24.9 millio respectively). DRET purchased 70,000 shares on 6 November 2006 at a cost
of £1.90 per share. The cost of the shares held at the year end £0.1 million for DRET and £nil million for BELP
(2006: £0.5 million and £nil million respectively).

Share-based payments
The total charge to the operating frofit relates to the following schemes:

1 Seprember 2 September
607 2006
£m £m
DECP - equity settled element 0.6 1.5
DEQP - cash settled element - 37
BELP - cash settled element - 8.5
Performance Share Plan 2006 - equity settled element 1.2 0.5
Executive Share Option Plan - equity settled element 0.1 0.1
Charge for the year 1.9 14.3
Outstanding share options
The table shows the number of share options cutstanding at the year end:
PSP ESOP DEOP
Number Number Number
Qutstanding at 3 September 2005 - - 142,954
Granted 3,353,565 2,975121 550,271
Exercised - - (3412307)
Forfeited (25,685) {81,322) (85,751)
Share split - - 6,142,140
Qutstanding at 2 September 2006 3,327,880 2,893,799 3,337,307
Granted 5,683,046 2,127,484 -
Exercised - - (3,203,808)
Forfeited (371,890) (395,476} {133,499
Qutstanding at 1 September 2007 8,639,036 4,625817 -
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28 SHARE CAPITAL CONTINUED

i) The Debenhams Performance Share Plan (the “PSP”)

The PSP is intended to facilitate the retention of senior executives of the Company by enabling executives to
receive shares pravided that they remain in the Group. An award under the PSP wilt normally vest on the third
anniversary of date of grant and must be exercised within six menths of vesting. No payment will be required for
the grant of an award. An award uder the PSP will comprise an option to receive free shares or nil cost option
with performance cenditions attached. Awards under the scheme have been made since May 2006.

The vesting on half of the shares granted is dependent on Earnings Per Share ("EPS") growth, In accardance with IFRS 2
this is classified as a non-market condition and therefare the shares have been fair valued at face value. The vesting of
the remaining half of the shares is dependent upon Total Shareholder Return {“TSR") over a three year period when
compared 1 total shareholder return of the FTSE 350 General Retailers Index. The fair value of the PSP options granted
for this proportion of the award is calcutated based on a Monte Carle simulation model assuming the inputs shown below:

EPS TSR EPS T5A

Grant date; 24 Nov 06 24 Nov 06 9 May 06 g May 06
29 May 07 29 May 07 6 June 06 6 June 06

Number of shares under option {nc.):

9 May 2006 - - 1,594,431 1,594,431

6 June 2006 - - 1,556 1,556

24 November 2006 1,153,141 E153.141 - -

29 May 2007 1,570,390 1,570,390 - -
Expected term (years) 3.0 30 23 22
Share price at grant {pence);

2 May 2006 - - 205.0 205.0

6 June 2006 - - 185.0 185.0

24 November 2006 198,25 198.25 - -

29 May 2007 134.00 134.00 - -
Exercise price (pence) - - - -
Risk free rate:

9 May 2006 - - 4.8% 4.8%

6 June 2006 - - 47% 4.7%

24 Novemnber 2006 5.5% 5.5% - -

29 May 2007 6.0% 6.0% - -
Expected volatility 21.0% 21.0% 21.0% 21.0%
Expected dividend yield 3.5% 3.5% 35% 3.5%
Fair value of option (pence):

9 May 2006 - - 189.0 828

6 June 2006 - - 1711 764

24 November 2006 178.0 95.2 - -

29 May 2007 121.0 64.3 - -

During the year 5,683,046 (2006: 3,353,565) options were granted under the plan, no shares have been issued
during the year.
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28 SHARE CAPITAL CONTINUED

ii) Executive Share Option Plan [the “ESOP"}

The £50P allows the Company to ¢ rant options to acquire shares to eligible employees. These options will normally
become exercisable following a three year performance period, only if and to the extent that the performance conditions
to which they are subject have been satisfied. With the exception of the first grant of options on 9 May 2007, being
the date the Company was admitted to the London Stock Exchange, options were granted with an exercise price
equal to the middie market vatue cf the shares on the day immediately preceding the date of the grant.

The vesting of options granted under this plan is dependent on EPS growth, the fair value of the share options
has been calculated using a binomial model. The key assumptions are as follows:

26 May 07 24 Nov 06 6 June 06 9 May 06

Grant date:

Number of shares under option {na.} 443,432 1,587,543 58,870 2,535,972
Expected term (years} 6 6 6 5
Share price at grant (pence) 137.50 198.25 185.00 205.00
Exercise price (pence) 137.50 198.25 185.00 205.00
Risk free rate: 6.0% 5.5% 4.7% 4.8%
Expected volatility 24.0% 24.0% 24.0% 24.0%
Expected dividend yield 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% 3.5%
Fair value of option (pence} 17 448 40.5 4512

iii) Debenhams Employee Qption Plan ("DEOP™)
The DEOP option scheme was intre duced on 3 September 2004 options were awarded to certain management

of the Group. The DRET held shares to satisfy the exercise options granted under DECP.

Options were awarded at the discre tian of the Group's Remuneration Committee and were awarded to any
employee within the Group at any point in time. In accordance with the plan rules 50 per cent of the options
vested on Debenhams plc admission to the London Stock Exchange. The remaining options vested on 9 May
2007, 365 days after admission, No -aptions remain under the plan, At the date of grant the options were valued
using a Black-5choles option pricing model. The fair value per option granted and the assumptions used in the
calculation were as follows:

Date of gram

Number of employees 327
Expected volatility 15.1%
Expected life (months) 51
Risk free interest rate 4.7%
Expected dividends expresses as a dividend yield -
Possibility of ceasing employment bafore vesting -
Fair value per ordinary unit in Baroniss Group Limited Partnership {£) 105.75
0.182

Fair value per option - equity element (£ per option)

The expected volatility was based or the FTSE All Share Consumer Service Index, which comprised

124 members, over the last three ye: rs. The risk-free interest rate was based on a 4.5 year gilt rate bond at
the time the options were issued. The dividend yield was assumed to be nil as neither the equity component
nor the debt element of the underlying option securities were expected to pay out dividends or coupons
over their life. All of the options had an exercise price of 10 pence.

The value of the cash-settled element of the award was the value attributable to the "A” [oan notes under
option. As part of the 2005 Acquisiticn the "A” Loan Notes of £12.8 million which were issued to the DRET were
immediately repaid in full on 26 May 2005. On settlement of the options, the option holders received in cash an
amount equivalent to the "A” Laan Notes issued to DRET an the aptien holders behalf, The modification resulted
in a charge to the income statement -hat related to the "A” Loan Notes that were allocated to employees, rather

than the total received by the Trust,
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28 SHARE CAPITAL CONTINUED

iv) Baroness Employee Limited Partnership ("BELP")

In June 2004, senior managemeni of the Group were invited by the Remuneration Committee to invest in the
Group through the purchase of units in the BELP. Management purchased their holding in the Group at fair value
and therefore no equity based costs arose in relation 10 these awards. The partnership is closed to new entrants.
On Admission to the London Stoc< Exchange 30 per cent of the shares were distributed to the members, On

9 May 2007 the remaining 70 per cent, which totalled 12,891,840 were distributed to the members. The remaining
shares held by BELP were transferted to DRET. There witl be no further share transfers or distributions by BELP,

which no longer holds shares in the Company,

On 16 May 2005, the Group was reorganised with Debenhams plc being the new parent company of the Group.
The Group reorganisation involvec shares being exchanged for shares and loan notes issued by the Company.
In the case of the BELP, a share wa: exchanged for a share and a3 “C" loan note in the Company. In total, "C” loan
notes of £22.3 million were issued to the BELP. For accounting purposes, this resulted in the modification of the
original equity-settied share-basec payment, with the newly created loan note element of the award being
treated as a cash-settled share-bas2d payment. The total value of the cash-settled element of the award is the
value attributable to the “C” Loan Motes of £22.3 million issued to BELP.
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29 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Reverse }
Share Share Retained Merger acquisitien Hedging Other
camtal premium earnings resesve reserve reserve reserve Total
fm Em Em Im £m im £m £m
At 4 September 2005 - - {679.4) 11,2009 (1,199.9) (14.9) 1.0 (652.3)
Profit for the financial year -~ - 43,7 - - - - 43.7
Actuarial loss in pensicn
schemes {note 24) - - {(3.00 - - - - (3.0)
Movement in deferred tax
relating to pension schemes
(note 25) - - 0.9 - - - - 0.9
Cash flow hedges:
~ net fair value gains (net of tax) - - - - - 15.8 - 15.8
- recycled and adjusted against
the initial measurement of the
acquisition cost of inventory - - - - - {0.2) - (0.2)
- reclassified and reported
in net profit - - - - - 0.8 - 0.8
Total recognised income
for the financial year - - A41.6 - - 16.4 - 58.0
Issue of shares 0.1 682.9 - - - - - 683.0
Share options
- value of employee services - - 21 - - - - 21
Purchase of treasury shares
for DRET - - (2.0) - - - - (2.0
“C”loan notes held by BELP - - (22.3) - - - - (22.3)
Value of employee services
for loan notes issued (net of tax) - - 268 - - - - 26.8
Balance at 2 September 2006 0.1 682.9 (633.2) 11,2005 (1,199.9) 1.5 1.0 533
Profit for the financial year - - 79.0 - - - - 79.0
Currency translation differences - - G4 - - - - 04
Actuarial gain in pension
schemes (note 24) - - 60.7 - - - - 60.7

Movement in deferred tax
relating to pension schemes
(note 25) - - (16.5) - - - - (16.5)

Change in available for

sale investment - ~ - - - - 12.1 121
Cash flow hedges:
- net fair value gains

{net of tax} - - - - - 175 - 17.5
- recycled and adjusted

against the initial

measurement of the

acquisition cost of inventory - - - - (3.6} - (3.6)
Total recognised income for
the financial year - - 1236 - - 13.9 12.1 149.6
Share options
~ value of employee services - - 1.9 - - - - 1.9
- proceeds from shares options

in the DRET - - 03 - - - - 0.3
Purchase of treasury shares
for DRET - - 0.1 - - - - (0.1}
Dividends paid - - (42.00 - - - - (42.0)

Balance at 1 September 2007 0.1 682.9 {549.5) 11,2009 {1,199.9} 15.4 134 163.0
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29 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CONTINUED

Share premium account

On admission to the London Stocl: Exchange the Company issued 358,974,359 shares at £1.85, generating
proceeds of £700 million. Costs directly associated with the issue of the new shares totalled £17.1 million and
in accordance with the Companies Act these costs were set off against the premium generated on issue of the

new shares,

Merger reserve
The merger reserve of £1,200.9 mi'lion exists as a result of the 2005 Group recanstruction. The merger reserve

represents the difference between both the nominal value of the share capital and loan notes issued by the
Company and the fair value of Baroness Group Holdings Limited Group at 24 May 2005, the date of the 2005

Group reconstruction.

Reverse acquisition reserve
The reverse acquisition reserve exists as a result of the methed of accounting for the 2005 Group reconstruction.

In accordance with international Azcounting Standards the 2005 Group reconstruction has been accounted for
as a reverse acquisition.

Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve represents the change in fair value of all interest rate swaps and forward foreign currency

contracts which have been design: ted as cash flow hedges,

Other reserves
Qther reserves represent the change in fair value in respect of the Group’s available-for-sale investments

(see note 17).

Retained earnings
As at 1 September 2007, £nil million (2006: £0.2 million) of “C” Notes issued by the Company were held by the

BELP and were eliminated on consclidation of the Partnership. Fixed interest on the notes was charged at
4.8 per cent and a collateral deposit guaranteed the principal,

30 OPERATING LEASE AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

1 Septembar 2007 1 Septamber 2006
Land and 1and and
buildings Other buikdings Other
Em Em im Em
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
138.0 1.4 113.0 1.4

Within one year

Later than one year and less than five years 590.0 1.1 483.1 20
After five years 3,899.4 0.1 34831 -
4,627.4 2.6 40852 34

The Group leases departmental stores and warehouses under non-cancellable operating leases. The feases have
various terms, escalation clauses and/ renewal rights. The Group also leases vehicles and fixtures and equipment

under non-cancellable operating leases,
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31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

1 Septembar

2 Septernber
2006

2007
£m Em

Profit for the financial year 79.0 437
Taxation (note 12) 34.2 18.4
Depreciation (note 16) 85.7 86.0
Accelerated depreciation (note16) 8.2 -
Amortisation {note 15) 7.0 5.1
Loss/(profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.6 {0.1)
Employee options granted during the year 1.9 2.8
Discretionary bonus granted - 1.1
Fair value losses/(gains) on derivative instruments (1.1} 1.9
Swap costs - (0.8
Net movements in provisions for lizbilities and charges {note 27) 3.4} (3.0)
Interest income (note 10) (4.2} (7.3)
Interest expense {note 11) 70.8 168.8
Difference between pension charge and contributions paid (note 24) (12.8) {26.2)
Net movement in other non curren: liabilities 46.0 2.2
Changes in working capital
Increase in inventories (36.8} (10.6)
Decrease/{increase) in trade and other receivables 1.1 (8.2)
Increase in trade and other payables 35.0 43.2

311.2 317.0

Cash generated from operations

In the cash flow statement, proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment comprise:

T September

2 September
2006

2007
£m im
Net book amount (note 16} 0.8 -
{Loss)/profit on sale of property, plant and equipment {0.6) 0.1
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 0.2 0.1
In the cash flow statement exceptional cash items are as follows:
1 September  ZSeptemper
2007 2006
£m Em
Cash generated from operations includes payments for:
Admission to the London Stock Exchange - 38
Acguisition and reorganisation of stores in the Republic of Ireland 3.7 -
Additional pension contribution - 18.0
Interest paid includes:
2006 refinancing - premium on early repayment of senior term loan - 2.1
2006 refinancing - cost of restructuring interest rate swaps - (0.3)
2.7 141

2006 refinancing - debt issue costs

Acquisition and reorganisation of itores in the Republic of Ireland

Following the acquisition of the nine stores in the Republic of Ireland and the assignment of the Jervis Street
lease, redundancy cost of £2.1 million have been paid, together with £1.5 million of marketing, travel, legal and

integration costs.
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31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS CONTINUED

Admission to the London Stock Exchange

Payments for professional advice and advisory services relating to the Company's admission to the London Stock

Exchange totalled £3.8 million.

Additional pension contribution

As part of the refinancing in May 2005 it was agreed that £47.4 million of additional contribution would be
paid to the Debenhams defined tenefit pension schemes. A payment of £29.4 million was paid on refinancing
an 26 May 2005, and the batance of £18.0 million was pzid on 11 May 2006 following the Company's admission

to the London Stock Exchange.

2006 refinancing

On refinancing, £2.1 million was puid relating to the early repayment of the senior credit facility. As a result of the
refinancing a number of interest rate swaps were either closed out or restructured, generating income of £0.3 million,

Debt issue costs capitalised in respect of the refinancing on 30 May 2006 amounted to £17.1 million.

Non-cash transactions
Other non-cash changes comprise;

1Septembar

2 September
2006

im Im
Amortisation of issue costs relating to debt issues 3.9 51
Release of prior year debt issue co:t accrual (0.1) -
Exceptional write off of issue costs on refinancing - 335
Non-cash movements associated with finance lease obligations {4.0) 03
Transfer of accrued interest to net debt on adoption of IAS 32 and (AS 39 - 0.4
Non-cash transactions (0.2) 393
32 ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT
At At
2 Sept Cash Non-cath 1 5apt
2006 flow  movements 1007
Em fm £m £m
Analysis of net debt
Cash 340 46.4 - B0.4
Bank overdrafts (33.7) 326 - {1.1)
Cash and cash equivalents 0.3 79.0 - 79.3
Debt due within one year 3.6 - 1000y  {96.4)
Debt due after one year (1,037.8} - 96.2  (941.6)
Finance lease obligations due within one year (3.0) 0.4 (4.8) {7.4)
Finance lease obligations due after one year (59.2) - 8.8 (50.4}
§{1,096.1) 79.4 0.2 {1,016.5}
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33 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

The principal subsidiary undertak-ngs of Debenhams plc at 1 September 2007 were as follows:

Country of Country of »
Company incgrparation registration Activity
Debenhams Retait pl¢ UK England Department Store Retailing
Debenhams Group Holdings Limited * UK  England Holding Company
Debenhams Retail (Ireland) Limite 1 Ireland Ireland Department Store Retailing
Debhenhams Properties Limited LK England Praperty Investment
Other entities:
Baroness Employee Limited Partnership Jersey Jersey ESOP
Debenhams Retail Employee Trust 2004 lersey Jersey ESOP

All companies are wholly owned.

* Denotes investments held by the Company. All other investments are held by subsidiary undertakings.

All subsidiary companies are consclidated.
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IFRS UK GAAP
Praforma™ Proforma'®
2007 2006 2005 2005 2004 2003
£m im £m im im £m
Gross transaction value 2,305.6 23929 20868 20868 19029 18102
Revenue 1,7744 1,707.7 16087 16087 14918 18102
Cost of sales (1,494.9) (1,376.3) (1,293.4) (1,270.9) (1,207.9y {1,550.7)
Gross profit 279.5 3314 3153 3378 2839 259.5
Distribution costs (46.2) (53.0) (43.5) (43.5) {37.5) (37.1)
Administrative expenses (39.2) {40.2) (43.8)  (106.6) (75.3) (46.6)
Operating profit before excepticnal items 194.1 2182 2280 187.7 171.1 175.8
Exceptional items {14.3} {(14.6) {4.4) 4.7} (44.4) (17.4)
Profit on deemed disposal of subsidiary - - 1177 nz7 - -
Operating profit 179.8 223.6 3213 300.7 126.7 158.4
Net interest (66.6) {125.4) {160.8) (157.1) (123.5) (7.4)
Exceptional interest payable and similar charges - (36.1) (92.9) {(92.9) (33.6} -
Profit/{loss) before taxation 113.2 62.1 876 50.7 (30.4) 151.0
Taxation (34.2) (18.4) 361 11.7 7.4 (42.6)
Profit/(loss) for the financial year
attributable to equity shareholders 79.0 437 123.7 62.4 (23.0) 108.4

Gross transaction value

Gross transaction value represents “urnover presented net of staff discounts and loyalty point sales. It aiso

requires turnover for concessions to be shown an a net basis.

Proforma (1)

The results for 2005 have been restited to give effect for the combination of:

+ The consolidated financial inforraation of Baroness Group Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries from
29 August 2004 to 23 May 2005; and

+ The consolidated financial information of Debenhams Retail Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries fram

24 May 2005 to 3 September 2005,

Proforma (2)

The results for 2004 have been restated to give effect for the combination of:

+ The consalidated financial information of Debenhams Group Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
from 31 August 2003 to 3 December 2003; and

+  The consolidated financial infoimation of Baroness Group Holdings Limited and its subsidiaiies from
4 December 2003 to 28 August 2004,
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Balance sheets

IFRS UK GAAP
Proforma™ Profarma®
1007 2006 2005 2005 2004 2003
im Em im £m im tm
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 842.9 8361 8299 25042 799.7 22
Tangible assets 667.7 639.5 650.0 668.2 1,039 976.8
Financial assets 40.0 16.0 7.2 7.2 - 328
Retirement benefit obligations 87.3 13.8 - 9.5 - -
Deferred tax assets 52.3 51.1 589 - - =
Total non-current assets 1,690.2 15565 1,5460 31891 1,8388 1,0t18
Net current (liabilities)/assets {215.8) (156.6)  (143.2) (83.6) 17.8 (113.8)
Non-current liabilities {1,311.4) (1,346.6) (2,083.5) (1,965.1} (1,911.3) {125.9)
Net assets/(liabilities) 163.0 533 (680.7) 11,1404 {547y 7721
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Share capital 0.1 a1 - - 1.0 36.6
Share premium account 6382.9 682.9 - - - 19.7
Other reserves 29.5 35 1.0 11,2009 - 45.0
Retained earnings {549.5) {633.2) {681.7) (60.5) {55.7) 670.8

Total equity 163.0 533 (680.7) 11,1404 (54.7) 7721
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OF DEBENHAMS PLC

We have audited the parent company financial statements of Debenhams ple for the year ended 1 September 2007
which comprise the balance sheet, statement of total recognised gains and losses and the related notes. These
parent company financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein. We have
also audited the information in the directors remuneration report that is described as having been audited.

We have reported separately on th2 Group financial statements of Debenhams plc for the year ended 1 September
2007.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the annual report, the directors' remuneration repart and the parent
company financial statements in aczordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the statement of directors' responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the pz rent company financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration
report to be audited in accordance with relevant legat and regulatery requirements and International Standards on
Auditing {UK and Ireland). This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Company's
members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose. We do
not, in giving this opinion, accept ¢r assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom
this report is shown or inte whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing,

We report to you our opinion as to whether the parent company financial statemenits give a true and fair view and
whether the parent company financial statements and the part of the directors’remuneration report to be audited
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also report to you whether in our
opinion the information given in the directors' report is consistent with the parent company financial statements.

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not
received ail the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding

directors' remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

We read other information contained in the annual report and consider whether it is consistent with the audited

parent company financial statements. The other information comprises only the directors report and the unaudited
part of the remuneration report. We: consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the parent company financial statements. Our responsibilities do

not extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland) issued by the

Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the parent company financial statements and the part of the directors' remuneration report to be
audited. It also includes an assessmiant of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors inthe
preparation of the parent company financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate
to the company’s circumstances, coasistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our aucit 50 as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us wit 1 sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the parent company
financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated
the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the parent company financial statements and the
part of the directors' remuneration rzport to be audited.

Opinion

In our opinion:

*+ the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Fractice, of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 1 September 2007;

+ the parent company financial statlements and the part of the directors remuneration report to be audited
have been properly prepared in ¢ ccordance with the Companies Act 1985; and

"

* the informatilon, given in-the’\dire::tors' repoft is consistent with the parent company finandial statements.
I

i LR -.t‘k'-fu‘.tu\ Lﬂ'l’%\,(,‘_,_ Lq__\

I;ricewaterhouseCoopers LLP §
Chartered Accountants and Registerad Auditors
Leeds

23 QOctober 2007
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As at 1 September 2007

1September 7 September
2007 2006
Note fm fm
Fixed assets
Investments 3 3,851.9 40687
Financial assets - derivative financial instruments 19.7 7.8
3,871.6 40765
Current assets
Debtors 4 200.6 137.8
Financial assets - derivative financial instruments 2.9 -
Cash at bank and in hand - 02
203.5 138.0
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year s {1,191.8) (1,322.2)
Net current liabilities {988.3) (1,184.2)
Total assets less current liabilities 2,883.3 28923
Creditors: amounts falling due ufter more than one year 6 {941.6}) (1.039.3)
Provisions for liabilities and chargas 8 {6.5) (2.1)
Net assets 1,935.2 1,8509
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 9 o1 a1
Share premium account 10 682.9 682.9
Merger reserve w  1,106.1 1,200.9
Hedging reserve 10 16.3 4.4
Profit and loss account 10 129.8 {37.4)
Shareholders’ funds n o 1,935.2 18509

The financial statements on pages 93 to 99 were approved by the board of directors on 23 October 2007 and

were signed on its behalf by:

CKWoadhouse
Director
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For the financial year ended 1 September 2007

For the financial year ended:

1 Septamber 2 September
2007 2006
£m Em

114.2 (20.8)

Profit/(loss} for the financial year

Cash flow hedges

~ Net fair value gains (net of tax) 1.9 17.3

~ Reclassified and reported in nat profit - 0.8

Net gains recognised directly in equity 11.9 18.1

Total gains and losses recognised during the year 126.1 (2.7)
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For the financial year ended 1 Seprember 2007
I ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation
These financiaf statements have been prepared on the going concern basis and in accordance with UK GAAP

using the historical cost convention modified for the revaluation of certain financial instruments and in
accordance with applicable accounting standards and the Companies Act 1985,

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption from preparing a cash flow statement in accordance with
FRS 1“Cash Flow Statement” The cash flows of the Company are included in the Debenhams plc Group financial

statements.

The Company is also exempt und 2r the terms of FRS 8 "Related Parties” from disclosing related party transactions
with entities that are part of the Cebenhams ple Group.

The principal accounting policies, which have been applied consistently during the year, are set out below.

Investments
Investments are held at costless zny provision for diminution in value.

Borrowings
All borrowings are stated at the fair value of the consideration received after deduction of issue costs. Issue costs

together with finance costs, are ct arged ta the prafit and loss account over the term of the borrowings. Finance
costs represent a constant proporion of the balance of capital repayments outstanding.

Taxation
Current tax is provided at amount: expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised in respe ¢t of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance
sheet date where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay
less tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date, Timing differences are differences between the
taxable profits and the results as stated in the financial statements that arise from the inclusion of gains and
losses in tax assessments in periods different from those in which they are recognised in the financial statements.

Deferred tax is measured on a non-discounted basis. A deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and therefore
recognised only when, on the basis of all available evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that there
will be taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted.

Dividend distribution
A final dividend distribution to the Company shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Company’s financial

statemnents in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company shareholders, Interim dividends
are recognised when paid.

Share-based payments
Where the Company has granted oations over the Company shares to employees of its subsidiaries, a capital
contribution has been deemed to be made by the Company. This is then recharged to the subsidiary and is

based on the fair value of the options issued spread over the options vesting period.

Derivatives
The derivative instruments used by the Company to manage its interest rate risk are interest rate swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognised ut fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at fair vi lue. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether
the derivative is designated as an eifective hedging instrument and the nature of the item being hedged. The
Company designates certain derivaives as hedges of highly probable forecast transactions (cash flow hedges).

Derivatives are recognised using trade date accounting.

The Company documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions.
The Company also documents its assessment, both at the inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of

hedged items.
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For the financial year ended | Seprember 2007

I ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

i) Cash flow hedges
The effective portion of the changes in fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow

hedges are recognised in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately
in the relevant line of the profit and loss account which wiil be affected by the underlying hedged item.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled and adjusted against the initial measurement of the underlying
hedged item when the underlying hedged item is recognised on the balance sheet or in the profit and loss
account.

When a hedged instrument expirs, is sold or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
any curnulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time is immediately recognised in the refevant line of the
profit and loss account which will be affected by the original undertying hedged item. When a forecasted
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately
transferred to the relevant line of the profit and loss account which would have been affected

by the forecasted transaction.

it} Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
Certain derivatives do not qualify ‘or hedge accounting, Changes in fair value of any derivative instrumants that
do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account.

The Cornpany has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 25 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and
Presentation™ not to present inforriation on financial risk management and hedging where that information is
presented in the same Group financial statements. Accordingly, information on risk management and hedging
may be found in notes 3 and 23 of the Group accounts.

New accounting standards

At the balance sheet date FRS 29 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures” was in issue but not yet effective. This
standard will be fully considered iri due course.

2 PROFITAND LOSS ACCOUNT

The directors have taken advantagz of the exemption available under section 230 of the Companies Act 1985 and
have not presented a profit and [o«s account for the Company alone. A profit of £114.2 million is attributable to
shareholders for the financial year :nded 1 September 2007 {2006: loss of £20.8 million). There is no difference
between the results disclosed in respect of the Company and these results on an unmeodified historical cost basis.

The contracts of employment for all the directors are held by Debenhams pic, The total cost of employing the
directors is disclosed in the remuneration report. The Company has no other employees.

Auditors’ remuneration of £0.1 million is borne by another Group undertaking.

3 INVESTMENTS

Investments in

subsidiary
undertakings
fm
Cost
At 1 September 2007 and 2 September 2006 4,068.7
Provision for impairment
At 3 September 2006 -
Impairment 2168
At 1 September 2007 216.8
Net book value
At 1 September 2007 3,851.9
4,068.7

At 2 September 2006
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3 INVESTMENTS CONTINUED

Investment in subsidiary undei takings

ln accordance with FRS 11 “Impai-ment of Fixed Assets and Goodwill” the carrying value of the Company’s

subsidiary undertaking has been compared to their racoverable amounts represented by the value in use to the
Company. The review results in an impairment of £43.8 million in respect of Debenhams Group Holdings Limited,
which has been set off in full against the merger reserve. The discount rate used in the calculation to arrive at the

valuation was 7.5 per cent on a post-tax basis.

During the year BF [l Limited, a direct subsidiary undertaking repurchased 954,800 of its issued share capital. The
consideration on the share buy-back was £175.8 million. Following the transaction an impairment review resulted
inan impairment of £173.0 miltion, £51.¢ millien of which was set off against the merger reserve. The balance of

£120.0 million has been charged to the profit and loss account,

The principal subsidiary undertak ngs of the Company at 1 September 2007 are shown in note 33 of the
Debenhams ple Group financial statements,

4 DEBTORS
1Septamber 7 September
007 2006
im fm
Amount owed by Group undertak ngs 200.6 110.7
Corporation tax - 26.3
Prepayments and other debtors - 0.8
200.6 1378

Amounts owed by Group undertal ings are unsecured, repayable on demand and carrying an average rate

of interest of 7.4 per cent (2006: 7.2 per cent),

5 CREDITORS. AMOUNS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

1September 2 September

2007 2006

Em Em

gank loans and overdraft {(note 7) 96.4 285
Trade creditors 0.1 -
Other loans - “C"fean notes {(note 7) - 0.2
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 1,084,7  1,2807
Corporation tax 0.2 -
Accruals and deferred income 0.4 12.8
1,191.8 1,322.2

Amounts owed to Group undertakings are unsecured, have no fixed date of redemption and either carry an

average interest rate of 7.4 per cent (2006: 7.2 per cent) or are interest free,

6 CREDITORS:AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

1 September 2 Septernber

2007 2006

im im

Term loan facility 941.6 10377
Derivative financial instruments - 1.6
241.6 1,039.3
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For the financial year ended 1 Sep:ember 2007

7 BORROWINGS

1 Saptumbar 2 September
2007 2006
£m £m

Term loan facility
Revolving credit facility
Other loans - “C”loan notes

1,050.2 11,0504
- 320
- 0.2

Total borrowings
Less: issue costs

1,050.2 1,0826
(12.2) (16.2)

1,038.0 10664

Maturity of debt
15eptamber 2 September
2007 2006
im £m

Amounts falling due:

in one year or less or on demand 96.4 287
In more than one year but not more than two years 96.6 96.2
845.0 941.5

in more than two years but not mare than five years

1,038.0 11,0664

Information relating to the borrow ings of the Company are shown in note 22 of the Debenhams plc Group

financial statements.

8 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

Deferred taxation provision £m

At 3 September 2006 (2.1}
Charged to the staterent of recognised gains and losses {44}
At 1 September 2007 (6.5)
9 SHARE CAPITAL

As at 2 September 2006 and 1 September 2007 £ Humber

Authorised

Ordinary shares of £0.0001 each 128,846 1,288,461,539

Issued and fully paid

Ordinary shares of £0.0001 each 85,897 858,977,359
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10 RESERVES

Share

premium Hedging Merger Profit and

Hccoumnt reserve fesarve loss accaunt

fm im im £m

At 3 September 2006 682.9 44 11,2009 {37.4)
Profit for the financial year - - - 114.2
Cash flow hedges - net fair valua Jains (net of tax} - 119 - ~
impairment of investment - reser v movement - - 94.8) 948
Dividends paid - - - {42.0)
Employee share ownership plans ‘net of tax) - - - 0.2
At 1 September 2007 682.9 163 1,106.1 129.8

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve represents th € change in fair value of the interest rate swaps which have been designated as

cash flow hedges.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of £1,200.9 mi lion was created as a result of the Company acquiring the Baroness Group

Haldings Limited Group on 24 Mav 2005, The merger reserve represents the difference between bath the

nominal value of the share capital and loan notes issued by the Company and the fair value of Baroness Group
Holdings Limited Group at the dat2 of acquisition. The investment impairment disclosed in note 3 has reduced

the merger reserve by £94.8 millio 1.

Profit and loss account

The dividends paid by the Compariy during the year ended 1 September 2007 are shown in note 13 of the

Debenhams plc Group financial stztements,

11 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

15eptamber 2 September
1007 2006
£m im

Profit/{loss) for the financial year 114.2 (20.8}
Dividends paid (42.0} -

Retained profit/(loss) 72.2 (20.8}
Adoption of FRS 26 - {13.1)
Issue of ordinary share capital (net of issue costs) - 683.0

Cash flow hedges:

- net fair value gains (net of tax) 1.9 173

- reclassified and reported in net profit - 0.8

Employee share ownership plans (net of tax) 0.2 28

Net increase to shareholders’ funds 84.3 670.0

Opening shareholders' funds 1,850.9 1,180.9

1,935.2 1,850.9

Closing shareholders’ funds
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Aberdeen

Ayr

Banbury

Bangor

Barrow

Basildon
Basingstoke
Bedford

Belfast
Birmingham
Blackburn

Bolton
Bournemouth
Brighton

Bristol

Bromley
Cambridge
Canterbury
Cardiff

Carlisle

Chatham
Chelmsford
Cheltenham
Chester

Clapham
Colchester

Cork - Mahon Point
Cork - Patrick Street
Coventry

Crawley

Croydon

Derby**
Doncaster

Dublin - Blackrock
Dublin - Blanchardstown
Dublin - Henry Street
Dublin - Jervis Centre
Dublin - Tallaght
Dundee

East Kilbride
Eastbourne
Edinburgh

Eltham

Exeter™
Farnborough
Folkestone
Foyleside

Galway

Gateshead ~ Metro Centre
Glasgow
Gloucester
Gravesend
Guildford

Hanley

Harrogate

Harrow

Hastings

Hemel Hempstead
Hounslow

Hull

lIford

Inverness

* Cpened after 1 September 2007
**  Re-sited after 1 September 2007
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Ipswich

King's Lynin
Lakeside

Leeds - City Centre
Leads - White Rase
Leicester

Leith

Limerick

Lincoln

Llandudno
Llanelli*

London - Oxford Street
Luton

Manchester

Manchester - Trafford Park

Mansfield
Merryhill
Middlesbrough
Milton Keynes
Newbridge
Newbury
Newry
Northampton
Norwich
Nottingham
Nuneaton
Oldham
Oxford

Perth
Plymouth
Portsmouth
Preston
Reading
Redditch
Romford
Rushmere
Salisbury
Scarborough
Sheffield
Sheffield - Meadowhall
Slough
Southampton
Southend
Southport
Southsea
Staines
Stirling
Stockport
Stockton
Stratford
Sunderland
sutton
Swansea
Swindon
Taunton
Telford
Torquay
Tralee
Uxbridge
Walsall
Warrington
Waterford

100

Welwyn Garden City*
Westwood Cross
Weymouth
Wigan
Wimbleden
Winchester
Woking
Worcester
Workington
Worthing

York

Desire
Altrincham
Birmingham Fort
Falkirk

Kirkcaldy
Merthyr Tydfil
Orpington

South Shields
Truro

Walton

Interpational

Bahrain - Manama

Cyprus - Avenue

Cyprus = Apollon

Cyprus - Central

Cyprus - Korivos

Cyprus - Kinyras

Cyprus - Ledra

Cyprus — Nicosia®

Cyprus - Olympia

Cyprus - Zenon

Czech Repubiic - Prague
Iceland - Rykjavik

Indonesia - Jakarta Senayan City
Indonesia — Jakarta Plaza

india - Dehfi*

Jordan*

Kuwait - Airport

Kuwait — Avenues

Kuwait - Home

Kuwait - Soug Sharg
Philippines ~ Manila
Philippines - Shangri La

Qatar - Dcha

Romania ~ Bucharest

Russia - Moscow

Saudi Arabia - Jeddah

Saudi Arabia - Khobar

Saudi Arabia - Mecca

Saudi Arabia - Riyadh Kingdom
Mall

Saudi Arabia - Riyadh Granada Mall
Saudi Arabia - Riyadh Sahara Mall
Turkey = Istanbul

Dubai - Mall of Emirates

Dubai - 1bn Battuta

Dubai - Deira

UAE - Sharjah
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WE CURRENTLY HIAVE A PIPELINE OF 29 NEW STOKRES
AND THREE RE-SITES PLANNED BY AUTUMN 2011

Opened since year end

Exeter Derby
IRe-3ite) {Re-tite)
90.000sg ft 90,0005 f wety-yn
LUanellj Garden City
22,000 3q Mt 20,000 sq it
2007/08
Contracted pipeline
o Liverpool
gow 2
Silvwrburn 125,000 5 ft
80000sq R Bangor Ashtord Blackp. 1ol
[Re-site)  60,000sqft 65000:01
40,000 sq ft 1:‘:;;‘:;1
2007108
White City
NS00 sqft Bury
Wrezham Durfimnling  Uvingiton it Edmunds Great
60,0005qft §5000sqft 60.000sgh  60.000sgf Yarmouth Fareham Manks Cress Whitnay
200005a% 4400050/ 14.000sqft 14,0003q R
2008/09
Newcastis
Bradtwd 125000 5 A Bury
peirild 7: ggm p Comarthen  BOGO0IAR  waktald Datlington stag 1Gr Manchaster] Wood Green
k 000 5q FO000sg Tt T0,0005qft
50,000 59 ft 60,000 sg bt 65,000 5q fi 60,000 sg f1 45,0005 R ] q
200810
Swindon Bath
Lancaster  Wolverhampton Sarniley {Re -site) 85,000 5q ft

Macclesfield 90450 sqh

70,000sg it 70,0005q ft Growe
9 9 55000 5q 11 §5.0005q ft $5,0003q ft

2000

Oebenams
$tores Desire

Kay
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NOTICE [S HEREBY GIVEN ""HAT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ("AGM")
OF DEBENHAMS PLC WILL BE HELD AT 1 WELBECK STREET, LONDON W1G 0AA
ON TUESDAY 4 DECEMBER 2007 AT 3.30 PM

Items 1 to 11 will be proposed as ordinary resolutions. Items 12 and 13 will be proposed as special resolutions.

Ordinary business
1 Directors’ report and accounts
To receive the accounts for the fir ancial year ended 1 September 2007 tegether with the directors’report and the

auditors’ report on those accounts.

2 Directors’ remuneration report
To approve the remuneration report for the financial year ended 1 September 2007.

3 Dividend
To declare a final dividend for the year ended 1 September 2007 of 3.8 pence per share.

To reappoint the following directors who retire in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association

4 Richard Gillingwater
5 Peterlong

€ Cennis Millard

7 RobTempleman

8 Appointment of auditors
To reappeint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the auditors of the Company 10 hold office until the conclusion

of the next general meeting at which accounts are laid before the Company.

9 Paying the auditors
To authorise the Audit Committee o determine the rernuneration of the auditors on behalf of the board,

Special business
10 Electronic communications
To authorise the Company to send or supply documents ar information to shareholders by electronic rmeans,

including making the documents ¢r information available on the Company's website.

11 Authority to allot securities
That the directors be and they are hereby generally and unconditionally authorised for the purposes of Section

80 of the Companies Act 1985 (“the Act™) 1o exercise all the powers of the Company to allot relevant securities
{within the meaning of that section} up to an aggregate nominal value of £28,632 provided that this authority
shall expire at the Company’s next AGM after the passing of this resolution and that the Company may before
such expiry make an offer ar agreerient which would or might require relevant securities to be allotted after such
expiry and the directors may allot relevant securities in pursuance of such offer or agreement notwithstanding
that the authority conferred by this resolution has expired.

12 Disapplication of pre-emption rights

That subject to the passing of the previous resolution the directors be and they are hereby empowered pursuant
to Section 95 of the Act 1o allot equity securities for cash as if Section 89(1) of the Act did not apply to such
allotment provided that this power ;hall be limited to the allotment of equity securities:

a) in connection with an offer of such securities by way of rights to holders of ordinary shares in proportion
{as nearly as may be practicable) to their respective holdings of such shares, but subject to such exclusions or
other arrangements as the directors may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitfements or
any legal or practical problems uder the laws of any territory or the requirements of any regulatory body or

stock exchange; and
b) otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph a} above up to an aggregate nominal amount of £4,294

and shall expire on the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company after the passing of this resolution, save that
the Company may, before such expiry make an offer or agreement which would or might require equity securities
to be allotted after such expiry and t1e directors may ailot equity securities in pursuance of any such offer or
agreement notwithstanding that the power conferred by this resolution has expired.
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13 Authaority for Debenhams plc to buy its own shares
That the Company be and is here by authorised to make market purchases {within the meaning of Section 163(3)

of the Act ) of shares, subject to the following conditions:
a} the maximum number of shaies authorised to be purchased may not be more than 85,897,439 shares;

b) the minimum price which the Company may pay for each share is £0.0001 being the nominal value
of each share;

¢) the maximum price which may be paid for each share shall be the higher of: (i) an amount equal to 105 per
cent of the average of the micdle market quotations of a share as derived from the London Stock Exchange
Daily Officiai List for the five b usiness days immediately preceding the day on which the shareg is contracted to
be purchased; and (i} an amount equal to the higher of the price of the last independent trade of a share and
the highest current independent bid for a share as derived from the Londen Steck Exchange Trading System

("SETS");

d) unless previously renewed, va-ied or revoked the authority shall expire at the close of the next AGM of the
Company or 18 months from the date of this resolution (whichever is earlier); and

e) acontract to purchase shares under this authority may be made prior to the expiry of this authority,
and concluded in whole or in part after the expiry of this authority.

By order of the board

Paul Eardley
Company Secretary

5 November 2007

Debenhams ple¢
Registered Office
1 Welbeck Street, London W1G 0AA

Registered in England and Wales. Company No. 5448421

Your attention is drawn to the notes below:
The directors helieve that all the p ‘oposals to be considered at the AGM are in the best interests of Debenhams

plc and its shareholders. They recommend that you vote in favour of the proposed resolutions, The directors will
be voting their own shareholdings in favour of the propesed resolutions.

To have the right te come and vete: at the AGM, you must hold shares in Debenhams pl¢ {this means your name
must be entered on the share regizter) by 3.30pm on 2 December 2007.

if you cannot come to the AGM, you can appoint someone as your proxy o come to the meeting and vote for you,
Alternatively you can appoint the Chairman as your proxy. If there is a poll, your proxy can vote for you and can
also join in the demand for a poll. A proxy does not have to be shareholder. if you want to appoint a proxy, fill in the
form of proxy which is enclosed an 1 return it to the Company's registrars in the prepaid envelope provided.

The Company's registrars must receive your proxy instructions by 3.30pm on 2 December 2007. If you fill inand
send back a form of proxy you can still come to the AGM and vote instead of your proxy. If you do this and there is
a poll vote, the votes you have given previously to your proxy will not be counted.

The directors’ service contracts or taeir letter of appointment will be available for inspection at and for
15 minutes prior to the AGM. You ¢an also ask to see these documents during normal business hours by

contacting the Company Secretary
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Electronic proxy appointment through CREST

CREST members who wish to appsint a proxy or proxies through the CREST efectronic proxy appointment service
rmay do so for the Annual General Meeting to be held on 4 December 2007 and any adjournmentsis) thereof by
using the procedures described ir the CREST manual, CREST personal members or other CREST sponsored
members, and those CREST members who have appointed a voting service provider(s), should refer to their CREST
sponsor or voting service provider(s), who will be able to take the apprepriate action on their behalf.

In order for a proxy appointment ar instruction made using the CREST service to be valid, the apprapriate
CREST message {a “CREST proxy irstruction”) must be properly authenticated in accordance with CRESTCo's
specifications and just contain the information required for such instructions, as described in the CREST manual.
The message, regardless of whether it constitutes the appointment of a proxy or to an amendment to the
instruction given to a previously appointed proxy must, in order to be valid, be transmitted so as to be received
by the issuer's agent (ID 7RA01) by the latest time(s) for receipt of proxy appointments specified in the notice

of meeting. For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as determined by the timestamp
applied to the message by the CRZST applications host) fram which the issuer's agent is able o retrieve the
message by enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST, After this time any change of instiuctions

to proxies appointed through CREST should be communicated to the appointee through other means.

CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service providers should note that
CRESTCo does not make available special procedures in CREST for any particutar messages. Nermal system
timings and limitations will therefisre apply in relation to the input of CREST proxy instructions. It is the
responsibility of the CREST memb 2r concerned to take (or, if the CREST member is a CREST personal member

or sponsored member or has appointed a voting service provider(s), to procure that his CREST sponsor or voting
service provider(s) take(s)} such attion as shall be necessary 1o ensure that a message is transmitted by means of
the CREST system by any particular time. In this connection, CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST
sponsors or voting service providers are referred, in particular, to those sections of the CREST manual conceming
practical limitations of the CREST tystem and tlmings.

The Company may treat as invalid a CREST proxy instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)(a) of
the Uncertificated Securities Regu'ations 2001.
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Registered office and hea office
1 Welbeck Street

London W1G 0AA

Registered in England and \Vales
Company number; 5448421

Financial advisers and stockbrokers
Citigroup Global Markets Limited
Citigroup Centre

Canada Square

London £14 5LB

Merrill Lynch Internaticonal
Merrill Lynch Financial Cent-e
2 King Edward Street

London EC1A THQ

Solicitors

Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer
65 Fleet Street

London EC4Y 1HS

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Benson House

33 Wellington Street

Leeds LS1 4JP

Registrars

Equiniti Limited

Aspect House

Spencer Road

Lancing

West Sussex

BN99 6DA

Telephone: 0845 607 6838

Mixed Sources

Praduct group irom wetb-manag vd
foresty, controlled sources ard

recycled wood or fiber

www.lscorg Cart no.8G5-COC-003769
B 1996 Farmat Stawardship Council

Designed and produced by &5four
Printed in-house by Debenhams
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PLC - REGISTRATION NUMBER: 5448421
FILINGS WITH SEC SINCE 9 MAY 2006

DATE DOCUMENTS FILED WITH

TYPE OF FILING

REGISTRAR OR ANNOUNCED
TO STOCK EXCHANGE

DATE FILED WITH SEC

See Exhibit B attached to application letter 8 June 2006
9-5-06 — 2 JUNE 06
2 June 2006 Form 288b —~ Secretary Resignation 3 July 2006
6 June 2006 Stock Exchance Announcement — Directors’ Interests (MS) 3 July 2006
19 June 2006 Stock Exchance Announcement — Directors’ Interests (MS) 3 July 2006
20 June 2006 Stock Exchance Announcement — S.198 3 July 2006
27 June 2006 Stock Exchance Announcement — Block Listing Application 3 July 2006
8 August 2006 Stock Exchange Announcement — Roches Acquisitions 23 August 2006
11 August 2006 Stock Exchange Announcement — S.198 23 August 2006
23 August 2006 Stock Exchange Announcement — S.198 23 August 2006
4 September 2006 Stock Exchange Announcement - S5.198 19 September 2006
18 September 2006 Stock Exchange Announcement - Trading Update 19 September 2006
26 September 2006 Stock Exchange Announcement — Notification of Directors 25 October 2006

Details (DM)

24 QOctober 2006

Stock Exchange Announcement — Preliminary Results
September 2006

25 October 2006

1 November 2006 Form 122/Mem & Arts 10 November 2006
6 November 2006 Stock Exchange Announcement — Directors’ Interests 10 November 2006
6 November 2006 Stock Exchange Announcement — S.198 10 November 2006
10 November 2006 Shareholder Mailing — Annual Report/Proxy 10 November 2006
10 November 2006 Stock Exchange Announcement — Notification of filing of 10 November 2006

Shareholder Mailing with UKLA

10 November 2006

Stock Exchange Announcement — Annual Information Update

10 November 2006 %~

22 November 2006

Stock Exchange Announcement — S198

4 December 2006

24 November 2006

Stock Exchange Announcement — Directors’ Interests

4 December 2006




12 December 2006

Stock Exchange Announcement — AGM Statement

12 December 2006

12 December 2006

Stock Exchange Announcement — AGM Results

12 December 2006

12 December 2006

AGM Resolutions filed with Registrar of Companies

12 December 2006

20 December 2006

Stock Exchange Announcement — Voting Rights

8 January 2007

27 December 2006

Stock Exchange Announcement — Blocklisting Returns

8 January 2007

2 January 2007

Stock Exchange Announcement -- S.198

8 January 2007

8 January 2007

Stock Exchange Announcement — S.198

8 January 2007

§ January 2007

Stock Exchange Announcement — S.198

22 January 2007

12 January 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — S.198 22 January 2007
12 January 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — S.198 22 January 2007
16 January 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement - Trading Update 22 January 2007
17 January 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — S.198 22 January 2007
19 January 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — S.198 22 January 2007

22 January 2007

Annual Accounts for the year ended 2 September 2006

22 January 2007

31 January 2007

Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests

18 February 2007

7 February 2007

Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests

19 February 2007

15 February 2007

Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests

19 February 2007

23 February 2007

Stock Exchange Announcements — Directors Notifications of
Interest (J Lovering, R Templeman & C Woodhouse)

5 March 2007

2 March 2007

Stock Exchange Announcment — Major Interests

5 March 2007

8 March 2007

Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests

23 March 2007

18 Marcrh 2007

B DRI Wl b A A 4

Stock Evchanna Annouincamant — Tradina QStatement

ittt e ] H Areag e eTa e

23 March 2007

21 March 2007

Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests

23 March 2007

23 March 2007

Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests

23 March 2007

13 April 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests 20 April 2007
17 April 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Interim Results 20 April 2007
17 April 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Resignation of Director 20 April 2007
18 April 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests 20 April 2007
18 April 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests 20 April 2007
20 April 2007 Director Resignation filed with Registrar of Companies 1 June 2007




1 May 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests 1 June 2007
8 May 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests 1 June 2007
9 May 2007 Stock Exchange Announcements — Directors Notifications of 1 June 2007
Interest (M. Sharp)
24 May 2007 Annual return — form 363a 1 June 2007
29 May 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Major interests 1 June 2007
30 May 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Debenhams Store Visits 1 June 2007
30 May 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests 1 June 2007
4 June 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement - Major Interests 20 July 2007
6 June 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests 20 July 2007
7 June 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — PDMR Shareholding 20 July 2007
12 June 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests 20 July 2007
22 June 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests 20 July 2007
22 June 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Director's Declaration 20 July 2007
27 June 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Director's Declaration 20 July 2007
27 June 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Blocklisting Interim Review 20 July 2007
27 June 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Blocklisting Interim Review 20 July 2007
27 June 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Dublin Store 20 July 2007
12 July 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests 20 July 2007
16 Julv 2007 Stock Exchange Annnuncement — Maiaor Interests 20 uly 2007
16 July 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests 20 July 2007
17 July 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests 20 July 2007
17 July 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests 20 July 2007
20 July 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Bauger Press Comment 13 September 2007
1 August 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — PDMR Shareholding 13 September 2007
1 August 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — PDMR Shareholding’ 13 September 2007
1 August 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests 13 September 2007
2 August 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests 13 September 2007

21 August 2007

Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests

13 September 2007




29 August 2007

Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests

13 September 2007

17 September 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests 29 October 2007
18 September 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Trading Update 29 October 2007
21 September 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests 29 October 2007
26 September 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests 29 October 2007
8 October 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests 29 Qctober 2007
15 October 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests 29 October 2007
15 October 2007 288a and 288b filed with Registrar of Companies dealing with 29 October 2007
replacement of Secretary
23 October 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Preliminary Announcement 29 October 2007
29 October 2007 Stock Exchange Annnouncement — PDMR Shareholding 29 October 2007
30 October 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests 13 December 2007

2 November 2007

Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests

13 December 2007

5 November 2007

Stock Exchange Announcement — Shareholder Mailing

13 December 2007

5 November 2007

Stock Exchange Announcement — Annual Information Update

13 December 2007

12 November 2007

Stock Exchange Announcement - Major Interests

13 December 2007

4 December 2007

Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests

13 December 2007

4 December 2007

Stock Exchange Announcement — Appointment of Managing
Director

13 December 2007

4 December 2007

Stock Exchange Announcement — Results of AGM

13 December 2007

6 December 2007

Stock Exchange Announcement — Director Declaration

13 December 2007

6 December 2007

Stock Exchange Announcement — Maior Intereste

LRI =i e e L

13 Dacember 2007

17 December 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests 9 January 2008

27 December 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Blocklisting interim review g January 2008

27 December 2007 Stock Exchange Announcement — Block listing interim review 9 January 2008

7 January 2008 Registrar of Companies — Annual Accounts for the year ended 1 | 9 January 2008
September 2007

9 January 2008 Stock Exchange Announcement — Major Interests 9 January 2008




TR-1 NOTIFICATION OF MAJOR INTERESTS IN SHARES

1. Identity of the issuer or the underlying issuer of existing shares to which
voting rights are attachedl:

Debenhams plc
2. Reason for the notification

An acquisition or disposal of voting rights.

3. Full name of person(s) subject to the notification obligation:

J P Morgan Chase & Co
4. Full name of shareholder(s) (if different from 3.):

J P Morgan Securities Limitec

5. Date of the transaction (and date on which the threshold is crossed or reached if
different)"

7 January 2008
6. Date on which issuer notified:

8 January 2008

NI IO

7. Threshold(s) that is/are: crossed or reached

‘
.3

R T RnVEN

1% Lz

8. Notified details:




A: Voting rights attachec! to shares
Class/type of shares: GBOOB126KH97
Situation previous to the Triggering Transaction: 101,069,494 ordinary shares of

0.01p each, Number of voting rights: 101,069,494,

Resulting situation after the: triggering transaction: Number of shares: 94,397,133 ,
Number of voting rights: 94,397,133 (direct) & 0 (indirect), % of voting rights: 10.99%
(direct) 0.00% (indirect).

B: Financial Instruments

N/A

Total A +B

Number of voting rights 94,397,133 = 10.99% of voting rights

9. Chain of controlled undertakings through which the voting rights and/or the
financial instruments are effectively held, if applicable.

Total disclosable holding for | P Morgan Chase & Co: 94,397,133 (10.99%)
Holdings by controlled undeniakings of ] P Morgan Chase & Co. are as follows:-

J P Morgan Securities Limited: 94,397,133 (10.99%)

Proxy Voting:
10. Name of the proxy holder:
N/A

11. Number of voting irghts proxy holder will cease to hold:




N/A

12. Date of which proxy holder will cease to hold voting rights:

N/A

13. Additional Information:

14. Contact Name:

Paul Eardley

Company Secretary

15. Contact telephone number:

020 7408 3529




DEBENHAMS

Calendar Stores Contact

RNS ANNOUNCEMENTS

REG-Debenhams plc Holding(s) in Company

Released: 17/12/2007

RNS Number:0975K
Debenhams plc
17 December 2007

TR-1 NOTIFICATION OF MAJOR INTERESTS IN SHARES

Overview History Directors News Share price Governance  Results and presentations

1. Identity of the issuer cr the underlying issuer of existing shares to which

voting rights are attached:
Debenhams plc
2. Reason for the notification

An acquisition or disposal of voting rights

3. Full name of person{s) subject to the notification obligation:

Milestone Resources Group limited

4. Full name of shareholder(s) (if different from 3):

Chase Nominees Limited

5. Date of the transaction {and date on which the threshold is crossed or

reached if different):

December 12th 2007

6. Date on which issuer notified:

December l6th 2007

7. Threshold{s) that is/are crossed or reached
7%

B. Notified details:

Class/type of shares

ISIN: GBOOB126KHS7

Voting rights attached to shares

Situation previous to the Triggering Transaction:

0.01p each.

http://www.debenhamsplc.com/dzb/ms/msitem?id=1197908056nRNSQ0973K

60,072,258 ordinary
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24/12/2007



Percentage of voting rights: 6.99%.

Resulting situation after the triggering transaction: 63,309,537 ordinary shares
of 0.01lp each

Number of voting rights Direct 63,309,537 ordinary shares, Indirect None;

Percentage of voting rights Direct 7.37%, Indirect None

B: Financial Instruments

N/A

Total A +B

Number of voting rights 63,309,537
Percentage of voting rights 7.37%

9. Chain of controlled undertakings through which the voting rights and/or the
financial instruments are effectively held, if applicable.

n/a
Proxy Voting:

10. Name of the proxy holder:
n/a

11. Number of voting rights proxy holder will cease to hold:
n/a

12. Date on which proxy holder will cease to hold voting rights:
n/a

13. Additicnal Informatiorn:

14. Contact Name/Telephone Number:
Paul Eardley

Company Secretary

Telephone 020 7408 3529

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END
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BLOCKLISTING SIX MONTHLY RETURN CanrUlTATE

Date: 27 December 2oqp

1. Name of applicant:

Debenhams plc

2. Name of scheme

The Debeéenhams Performance Share Plan

3. Period of return:

From 28 June 2007 To 27 December 2007

4, Balance under scheme from previcus return:
1,000,000

5. The amount by which ths block scheme has been increased, if the scheme has
been increased since the date of the last return

Nil

6. Number of securities issued/allotted under scheme during periecd:

Nil

7 Balance under scheme not yet issued/allotted at end of period

1,000,000

8. Number and class of securities originally listed and the date of admission
1,000,000 Ordinary shares of 0.01lp each on 28 June 2006

9. Total number of securities in issue at the end of the period

858,974,359 ordinary sharzs of 0.0lp each




Name of contact: Sarah Carne

Address of contact: Debennams plc, 1 Welbeck Street, London W1G QAR

Telephone number of contact: 0207 408 3231

This information is provided by RNS
The company naws service from the London Stock Exchange

END
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Date: 27 December 2007

1. Name of applicant:

Debenhams plc

2. Name of scheme

The Debenhams 2006 Executive Share Option Plan

3. Period of return:

From 28 June 2007 To 27 December 2007

4. Balance under scheme from previcus return:

1,000,000

5. The amount by which the block scheme has been increased, if the scheme has
been increased since the date of the last return

Nil

6. Number of securities issued/allotted under scheme during pericd:

7 Balance under scheme not yet issued/allotted at end of period

1,000,000

8. Number and class of sezurities originally listed and the date of admission

1,000,000 Ordinary shares of 0.01lp each on 28 June 2006

9. Total number of securities in issue at the end of the period

858,974,359 ordinary sharas of 0.01lp each




Name of contact: Sarah Carne

Address of contact: Debenhams plc, 1 Welbeck Street, London W1G OAA

Telephone number of contact: 0207 408 3231

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END

P It




